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HUNGER AND THE ELDERLY

TUESDAY, APRIL 22, 1986

House oF REPRESENTATIVES, DoMESTIC TASK Force or
. THE SpLEct CoMMITTEE 0N HUNGER AND THE SELECT
COMMITTEE ON AGING, o )
S - , - L Washington, DC.
_ The committees met, pursuant to notice, at 2 pm.,, in room 811, -
Cannon House Office Building, Hon. Leon E. Panetta (chairman,
Domestic Task Force, Select Committee on Hunger) and Hon. Ed-
ward R. Roybal (chairman, Select Committee on Aging) presiding. .
- Members present: Representatives Leland, Roybal, Hertel, Rou-"
kema, Schneider, Ridge, McCain, Bentley, Lightfoot, and Schuette.

OPENING STATEMENT OF HON. LEON E. PANETTA, A REPRESENT-
ATIVE IN CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA . .

‘Mr. PANETTA. The Select Committee on Hunger and the Domes- .

tic Task Force is now convened, in participation with the Select

..Committees on Hunger and Aging for the purpose of this hearing’
‘today, .to hear testimony on one of the problems our society too - .

-often ignores, which is hunger among the elderly. e
In recent years there has been a great deal of publicity about the ..~

i . improved economic status of the elderly. And that publicity is war-
... ranted. The Select Committee on Aging, under the leadership cf Ed -/
. Roybal, deserves much credit for fighting to ensure the economic *

gains made by the elderly over the past two decades are not eroded
during the current preoccupation with deficits. o
We all know that three of the great success stories in social pro-

- 'grams in the past two decades have been significant in improving -

: the economic status of the elderly. These success stories are the

" protection of Social Security benefits against inflation, creation of

- the Medicare and Medicaid Programs, and the establishment of the -
Supplemental Security Income Program, . : e

e Nevertheless, we should not forget that to gajthat a risin§ tide

S lifts all boats doesn’t apply if 'you don’t even have a lifeboat. Trag-' S
igallfr”,w millicns of elderly Americans don’t have those. lifeboats.

-~ While the poverty rate smong the elderly has declined dramatical-

<ly in.the .past two’ decades, poverty remains  unacceptably high
- among . certain iraupé.cxf elderly Americans, particularly ‘widows,
- and those over the age of 85. L LT e

“i. . Even thc:iu%hthe‘average Social Security benefit is $429 a month, -
.millionsa of e

- .»__For.example, the average widow's benefit in December 1985 wag + . -

" $215. Supplemental Security Income Program does not guarantee .

derly persons have Social Security benefits well below < "
" -that level. . L AR ' Tt




-elderly Americans will even have poverty level incomes. In fact, for
. Social Security recipients receiving both the Federal SSI payment
~ and fl‘oodlstamps the combined benefit is only 84 percent of the pov-
erty level. )
-...Last year in the Food Security Act the Agriculture Committee
‘reauthorized the Nutrition Assistance Programs. We were able to
achieve some modest restorations of benefit cuts that were made in
1981 and 1982, and some modest benefit improvements. This
progress in large part was possible beecause there is now an in-
creased awsreness in this Nation that hunger does indeed exist.
. The Select Committee on Hunger deserves significant credit for
- fostering a climate of awareness that hunger remains a problem,
: land as a compassionate people, we simply cannot ignore this prob-
- Unfortunately, the awareness that hunger is a problem is less
~than universal. Frankly, I was shocked to discover during testimo-
ny by the Administrator of the Food and Nutrition Service that the
-recommendations of the President’s Task Force on Hunger were
apparently not taken seriously in the executive branch. Last year
“the Congress approved an increase in the asset limit for food stamp
‘recipients, This change was particularly important for many elder-
' ly Americans whose life savings put them only a bit above the pre-
. vious asset limitation. Even though the increase in the asseét limit
in the Food Security Act was less than what the President’s own _
-Task Force on IHunger had recommended, the President now pro- -

poses repeal of that increase.

" And, furthermore, the Administrator of the Food and Nutrition
‘Bervice does not consider the recommendations of that task force in
i;;;é;énse binding when it comes to putting together the proposed
U 7Et; oLt C . L N . Lor . c o B

 Vie were also shocked to discover that even though the Depart-
ment of Agriculture is holding unprecedented commodity surplus-

.8, including 600 million pounds of cheese, Department of Agricul- - :

‘ture is placing significant obstacles in the path of many dedicated
.State and local government officials, as well as representatives of
private organizations, to try to get this surplus food to needy elder-
dy Americans.: " , T TR
: mony we received from one commodity distribution project
in Detroit, Focus Hope, has a waiting list of 16,001 elderly persons
waiting to be able t5 receive food through this program. '

" Right 'now for & pergon 7 this waiting list to get g@mm@éifiés, a
person . currently getting theta must die, move away, or %'o into a
nursing home. Apparently tais approach is too generous for many -

of ‘the administration’s budzet cutters who propose that once a - -
person currently getting co:anodities stops getting them, no one

will be able to take their place.” . .~
- One  igsue
whether specifi

hich  the - budgeteers shéﬁld cafeﬁilly examine is £y
cuts might not be penny wize and pound foolish. I - .

submit that this can often be the case if nutritian. assistance of el- -

derly Americans is reduced. - *~ | R e
v 10ne example is home delivery of congregate meals, which may
enable elderly persons to remain in their homes rather than be-
coming institutionalized. We should not forget 40 percent of Medic-
spending goes for nursing home care of the elderly. To the
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~ extent the nutrition pfogram asgists persona to live independently,

~ we have the potential to avert significant State and Federal costs.

_Another example is illness among the elderly due to malnutri-
tion, which can increase costs in both Medicare and Medicaid. And
‘while nutritional studies of the low-income ‘elderly are very limit-
ed, existing studies do document severe calorie malnutrition. T

It is an indictment of our priorities as a civilized Nation if a

' person of any age goes hungry. The indictment is even more stark

~* in an economy such as ours in which a major public policy issue is

 how to deal with huge agricultural surpluses. Furthermore, if we
. tolerate hunger among the elderly, we show ourselves to be a socie-
"ty so lacking in gratitude that we allow our parents and grandpar-

- ents who struggled through the Great Depression and then fought
~in World War II to somehow now go hungry. e S
. In a few weeks there will be a national ‘effort to bring attention

to domestic hunger needs in so-called Hands Across America Cam-

* paign. I want to make sure that this effort addresses the needs of ‘

. all ages in our society.- : ‘ o
. This afternoon we'’re privileged to obtain testimony which deals -
. with three aspects of the problem of hunger among the elderly.
" ... First, a good friend of Ei'na ) y )

. director of the National Council of Senior Citizens will brief us on -
-+ gocial-economic’ trends, which demonstrate the increased risk  of
" ~hunger among the elderly poor. - - I SR M,
" Second, some dedicated people who work with the elderly poor
will give us concrete ‘eiamp%eo

_ 1 es of the magnitude of the problem, - |
,And, finally, some prospectives on the programmatic issues in-

volved will be provided, including the impact of recent reductions’

committee, Bill Hutton, the executive = '~

~in-Federal spending on the unmet need, as well as some evidence -
. on how shortsighted nutrition reductions can in the long run mean .

. ‘higher spending in other programs. .
-+ Mr. Roybal, do you have a statement? . « S

- [Material submitted by Mr. Panetta appears at the conclusion of -
. the hearing, see p. 50.] ~ : ‘ , S ‘
- OPENING STATEMENT OF HON. EDWARD R. ROYBAL, A REPRE. .

‘SEI‘?TATIVE IN CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA =
-+ Mr. RoveaL. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, - i

. T'would like to take this opportunity to commend you, Mr. Panet- - ... ..
" ta, and also Mr. Leland, for your.insight and leadership in calling /=
.. this"important hearing to examine hunger: and malnourishment, = .
_-among the older American population of the United States.” While -+ /&
. it is tragic that we still have to do much more ‘before we have.

eliminated hunger from our society, many of the successes that.

S we've had in reducing hunger can be traced to the deep commitment
and skilled leadership. of both Mr. Leland ‘and Mr. Panetta, and

" 'many other members of the Select Committee on Hunger. . .

te the opportunity to join their efforts today, and look

~ . I appreeia ‘
forward to working together in the future to develop policy propos-
- . als which better meet the nutritional needs of older Americans.. = .
. .. Today’s hearing will focus particular attention on those poor, iso- -
- lated, and frail individuals whose very health.and well-being is ge- . *
+. verely threatened by malnutrition. Given the wealth of medical re--
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- search linking poor nutrition to a variety of health problems, it is
- 'crucial to reexamine the scope of hunger among our elderly popu-

lation, and to assess the adequacy of Federal nutrition programs to
meet the growing need. - i ) '
~ We are fortunate to have with us today a distingnished panel of -
- witnesses representing a wide cross section of the country. I look
forward, Mr. Chairman, to hearing their expert testimony, and to
receiving their spocifie recommendaticns.
. Thank you, Mr. Panetta. o

[News release submitted by Mr. Roybal appears at the conclusion
of the hearing, see p. 52.]

Mr. PangrTA. Thank you, Mr. Roybal.
* Mrs. Schneider. :

Go ahead, Mickey.

. _OPENING STATEMENT OF HON. MiCKEY LELAND, A
"REPRESENTATIVE IN CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF TEXAS

- Chairman LeELAND. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, very much. Good
-afternoon, I would like to welcome the witnesses, and particularly -
thank those of you who traveled long distances to testify today.. =~

- I also would like to thank Chairman Roybal and members of the =

- Select Committee on Aging for working with us on this examina-

*._tion of hunger among the elderly.:And I'm especially pleased, of = .

-~ 'course, with the leadership that's offered by our chairman of the
" Domestic Task Force, Mr. Panetta, who has been the champion of

. not just the elderly, but all persons who are hungry in this coun- = =

' National trends can camouflage the realities of hunger in Amer- = .
--1ea. Ll e : CL . P ’ ’ :

- While the overall elderly poverty rate has declined significantly, = -
~l'in 8,7or 3.3 million elderly still live in poverty. Despite the suc-

- cessful expansion of our Social Security System, the elderly in pov- = |

. erty struggle each day to balance their high food, shelter, and med-*
-ical expenses. R E ) K

~ ..'The National Health and Nutrition Examination Survey, con-
- ducted from 1976 to 1980, demonstrated that all elderly persons are

- .at risk of nutritional deficiencies, but particularly those living in
poverty. v o e o S
'The survey found that ]l in 4 of the elderly poor consume less

. than 1,000 calories daily. Poverty is the most significant factor as-.~

- gociated with this low-food intake. o T e gt
. 'While there are no up-to-date national nutritional surveys of the

elderly, several State and local surveys indicate that hunger re-

- mains a- serious 'and frequent problem  among this population - -
- group. At a Select Committee on Hunger hearing last November, a' = .
epresentative from the New York State Department of Health® -
ented alarming findings of a State survey on hunger among' '
* homebound elderly. Among those living in poverty who were
not receiving home delivered meals, 1 in 5 were routinely going
- without food for 1 or more days each week. =~~~ - oo
- In my home State of Texas, the Departmernt ¢f %’mg estimates
100,000 mobile elderly, and. 16,000 homebound: elderly need nutri- . -

_ tion services, but are not able to get them due to limited funds.This




" large unmet need exists in Texas despite the State’s supplemental =
. funding for elderly meals in title XX of the Sociat Security Act and” -
. their recent State omnibus hunger legislation. , : P
. 1. was contacted last week by the Texas Department. of ‘Aging - .. -
with grim news. If USDA does not raise the reimbursement rate - ..
- per meals served in fiscal year 1985 to 56.76 cents, as provided for .
in Federal appropriations and authorization, Texas will have to cut = -
the program by 300,000 meals. An additional 6,000 homebound el- '
derly may eoon lose the one home delivered meal they depend on "
each day because of the Gramm-Rudman-Hollings cuts in title XX. . ..
‘ We have found the Commodity Supplemental Food Program and
- the title ITII-C nutrition programs to be successful in improving the
nutritional status and well-being of poor elderly. The Department
. of Agriculture has limited the amount of commodities available to == -
. feed the elderly despite the availability of funds. We cannot sit pag-.
sively while elderly Americans go without food for days at a time,
~and millions of pounds of food commodities go unused, - . .
<1 look forward to hearing recommendstions today that will allow =
- - the Federal Government to renew its commitment to abolishing. . -
~ hunger among the elderly. S -
© " Thank you, Mr. Chairman,
., Mr. PANETTA. Mrs. Roukema. el e
_ OPENING STATEMENT OF HON. MARGE ROUKEMA, A REPRE- =
‘ - SBENTATIVE IN CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY. .
... Mrs. Roukema. I'would first like to express my regret at having _
“* . to leave here because I have a markup in the Banking Committee,
+ - But I.do.want to underscore what Mr. Panetta; Mr. Roybal, and :
- Mr. Leland have stated in terms of the needs of the elderly—par-
- ticularly in relationship to the paradox that continues with over-
flowing granaries and excess cheese and the inability to distribute”

* thege foodstuffs. - o : . S e
" We all recognize that it is a challenge to meet the needs of the
elderly, as well as the needs of poor children,. whose numbers are:

‘growing. But, I'would like to point out that _because of Gramm-
" -Rudman requirements there is a very real possibility of across-the-
" board budget cuts which do not take into account the ‘merits of one
' program over ‘another..Therefore, it is necesgary for the House of
- . Representatives to come ‘up with an alternative budget in order to
" .avoid these across-the-board cuts.” - ol T L
:, .. The nutritional programs for the elderly are not exempted under.
" Gramm-Rudman the way some other programs are, such as the -
: FoodStEmpProgrthndSDcmlSecunty, and other programs that -
- . directly affect the well-being of our elderly, =« - - oo s
., . So we on these ‘committees should certainly exercise every effort
- to see to it that the budget committees come up with an alternative -
- budget that not only is a political document, but that can get bipar-.
.. tisan’ support ' and  avoid the across-the-board devastation - of
" Gramm-Rudman in September. - ; C e e T e
‘. Thank you very much. =~ - - - o S e
..., [The prepared statement of Mrs. Roukema appears at the conclu-
- 'sion of the hearing, see p. 53.] o e
“"* Mr. PANETTA. Mr. Hertel.

%

iy
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" OPENING STATEMENT OF HON. DENNIS M. HERTEL, A
_REPRESENTATIVE IN CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF MICHIGAN

- Mr. HertEL. Well, I just want to commend the chairman here, .
‘all three. of the cnchmrmen, for the hard work they’ve been doing,
Especmlly in how they're involved in meeting the needs of what
was just mentioned by the last speaker, and that is by making sure
that these things don't take place in any way, shape, or form,

: I'know all the members here are committed today, and I loak ;
furward to hearing all the testimony this afternoon agaut not only
the needs, but’ abuut some of the projects and programs that have ;
worked g0 well, )

~Mr.: Panetta, agam, has done very much in mnovatmzl m that L
'véry area. - -

-Last night the evenmg news stated that even some of the pro-
gTams that we do have, that are funded that do exist are not being -
used by our senior citizens because of the fear of embarrassment, of
being ostracized, and the fact that they worked so very hard in
their life and sacrificed for the rest of us. I thmk we have to lacrk
‘at new approaches as much as possible.

' People that are retired today have done more for ﬂllE countty'
than any other generation. They have fought two World Wars at
home and. abmag

they Tlived . thmugh the highest increase in taxation in'this coun-:

they lived through the world’s worst Depression;

try’s history. Throughout all of that they were able to maintain the . . it
‘this

values of t
‘other generations that this country can be'a better place in each
succee&mg generation. Do

-They taught us basically the importance of famﬂy Now I thlnk -

: Quntry, to work hard for this country, and teach. -

it's important that we . remember those sacrifices, and malke sure - v

that these people are going to have the fullest measure of dignity

with programs we make, to assure them a better life, a reward in

dlgmty for all that they’ve done for the rest of us.
Mr PAHETTA o nghtfmt

OPENING STATEMENT DF HDN JIM LIGHTFDOT A
REPRESENTATIVE IN CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF IOWA

Mr LicHTroor. Thank" you, Mr. Chairman. In the interest of
t:u;ne T’ just ask to put my opening statement in the record. I rep- .
resent the 27th elderly district in the Nation. -

“All ‘the programs, without excéptmn, are very effectlve Thank
you, Mr. Panetta, and Mr. Leland.

‘Mr. PANETTA, Without ob_]e::tmn, your statement w111 be made a
part of the record.”

‘[The prepared Etatéfgent of Mr. I.aghtfoot appears at the conc1u= o

smn of the heanng, see.p. 55.]
M PAHEITA Schuette

) DPENING STATEMENT OF HON. BILL SCHUETTE, A

REPRESENTATWE IN CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF MICHIGAN )
Mr. SCHUETTE. ‘Thank you. In the interest of time, let me make '

{gommenta brief. . ‘
t me congratulate the trio of chairmen for orga;uzmg this, and

y th \,E’E the ﬂmtnct I represgnt 11:1 Mlchlgs;l, a rural district, pI‘OI} N s
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lems of the rural elderly are a great concern to me, Initiatives like
Meals on Wheels have proven to be very effective, so that's why
I'm so interested in being here today, and the testimony I'm sure
will help these respective committees in the deliberations we have
to make. B

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. PANETTA. Mr. Ridge.

OPENING STATEMENT OF HON. THOMAS J. RIDGE, A REPRESENT-
ATIVE IN CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF PENNSYLVANIA

Mr. Rioge. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. And, likewise, I would like
the record to reflect my appreciation for this Jjoint hearing, and my
reluctance to leave at this juncture to go to the Banking Commit-
tee markup for several pieces of legislation is pretty clear. I guess
the evidence is reputable that there’s a nexus between poverty
among senior citizens, and the adequacy of their hutrition. And,
again, I am grateful to all three chairmen for this initiative in this
joint hearing, and look forward at a later time to reviewing the tes-
timony of witnesses all in support of this effort. )

Mr. PanETTA. Thank you. For the information of the committee,
as you know, we’ve got a vote on. This is a vote on the roll and the
supplemental, if I'm not mistaken. And what I'd like to do is to
have Mr. Hutton and Mr. Driggs take their place, and we will ad-
Jjourn briefly to go vote, and try to return as quickly as we can.

[Recess.] - ] )

. Mr. PaNETTA. This joint hearing on the hunger problems of the
elderly is now reconvened. ) , , )

I'd like to introduce Mr. William Hutton, who everyone knows, is
the executive director of the National Council of Senior Citizena.
He represents about 4.5 million seniors who participate in the
State and local councils of the seniors citizens providing an over-
view of the trends of the elderly population, and the extent to
which food assistance programs are meeting the needs of the low
income elderly. B ) _

I think also it would be appropriate at this time i have Mr.
McCain introduce Mr. Driggs.

OPENING STATEMENT OF HON. JOHN MeCAIN, A
REPRESENTATIVE IN CONGRESS FROM THE STATE OF ARIZONA
Mr. McCaiN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I appreciate you and
the other chairmen having this very important hearing today. I
also would like to take particular pleasure in noticing the presence
of Mr. John Driggs, whose testimony concerns the problem here,
hunger amongst our senior citizens, ) ) )
. His testimony is only the latest deed in a lifetime of public serv-
ice. Mr. Driggs is a graduate of North Phoenix High School in Ari-
zona. He earned an A.B. and an M.B.A. at Stanford University.
Mayor of Phoenix, AZ, from 1970 until 1974. John Driggs has been
a member of two Presidental commissions, including the Presi-
deut’s Task Force on Assistance. N ,
Mr. Driggs is currently the chairman of Western Savings and
Loan in Phoenix; not satisfied to rest on previous good works, he
also serves as chairman of the board of Second Harvest Food Bank.
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Mr. Driggs has now begun a campaign to helping hunger by in-
forming America’s hunzry of food stamp benefits which he will de-
scribe to us today in his testimony.
He doesn’t work for acclamation. His altruism has earned him

numerous awards, mclu@ng Phoenix Man of the Year. I believe,
Mr. C;halrmsn, he E the best of Arizona, belnved f'athe: and hus-

I appreclate very much his presem:e here t.c:day, am:l I believe his
testimony will add a great deal to our ability to facilitate private
and public sector cooperation in efforts addressing the serious prob-
lem of hunger which you have s0 eloquently articulated in opening
statements.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. PANETTA. Thank you, and we welcome you, Mr. Driggs.

Mr. Hutton, you may proceed. Your statement will be made part
of the record, and you can either read or summarize it as you wish.

STATEMENT OF WILLIAM R. HUTTON, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, NA-
TIONAL COUNCIL OF SENIOR CITIZENS, ACCOMPANIED RY
EDITH KASSNER, SENIOR RESEARCH ASSISTANT

Mr. Hurron. Thank you. If I may, Mr. Chairman, I'd like to have
you accept the testimony I have submitted for the record.

Mr. Panerra. Without objection, your statement will be made
part of the record.

Mr. Hurron. I am glad that the Select Committees on Hunger
and Aping have joined forces to examine the problems of hunger
among the elderly. There has been very little attention devoted to
this issue recently, although hunger and malnutrition afflict many
older persons and poor nutrition can adversely affect health main-
tenance.

The first question the Natlonal Council would agk is “Why is
there hunger among the elderly

Most Americangs who experience hunger or malnutrition do so
for purely economic reasons. The causes are far more complex
among the elderly population. Among factors which may contrib-
ute to poor nutrition among the aged are: Chronic illness, dimin-
ished ability to absorb nutrients through food, loneliness, which is
common among the Elderly, and difficulty in shnppmg for food, and
preparing meals. Lack of income will exacerbate these prnblem,
therefore, must be given special attention.

The development of the poverty line based upon a diet plan de-
signed only for a short-term use. Then a lower poverty standard
was established for the elderly based on the assumption that older
people need less food than do younger persons.

But while the elderly require fewer calories, their nutritional
needs do not diminish. An income 25 percent above the official pov-
erty line has been recommended to provide a nutritional by ade-
quate diet for the elderly.

Using that standard, we have 5.7 million persons aged 65 and
over who may be at nutritionally risk. This constitutes 21 percent
of the Nation’s elderly. Certain subgroups of the elderly are far
more likely to be poor and consequently risk hunger: Women, mi-

id
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norities, persons living alone, and the very old. And more and more
people are falling into these groups in America. )

What programs exist to address these needs? Despite Federal
programs designed to address the economic and nutritional needs
of the elderly, serious gaps exist in the so-called social safety net.

By far, the most successful antipoverty program for the elderly is
Social Security. Improved adequacy and regular indexation of bene-
fits instituted during the 1970’s are almost singlehandedly respon-
sible for the dramatic reduction in poverty among the aged.

But lower income elders are enormously dependent upon Social
Security. Aged households with incomes under $5,000 receive 80
percent of their income from Social Security. Such households re-
ceive only 11 percent of their income from public assistance pro-
grams. Social Security income prevents 9.4 million older ersons
from falling into poverty, and reduces the poverty rate for the aged
from 47.8 to 12.4 percent. That’s from the Ways and Means Com-
mittee green book. It's very clear for all to see. )

Those older persons who do not escape poverty through Social
Security payments may be aided by the Supplemental Security
Income Program, but in most cases SSI does not prevent poverty
because Federal payment is set at 75 percent of the poverty line for
individuals, 90 percent for couples, ) ) ~

Furthermore, only about one-third of the elderly receive SSI
That’s because so many people still don't know about it.

While many States supplement the Federal payment, almost
none bring recipients over the poverty line. Even when maxzimum
SSI benefits are added to food stamp benefits, only four States
bring individuals out of poverty. Nationally, the Federal SSI bene-
fit for individuals combined with Social Security and food stamps
amounts to just 84 pevcent of the poverty line. ]

Disturbing as these figures are, they may present an overly opti-
mistic picture, for in addition to low participation in SSI, fewer
than one third of poor families containing an elderly member re-
ceive food stamp benefits. Only 15 percent of elderly families in
poverty receive Social Security, SSI, and food stamps. That's get-
ting all three. B ) o

The two programs specifically designed to meet the nutritional
needs of the elderly, are congregate and home delivered meals.
Funding levels for these programs are woefully inadequate.

In 1984 more than 7 million persons 60 years and older live
below 125 percent of the poverty line, yet only 2 million senior citi-
zens of greatest economic need were served by either congregate or
home delivered meal programs in fiscal year 1985.

Despite the congressional mandate to target services to the poor,
the ability of service providers to accornplish this goal has dimin-
ished over the past 5 years. Whereas, in 1982, 61 percent of the
congregate meal participants were economically needy, that pro-
portion had dropped to 53 percent in 1985.

There’s been considerable concern among service providers that
the drop in low income participation is linked to strenuous efforts
hﬁr the administration to collect more voluntary contributions from
the program participants. : )

When the regulations to the Older Americans Act were over-
hauled last year, the requirement that all service providers assist

95
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participents in taking advantage of benefits available to them
under the Food Sta,mp Program was deleted. Although more than
half the participants in senior meal programs are poor, only 13 per-
cent of congregate meals participants, and 19 percent of home de-
livered meals participants, received food stamps.

Our recommendations are simply these, in the testimony I've
submitted, there clearly needs to be more public education directed
to the low—mcorne elderly informing them of Federal programs for
which they may be eligible. An important first step was taken
during reauthorization of the Food Stamp Program last year when
Congress directed Social Security offices to provide beneficiaries
with information about food stamps, and to assist SSI participants
in applying for benefits.

Such efforts must be expanded. Social Security offices are famil-
iar to, and utilized by virtually all older persons. As such, they
should expand efforts to notify persons with small Social Securlty
benefits of the avaﬂabi,hty of 85I and food stamp benefits. They
should be far more active in assisting such persons-in applying for
benefits.

The other currently existing structure with which many older
persons are comfortable and familiar is that of the Older Ameri-
cans Act programs. The National Council of Senior Citizens strong-
ly recommends that new fm:ld.lng be allocated specifically to help
the Older Americans Act service providers to inform and assist
participants with food stamp information.

We also believe additional funds are needed to expand meal serv-
ices to currently unserved low income elderly persons. In our view,
it’s not cost-effective to cut corners on nutrition programs which
can help preserve the heaith of our Nation’'s older citizens.

Finally, the nutritional needs of the elderly would be addressed
by raising Federal SSI benefits at least to the poverty line. It is
very difficult to insure nutritional adequacy for persons whose in-
comes are obviously insufficient.

Thank yow, Mr. Chairman.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Hutton appears at the conclusion
of the hearing, see p. 64.]

Mr. PaNETTA. Thank you very much, Mr. Hutton.

Mr. Driggs, you may proceed.

STATEMENT OF JOHN DRIGGS, CHAIRMAN, WESTERN SAVINGS
AND LOAN, PHOENIX, AZ

Mr. Driggs. Mr. Chairman, members of the select committees,
it’s a privilege for me to have this opportunity to testify. I do not
ha\re a prepared text inasmuch as I was invited to attend this hear-
ing yesterday afternoon, but I will quickly review the issues I think
that perhaps caused my invitation, and that is the recently inaugu-
rated program of the Advertising Council of a Food Stamp Informa-
tion Progra.rﬂ

on Food Asslsta.nce over 2 years ago, s.nd I recall that on August 3,
1983, when the task force was announced, there were two thmgs
that struck me in that article.

i6
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One, the President said it would be a national tragedy if an el-
derly person went to bed hungry at night, or a child. ]

He also said in the same letter, it may be that people are un-

aware of the Federal programs designed to help them.
. My task force experience was interesting. I think the task force
brought certain things to light. I was concerned when it concluded,
however, that there was still something else out there. I was con-
cerned, and I said it on the last day, I felt the problem was access
to the program. ) ) -

Finally, a couple of months later the idea finally came to me
through some inquiry that since the issue of nonparticipation by
those eligible for the program, that percentage which is estimated
between one-third and 40 percent, at least to that extent the pro-
gram was not effective. Ang the President had asked us to exarnine
the Food Stamp Program and others to determine how they could
more effectively meet the needs of low-income persons, because eli-
gible people are not participating, then it’s 100 percent ineffective.

Studies also showed that most of the reasons for non articipation
related to informational aspects. That, coupled with pride and
stigma which seemed to be very apparent through our testimonias
and hearings, of a concern of the elderly. I wondered what Madison
Avenue might do about a communication problem. And I ultimate-
ly ended up at the Ad Council, and asked them if they would do a
n%éonﬁde public service information campaign on food stamp eli-
gibility. A . i

That process of gaining Ad Council approval took about 9
months. It involved ultimately after tentative approval the assign-
ment of a New York Volunteer Advertising Agency, which did con-
siderable research to try to get at some of the attitudes about the
Food Stamp Program. it took about a year to organize all of the
material for this national awareness program. I'm happy to say
- that it was announced early in February the—all of the advertising
material in all media has been running now for about 2 months.
And I remember the head of the Ad Council Committee, asked the
ad agency, what are you going to do with this program if the

phones don’t ring? 7

Well, I can tell you, members of the committees, that the phones
gave been ringing. They are ringing at the rate of about 1,000 a
day.

On March 19 I had the privilege of being asked to be on the
“Today Show” in New York. They ran the commercial, the 30-
second commercial. That day we had 10,000 telephone calls to a na-
tional answering service that had been set up, and that was just in
the first 5 hours. The answering service said that they might have
taken 50 percent more, but that the lines would ring busy. ,

So it is working. The whole thrust of this Ad Council campaign is
vo make people aware of the program in the event that they may
qualify. It invites people to cail a national toll free line. When they
do that two things happen. They are asked for their name and ad-
dress, if they would like to receive a free brochure outlining de-
tailed food stamp eligibility information. And that is sent to them
In an envelope, first-class mail, within a week to 10 days. )

They are also given the number of their State toll free food
stamp hotline if oae exists, and it exists in about 80 percent of the

iv
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States. In the other States we have given them an optional
number. It may not be toll free. It differs among the States.

But for the first time perhaps in the history of the Food Stamp
Program we have a national communication network that can pro-
vide information about the program, and also give them more de-
tailed reference to local information. 7

The response I think speaks for itself. This is a private sector
effort, which is designed to help a Federal program. I might tell
you.that all of the costs, the hard costs involved in this, have been
raised from private individuals, and primarily corporations in this
country. I've raised some $420,000 to date that has paid for all of
the costs of producing the campaign, as well as manning the tele-
phone answering system. ) . .

You have in your packets a copy of a poster which is designed to
pe:fhaﬁg improve a bit the image of the Food Stamp Program. It
says half the people suffering from unemployment aren't old
enough to work. And, frankly, while the focus of this hearing is on
elderly, I think that anyone who sees a child is going to be struck
by this, and this kind of information awareness program may help
to offset some of the stigma about the Food Stamp Program. o

~And I can tell you from my experiences in trying to put this Ad
Council program together over the last 2 years, that hazdiy ever do
I bring up the word food stamp when it turns people off. And then
when I—they always bring up—conjure up the perceptions of
fraud, waste, and abuse, and when they asked about that, I said,
one thing we're going to try to do is make the public understand
better what the Food Stamp Program is designed to do. And when
people can read this brochure, and understand the eligibility crite-
ria, perhaps their attitude about the program will improve also.

We know from studies that some 8 to 10 million eligible but non-
participating persons in the Food Stamp Program that was studied
by Richard Coe out of the Michigan Panel of Income Dynamics, the
statistics showed that 49 percent of this eligible nonparticipating
group are in the elderly category, and 34.5 percent are elderly
female living alone. And of the some 10 million, 40 percent receive
no AFDC, S5I, or even Social Security. o B

The participation rate is lower among elderly. If it’s 60 percent
of the general population, it may be only 50 percent among elderly.
~ About the same number of people participated in the Food
Stamp Program last year as did in 1980, and yet the poverty popu-
lation has increased by some 4 million. )

1 would like to mention one concern, and perhaps plant a seed.
This is the first opportunity I've had to visit a congressional com-
mittee about this effort. , )

I know that my job over the next year is to make sure we have
enough money to keep printing the brochures. Incidentally, we
have had—while we’ve had some 40,000 telephone calls, we have
had requests for this brochure from State agencies and community
groups throughout the country of some 700,000. We are already
into our second half million printing. I've been able to raise enoug
money to keep ahead of the game. And also to keep answering the
telephone. At some point in the future, based on some review of
this program as it commences, we may need to approach the Con-
gress to see if there will be some mechanism to keep somebody
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there to answer the telephone so that when people call to inquire

for food stamp information that there is somebody there to answer
the phone. i N
But I think what we are developing for you will be a very inter-

esting set of statistics over the next couple of years that this Ad
Council program will run at a minimum. Then the Ad Council will
ask if it’s good, and if you want to renew it, and then use the great
multiplier effect of the Ad Council where at this point a half mil-
lion dollars of private sector funds are going to have a multiplier
effect, and do sort of an unusual match of over the next 2 years of
producing roughly $150 to $170 million worth of information
through the private sector media.

It’s a privilege—— ] )

Mr. Panerta. I apologize for interrupting, but—we’ll be back
with questions, but I aplogize to both of you. We have to vote on
another roll. And we'll try to get back in 5 minutes.

Mr. Panetta. The select committee hearing is now reconvened.

We just heard the testimony of Mr. Hutton and Mr. Driggs.

Mr. Driggs, you were adding an additional statement. Go ahead.

Mr. Driggs. Yes, Mr. Chairman. If I could Jjust appreciate this
opportunity, and I would like to insert into the record a copy of the
television commercials that are now running which apparently are
causing the greatest response, as well as the pamphlet, the infor-
mation brochure, that ig being sent out in response to inquiries.

_ I appreciate very much this opportunity to describe this public
information program. )

[The information referred to above retained in committee files.]

ResponNses 1o QuesTions For Joun Drigas
QUESTIONS SUBMITTED BY HON, MICEEY LELAND

Question. How has the discontinuation of federally funded Food Stamp Program

information activities since 1981 affected participation? ) ,
_Answer. There are no studies of how the discontinuation affected participation.

There have been studies on nonparticipation concluding the lack of information on

the Food Stamp Program is one of the principle factors affecting participa ltEme 7

8 lask Force on

_ Question. What key legislative recommendations of the President’
Food Assistance have not vet been implemented? , S
_ Answer. (a) The recommendation to make food assistance programs optional for
States was rejected hy Congress. ) .

(b) The asset limits modification have been only partially implemented. o

(¢) The cash-out recommendation for elderly and Social Security Insurance recipi-
enta has not been implemented. . )

(d) The requirement for States to be fully responsible for overpayment errors in
excess of 5 percent has not been implemented, ) )

(e) The recommendation to restrict eligibility for child care home subsidies to
tomes in low-income areas has not been implemented. ) , ]

(f) The recommendation to reauthorize WIC Program at current caseload is pend-

(@ The recommendation that the Federal Government take steps to improve in-
formation on nutrition status has passed the House and is pending in the Senate.
(h) There has been no action on the recommendation that the Federal Govern-
ment lead a cooperative effort between Federal, State, and local governments and
the private sector in addressing the problems of the homeless. ) o

(i) The recommendation to increase distribution of existing commodities probably
has not been implemented.

wI:9
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ngsimm Please explain your interest in a food stamp credit card system and how
this would improve program participation for those who are eligible but not current-
ly participating?

Answer. A food stamp credit card system may hold promise. It has been tested in
Rea i PA with indications of certain advantages and disadventages. It would be
ive to implement. It has the potential of eliminating the stigma factor. There
would be complex system problems. It would appear to be a good ides, except for the
cost factor. It needs additional study, but may be the wave of the futufa in 10 t0 15
years.

Mr. PaneTTA. Thank you very much.

Mr. Hutton, in your testimony you used the—you make the
statement that nearly 5.7 million persons aged 65 and over may be
at nutritional risk, and that would constitute about 21 percent of
the Nation’s elderly

Where does that fisure come from? What is the basis for that?

Mr. Hurron. The Census Burean. That's where we got it from.

I introduce Ms. Enid Kassner, vvho is the research assistant in
charge of our hunger and nutritional programs, and she tells me
that’s where it came from.

hM‘l-': PaneETra. When you say nutritional risk, how do you define
that

Mr. Hurron. How do you define nutritional risk?

Ms. Kassner. The figure is based on persons falling below 125
percent of the poverty line, and as Robert Butler, who is one of the
foremost experts in nutrition and the elderly has stated in the

past, for elderly peoples an income 25 percent over the official pov-
Eﬁ:y line is recommended to guarantee nutritional adequacy. So we
believe that people who fall below that income level are at risk of
inadequate nutrition.

Mr. PanerTAa. I take it you share the attitude that the money
that is spent on the nutrition programs, saves money in the long

run in terms of health care costs?

Mr. Hurron. Yes, sir, most surely, , ,

Mr. PANETTA. And that that’s pretty much substantiated by your
experience?

Mr. HurtoN. And the experience of most of our elderly people
who have to pay much more for their health treatment, which has
obviously resulted in many cases from inadequate assistance in
eating correctly.

Ir. PANETTA. The one figure that I used in Detrmt which I just
was astounded by—of course, they have a great operation in terms
of the distribution of that commeodity—they have something like
16,000 people in the waiting line, waiting list, to be able to receive
those commodities and all of them are alderly
. Ig that something you're running into in other parts of the coun-

ry?

Mr. Hurron. Across the country. I was just down in Texas last
week, in an area in which I didn’t expect that to happen. It's very
severe in places like Port Arthur, and Beaumont, TX, and particu-
larly in the rural areas. They're having a hard time down there.

Mr. PanErra. Mr. Driggs, why with all of the attention in the
debate on Food Stamp Program that's going on over the last 10, 12
yvears, as well as the other _programs, why is it that so few of the
elderly want to participate in this program, or is it awareness, is it

20
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other factors? What's the main reason that there is this lack of
participation in the program? ) ) )

Mr. Dricgs. Mr. Chairman, 1 believe that it really fit into two
categories. One study out of the mathematical policy research
under contract with USDA recently focused on why elderly persons
do not participate. They found that 33 percent of the eligible elder-
ly who were not in the program mistakenly believed they were in-
eljgib%e, while another 36 percent did not know whether they were
eligible.

20 you have approximately 70 percent of the nonparticipating el-
derly either thought they were ineligible, or didn’t know if they
were eligible. N ) )

And then the pride stigma effect, I know just from personal expe-
rience and observation, is very important in this. And the extent to
which any information program can improve the image of the pro-
gram, I think would have a sagatory benefit there also. B

Mr. PaneErra. When you get something like 10,000 calls that
come in, do you have any idea of the 10,000 how many, in fact,
later are able to receive those benefits? . )

Let me make the question broader. The outreach that you’ve had

with regard to people, how many ultimately get onto the program?
Do you know what the percentages are? )
. Mr. Driggs. Mr. Chairman, since this has been running just a
few weeks we do not have an adequate data base to do that, but I
have told certain staff members of your committees that we will be
compiling a lot of good research data. We'll be able to identify the
location of every telephone eall . And perhaps after a year’s experi-
ence, we will know—we’ll be able to take samples, valid statistical
samples, and go back and trace certain names, calls, areas, wheth-
er they were actually qualified and did enter the program.

So I think there will be out of this Ad Council program some
very good statistical raw material. . ) i

Mr. PanNgTTA. Mr. Hutton, did you have something to add?

Mr. HurronN. Yes. I would lif{vef to add just in that area, Mr.
Chairman, food stamps have only been with us, as a national pro-
gram, since 1974, and yet this is the first time through this Ad
Council that we've had a program appealing to people. It has been
a case of chronic neglect in trying to get out this information over
many years. I'm grateful for the effort which has been made now. 1
hope it can be expanded in other directions. I hope it will be ex-
panded into making TV public statements, and radio statements.

- We now need a bigger effort than this if we're going to correct
the errors of 12 years. , ) o

. Mr. PaNETTA. When 1 first joined the Subcommittee on Nutri-
tion, on the Agriculture Committee, we had an outreach program
on food stamps. It was targeted at that time for cuts because there
was concern about why we were advertising the program to people
in need. Thus, it was eliminated. )

We began, as you stated in your testimony, to take a step back in
the direction of trying to get some kind of outreach out to seniors. I
am really very pleased with this program because it's a very posi-
tive kind of advertisement campaign. And I think you're right, I
think it's not only the ignorance of it. It's those that hesitate to get
on the program for lack of knowledge of what it’s about, and also

el
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because they're not—they always hear about the stories of food
stamp abuse, and to some extent it carries that kind of image. This
helps to convey the image of just exactly how the program can
work for their needs. ) ) B

What'’s the amount, Mr. Driggs, that you're now spending on this
campaign? , . i )

Mr. Dricgs. I've—one $50,000 contribution will be confirmed
next Tuesday. If that comes through, I will have raised $419,000,
most all of which has been spent up-to-date. And I will just have to
keep raising some money so that this telephone answering service
will be able to respond. o )

Mr. Panerra. What are your plans for the future? )

- Mr. DrigGs. Well, just {0 keep raising the money. And as I men-
tioned, at some goint I think the private sector might run out of
steam, and at that point perhaps we may in order to maintain
something which may prove to be valuable, we may wish to address
this here at the Congress at some future date.

Mr. PaneErTA. OK. Well, thank you both very much.

Mr. RoveaL. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Hutton, I'm somewhat concerned about the statement you
made in your written testimony. You say that only 15 percent of
-elderly families in poverty receive Social Security, SSI, and food
gtamps. o _

Mr. Hutron. That’s all three, sir.

Mr. RoyeaL. That's for all three? )

“Mr. Hurron. 1 added—that’s all three. Only 15 percent receive
all three of them.,

Mr. Rovear. All three. )

Can you please provide for the record the percentage that re-
ceived Social Security, SSI, and also foid stamps?

Mr. Hurron. No; that’s the figure, 15 percent. You want it on a
separate basis? ) ] )

Mr. RoysaL. On a separate basis. Now, I'm sure— ) )

Mr. Hurron. We'll do that. I'll supply that. This is all three, but
we know on food stamps—we know '5‘1&.1: they reach about one-third
of the elderly poor. SSI reaches about one-third of the elderly poor.

Mr. Rovear. Only one-third of the elderly poor now receive SSI?

Mr. Hutron. That's right. ) .

Mr. RoveaL. And is the same true with regard to food stamps?

Mr. HurtoN. The same is true with regard to food stamps. Only
one third of those eligible receive it. o

Mr. Rovear. Which means that two thirds of those that may be
eligible do not receive either SSI or food stamps, but they may be
receiving Social Security? o o

Mr. Hurron. They may be receiving Social Security or SSI.

- Mr. RoysaL. You also said that low participation by the elderly
in the SSI and Food Stamp Program has been often noted, but
little has been done to address this problem. )

~ What do you think can be done, or should be done, to address
this problem? o

‘Mr. Burron. Well, this is a great start, but it's a volunteer
effort. The effort of producing this brochure, and the effort of join-
ing with the Ad Council, and eliciting that generous organization

22



17

to help, is something. But it really is a drop in the bucket, a drop
in the bucket to the years and years of chronic neglect in reaching
the people who are entitled to the program but don’t know about
it

It should have been s Program in which financing was also pro-
vided by the Government for television time, bought announce-
ments, radio time, and other ways to reach people.

When we first started the program of Medicare we couldn’t get

etting people to sign them up for Medicare. They were already on
gocial Security, but were not signing up, which they had to do. And
over the course of a year we signed up something like 25 million
older people into the Medicare Program. It cost a Iot of money, but
it was worth doing it. That’s the kind of rogram that should have
been put to work in connection with the food programs. )

Mr. RoveaL. Then one of the things that may work is perhaps a
brochure such as the one described by Mr. Driges, o
_If that were the case, who would make the brochure available?
Since two-thirds do not participate in these two very important
programs, how can that information be made more available?

Mr. Hurron. One thing, I think that several thousand of these
should be available in every Social Security office around the coun-
try. There are about 1,000 Social Security offices, so right there 1

million would be required for that. The church ig _another area.

Mr. RoyeaL. Mr. Hutton and Mr. Driggs, there is quite obviously
a lack of communication and a lack of information being received
by those who may be eligible for both SSI and food stamps. Do you
tgmj ink that organizations such as yours, as well as other organiza-
tions for senior citizens, might be interested in developing a coordi-
nated network of information pamphlets which could list specific
programs available through the Federal Government? ,
. In other words, do you think that the senior citizen organizations
in this country can start a program that will ultimately result in
informing more people of their rights? o

Mr. Hurron. The ones who are wealthy could. The others—for
example, the Congress has Just hit us with a $240,000 increase in
postage for our newspaper. It would severely curtail our newspa-
per. It can’t get to the people.

That is one of the little things. B

Mr. ROYBAL I'm chairman of the committee that handled that
%tfum, and I can assure you that we're going to look at it very care-
Mr. Hurron. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. o
Mr. Royear, I don’t g;mw what the Congress will _do, but I think
the recommendation made by the [President should not prevail. 1
think revenue foregone is something that should continue to be
subsidized, and that the problem you just described is not a prob-
lem for any particular organization. ;
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In the event we're successful in restoring that expenditure, do
you think it is possible for these organizations to come to some un-
derstanding and start a program such as the one that we have de-
scribed? , .

“Mr. Hutron. Yes, it is, Mr. Chairman. We've already worked on
similar type things, and with a certain amount of encouragement,
and if we could get some help, we can do it—we funded a Project
Energy Care, for example, to help sign people up for low-income
energy assistance. ) ) o o

~Mr. Rovsar. Mr. Driggs, do you have anything you can add to
that? Is there a possibility that something can be done?

~ We know that the present system has failed. What can we do to
improve the situation? o L

Mr. Driggs. Mr. Chairman, I think you struck on it in putting
this particular project together. To have some credibility when 1

went to the Ad Council, 1 literally organized the kinds of groups
that you talked about. We got the support of the National Gover-
nors’ Association, and the National Association of Counties, Confer-
ence of Mayors, League of Cities, American Public Welfare, Salva-
tion Army, Catholic Charities, United Way, the National Council of
Churches, maay organizations already. ) o ,

For instance, the Salvation Army now has in its hands in the 42
major locations in the country 86,000 of these brochures. )
~ The American Association of Retired Persons has just ordered an
initial quantity of 10,000. ) ,

So this networking that you talk about is not only feasible, it ac-
tually is beginning to work as far as this particular piece is con-
cerned. So I think we’re just on the cutting edge of implementing
the kind of thing you're talking about. )

‘Mr. PanNETTA. Thank you very much. The Chair recognizes Mr.
McCain. ) ) o )

Mr. McCain. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. And thank you, Mr.
Hutton, for your very important testimony today. o

I really think you achieved something rather remarkable. I'm
ﬁfg, when you embarked on this project they told you it could not
e aone.

. Have you found that this lack of knowledge concerning the avail-
ability of these programs is uniform throughout the country, or is

it certain parts of the country that there is less knowledge on

availability? o 7 7 7

Mr. Drigas. This is interesting. We know from studies about
nonparticipation that the problem of nonparticipation of thoze eli-
gible is greatest in the South significantly, and there again, com-
munication, information, it is not—it’s a moderate problem in the
Northeast and Midwest, less of a problem in the West.

However, we're finding that the telephone calls now in response
to the public service announcements seem to be coming somewhat
uniformly across the country, but it is early to judge because these
spots run at the whim of the media as to whenever they want to
run it, but we’ll be able to tell after a 6-month period to a year,
and match response to the availability of the information. And I
think tl;atfwill%?e of some use to congressional committees.

Mr. McCan. I'd just like to follow up a little bit on what Chair-
man Roybal talked about. What more can we do to encourage pri-
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vate sector involvement? What more can the Congress do? And
what more can the agencies themselves do, and agencies such as
represented by Mr, Hutton? ) )

Mr. Drigas. Well, I think that the very fact that the Ad Council
took on this project, it is somewhat unique. If you .examine what
the Ad Council has projected in the 40 years of their existence,
they have rarely, if ever, taken on a social welfare related issue
like the Food Stamp Program. A Iot of people just didn’t think they
would do it. ) o

. But it is having good response. The Ad Council seems to be get-
ting a lot of good attention by the fact that they have taken this
on. So that personifies—the Ad Council personifies private sector
participation. ) ] )

_ S0 I think we can learn a good deal from what is happening with
this particular project, and it may be that these kinds of things can
be further translated into other areas. So it will work.

Mr. McCain. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Ligarroor. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Just two quick points.
. Mr. Driggs, you mentioned in your testimony about the pride
factor, that this kept some people from asking for food stamps, and
so on. We foresee that to be something that predominates in our
part of the country, in the Midwest. ) )

A good example, we put together a care and share project de-
signed to put food into the food pantries, which was no age limit
for it. We discovered there were a number of elderly people who
were benefiting from that, and one lady in particular who was
brought to our office. To see her on the street you'd have no indica-
tion that she had any kind of a problem at all. But her husband
had passed away, and her tradition she'd paid all of her bills. As a
result, she was left with basically no money. Her home was neat,
clean. She was neat and clean. But when we went to her house we
found she had one blanket that she hung in the doorway durirg
the daytime and covered up with it at night. And was a matter of
pride that she had not gone to someone and asked for help.

Do you think that the way tkese ads are put together that they

will appeal to that sense of pride, that will get people who may oth-
erwise, for whatever reason, basic pride, would not come and ask
for food stamps, and so on, they will do that? Do you think you've
found a key in your advertising? )
__Mr. Drigas. Yes. The ad ency was very concerned about that.
No. 1, we knew that we calfls 1 never have sold the Ad Council on
doing this project to combat pride and stigma. That’s too indirect.
But they very carefully cast the program, and the wa; they put all
of the ads, and the pamphlet, and everything together, to get at
this issue of negative public perception of the program because that
is what causes this pride, stigma. It's an attempt to, in effect, say
to people, look, if you're suffering from hard times, you've paid
your dues, you've paid your taxes. No one should be ashamed of
taking advantage of a specific Federal program at a time when
they’re suffering from that criteria. S )

So, those who have seen the television commercial believe that

the advertising experts carefully have done this. Not only saying,
look, if you need information, get it, but they’ve done it in a way
that over time we’ll combat the pride stigma issue by improving
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general public perception and appreciation of the Food Stamp Pro-
 Mr. LigatrooT. You mentioned you'd raised almost a half million
dollars—$190,000—and vou're concerned with continuing financing
enough money to keep the phone bank going.

Do you have an estimate of what that might cost?

Mr. Dricas. Well, the telephone cost now runs—it’s $1.20, 5 cents
for a label, 15, 20 cents for an envelope, and it goes out first-class
mail. We're getting up close to about $1.50, $1.40, $1.45, to process
and get this piece of information in the hands of a person who

 So if we're running at the rate of 1,000 calls a day, we may get
350,000 calls in a year, that might affect with households, maybe
you're reaching 1 million people. And you would reach them for
$300,000 or $400,000, a little more than that. ,

So we're not talking about a great deal. Private corporations at
this point have come up with this amount of money, and I'm sure
that they'll respond up to the ability of someone asking them. At
some peint that may just realistically run out of steam and for an
ongoing program this is something that we needed to look at.

Mr. LicaTroor. I want to applaud you for doing this. I think it’s
an excellent approach. I think I've got a little bias here, but I per-
sonally think that probably as long as you raise private money and
use it, you'll get a lot more bang for the buck than if you get Fed-
eral money involved in it because we tend to—it will probably cost
us §6 for what you're doing for $1.50, if history bears fruit.

So 1 would encourage you to continue with that, and probably
the American people, I think, would support it, as they realize the
need is there, and that you're doing something.

I want to compliment both of you on the work you have done.
Thank you.

Mrs. Bentley. ) ) )

Mrs. BenTLEY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Chairman, before
I begin with my questions, I would like to point out the first panel-
ist, Senator Roselle Abrams from the State of Maryland, is doing
an outstanding job as a State senator, and as director of the Mary-
land State Ciffice of Aging. . 7

I also want to commend Mr. Hutton and Mr. Driggs for what
theylare dcing in their efforts in advertising on behalf of elderly
people.

Yesterday I had a hearing on aging in my district, and one of the
suggestions made, was that the rules be changed so that we could
have an HMO—Hesalth Maintenance Organization—just for the el-
derly, which would help where the HMO could devote its efforts to
nutrition and the things that the elderly need, rather than having
them spread their talent and staff out among all ages. That would
be better. Do you have any opinion on that at all? )

Mr. Hurton. I heard it discussed before, Ms. Bentley, and the
issues raised against it were just strictly that, in fact, the elderly
people need three times more hospitalization than do people who
are younger, and that consequently, it’s a much more expensive op-
eration than one which is mixed to carry young, middle aged, and
. elderly. You're spreading the risk through a lot more people. You
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have a great deal of risk if you're only using the elderly people who
have such heavy, and sometimes longer, incidences of illness.

But there’s nothing wrong with it, to my mind. I think it’s a very

rood—TI think the saving would be there in terms of specialists in
geriatic medicine; in terms of the availability of the right kind of
drug medicine to advise for older people; the right kind of exer-
cises. All this would be improved if our doctors knew more about
the health care for older people, but they don’t. And perhaps an
HMO, which specifically does that, would be a good idea.

It’s certainly worth trying in a major center, for example, in the
city like Baltimore. To have at least one, to try it out there, and
several cities throughout the country, would be a good idea.

Mrs. BENTLEY. Do it as a pilot program. )

You speak about the lack of targeting of nutrition services for

the past several years. With the reauthorization of these programs
coming in the future, what changes would imi make in title ITI so
that nutrition services would be getting to those in need?
. Mr. Hurron. For myself, I'd like to pass that one to Ms. Kassner,
but one thing I would like to mention—we've had a great deal of
assistance in putting these things in Social Security offices. I'm
frightened by the administration’s aim to cut out 700 Social Securi-
ty offices across the country. I think that would be devastating to
older people, and certainly would limit, restrict the transferrance
of information like this. )

I think about many older people, for example, whose Social Secu-
rity is even now hit by machines that break down, incorrect addi-
tions in their Social Security payments, what are they going to do
to get those things corrected, and how long it takes to get them cor-
rected, is fantastic. And to cut out those offices would be scandal-
ous at this time when the age of older people is increasing, and
where we’re having many more older people to deal with.

Mrs. BenTLEY. Thank you. o )
. Ms. Kassner. With regard specifically to the congregate and
home delivered meals programs, one of the problems is that when
these programs are already serving to capacity, and have waiting
lists, there is no way that they can add more low-income people to
the programs. ) . . N

We certainly recognize the need for these programs to serve all
older people because there are people who are not absolutely at the
poverty line who also benefit very greatly fromn both congregate
meals and home delivery of meals. , )

In addition, the home delivered ,meals program is being put
under incredible stress right now with the institution of the diag-
nostic-related groups system. For more people, there is considerable
evidence of leaving the hospital with greater need for inhome serv-
ices, and meals, of course, are a very important component of that
service. If there is not funding allocated for those programs, we're
going to see the people going back into the hospital when they
cannot maintain themselves in the home. ) ) )

So it really is not cost-effective not to provide additional funds
for these meal programs.

Mrs. BENTLEY. Thank you. o . o

Mr. PaNerrA. Thank you, Mrs. Bentley, and thanks to L.th of
you, and particularly I want to thank the National Couneil of
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Senior Citizens for the help that was given to us in the food stamp

bill last year, and food security bill. With your help I think we

were able to accomplish some of the benefit changes that are work-

ing now.

R Mgd Hurron. Thank you, Chairman Panetta and Chairman
oy

Mr. Panerra. The next panel is Adelaide Carpenter, and Dr.
Lipschitz, David Lipschitz.

Ms. Adelaide Carpenter iz from, I think, Mr. Lightfoot’s area,
and I would like to call on Mr. Lightfoot for her introduction.

Mr. LicarFoor. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

To the members of the Aging and Hungry Committees, at this
time I'd like to welcome Adelaide Carpenter from Coon Rapids, IA.
Adelaide iz here today to tell us about her experience with the
Polic County elderly feeding project.

Adelaide has a long record of voluntary service. In fact, starting
back in 1966 she has shared her enthusiasm, her time, and her
energy mth DthEI‘E who have been less fa“tunate She has been a
an RSVP volunteer in Des Mnmes, TA. Most recently she has been
a volunteer for the Commodity Supplemental Food Program.

Besides delivering needed commodities to senior citizens, Ade-
laid= also provides them with companionship. When you have an
opportunity to meet her you'll understand that to many of them
this is one of the few contacts they have with other people, and
look forward to it with great antlclpatmn In many cases, the time
that Adelaide spends with them visiting means almost as much as
the food that she delivers.

Wlth that I mtmdut;e tcs you Adelaide Carpenter, someone who

Thank you, Adelaide.

Ms. CaArPENTER. Thank you very much.

Mr. FANETTA. 'ﬂiaﬂk you very much. Ms. Carpenter, if you cuuld
just wait a second, we're going to introduce Dr. Lipschiiz, and we'll
have you both give your testimony and do questions.

Dr. David Lipschitz is director of the Geriatic Research Educa-
tion Clinical Center at the John McClellan Memorial VA Hospital
in Little Rock, AR, and, incidentally, I think Congressman Ham-
merschmidt wanted to be here to welcome you, Doctor, from Ar-
kansas, but is currently participating in another congressional
hearmg

He’s also—Dr. Lipschitz is also head of the division on aging at
the University of Arkansas for Medical Sciences, and sits on many
State and Nationsal geriatic research committees. He will testify on
the health consequences of hunger among the elderlfr from the per-
spective of his own practice, research, and scientific literature.

Ms. Carpenter, if you would prm:eed now with your testimony.
STATEMENT QF ADELAIDE f' ‘RPENTER VOLUNTEER PDLK

Ms. CARPENTER Chalrmaﬂ Pa.rae;.ta Chmrman Roybal EIld mem-
bers of the committee. Thank you for allowing me to come and
have this opportunity to talk to you about the Elderly Food Com-
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modity Program. I hope you all can hear me. Since I came this far
I want you to hear what irhave to say. , )

. I have been working with the elderly food project since it started
in 1982. I went to work with this project because I heard the direc-
tor speak to a 1e%islative advocacy group that I belonged to, and I
tell you, these places need good communication. She talked to a
group of about 40 people, and Imany of us were interested in help-
ing with the project that she described know that Des Moines, IA,
was full of elderly people who were hungry. ,

And so at that time I agreed to come and work at any ing
except sitting in an office shuffling papers. So, my first work with
the commodity program was delivering the 46 pounds of commod-
ities which consisted of dry, and canned food commodities, plus the
butter and cheese, if it was needed.

And, I would like to take you all with me on some of my trips
into the homes. ) )

. I came as a volunteer to give you a personal idea of what some of
these places were like, and the ople were like. I'd like to have
you all just march with me an go back to Iowa with me, and
travel some of the places I've been 80 you can really see for your-
self. But since I can’t do that, I'm going to try and describe some of
fg;gd trips into the homes of the people who were really in need of
004,

Each of the places that I went to involved personal communica-
tion with the clients in the home..I sat at the table with them, I
looked into their eyes, and sometimes I saw the pain of those
having to accept welfare. Indeed, many of them could not keep
t?a:s from their eyes as they described their hardships and strug-

I know that some of these peg ple are getting food stamps; others
were getting Meals on Whee]g;eo and oftentimes many of t hem were
trying to save portions of that noon meal so that they might have
something for the next meal, or for the weekend. ) )

I would like to have you go with me on one of my first trips, and
I'm sure you already know that I'm not going to stick tight to
what's on this paper, . .

One of my first trips delivering commodities was to a very small
cottage with peeling paint. It was on an unsurfaced street with no
curb or gutter. It was my first stop of the day, and I had 46 pounds
of commodities in two big boxes. Wh,lv;? Because I couldn’t carry 46
gaunds in one trip by myself over the snow and the ice, which I
ad to go across.

After knocking hard at the door, and waiting for some time,
Bessie, age 86, came to the door and she opened the door with one
hand and hung onto her walker with the other. She was really
happy .to see me, and I should say that she is a person who is
always called before anyone goes with the commodities, so she
knew someone was coming, . ) )

She was real happy, and she smiled, and just thought it was
great to have me come in not Jjust because I had food, but because
she knew I would stay and taik to her for a while. )

After getting the two large boxes into her kitchen, I sat down
across from her at her small kitchen tabie. She, of course, looked at
everything as I went through the packages, which I always did so
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they would understand what they were getting, and possible ways
to use it if they didn’t know how. And she asked “how do you use
tlﬁasgr dried eggs? I'm not sure about farina either. How do you use
that?”

1 answered her questions, and she wanted me to put things as I
talked about them into her cupboard. And I really felt like old
Mother Hubbard. I went to her cupboard and it was mostly bare.
There was a bit of canned milk, and there were two cans of corn in
this cupboard. As I put the things in her cupboard she kept talking
to me about what she was going to do with them. So I listened to
her problems, and I listened to her fears, and she watched me put
them away. N ) ) ) ,

Her $289 Social Security check wasn’t allowing for anything
other than the bare necessities. And without energy assistance, and
help from the board of supervisors on her real estate taxes, along
mtﬁ the commodities, she couldn’t have made it.

Go with me on another visit. I went to a second floor apartment
above a long, long empty business place. Hannah, partially blind,
called for me to come up when I pushed her buzzer at the bottom
of the stairway, a cluttered, filthy place. She told me to come up. I
did. The apartment that she was in was very, very tiny. It didn’t
have much furniture, but much stuff and junk piled on what there

was.

She finally did get a chair cleared for me to sit on, and we talked
about the commodities. They had to be kept on the floor because
her kitchen was only an old clothes closet, and if any of you have
been—I'm sure you remember some of your early homes, the clos-
ets were not very big. I helped her go through the packages be-
cause she was partialty blind. I wanted her to feel them so that she
would know the dried eggs from the instant potatoes. And that she
would understand what was in each package that she was getting.

Can you imagine what the commodities meant to her?

On yet another delivery to a homebound, a 93-year-old lady, who
answered—I should say 93-years-young really—she came to the
door and first thing she said, because it was a cold snowy day, she
said, “oh, I was afraid you wouldn’t make it today.” So I just said
that the wind helped me along, and that I did have two boxes of
goodliea for her. ’

el -

£o after they were out on the kitchen table, she was anxious to
lock them over, and she chattered, “do you know what I'm going to
eat tonight? That farina. I really like it, and if there are raisins,
I'm going to put a handful of raisins in it.” She went on. “I really
%e to cook my own meals because then I can eat what I really

e,

And then she looked at the dried eggs, and she felt the bag, and
she said, “at first I never thought I'd use that stuff, but I've
learned they aren’t so bad if you doctor them up a little bit.” And
Eﬁéﬂ %he did say, “but I resliv miss seeing the hens and hearing

em.

1 listened to her as I got all of the commodities I could on the
shelves, and then she looked up and said, “please don’t close the
door. I want to look at them a while.” )

Would you like to look at your wives’ cupboards and see them
bare? Who can guess how Bessie felt.
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Now go with me on a certification visit. And a certification visit
is one the people have never had commodities, and they have to be
certified by making out a lengthy legal-sized application, three
sides of it need to be filled out. ) )

I went to visit Lizzie, Lirzie knew for some time that other
people were getting commodities because she lived in a low rent
subsidized housing apartment, and the other people had said to her
“Lizzie, you really qualify for the commaodities. Why don’t you
apply?” And she just couldn’t make up her mind that she should
have welfare. It really hurt her because she had been a cook. She
had been a cook in & great big place out at—in Colorado, and she
loved cooking, and she had always made her living. She was now
helping take care of a 60-some-year-old son, and, oh, she didn't
want to do this. But she finally got to the place where she decided
she had to do something. And 80 she at 87 walked the 2 miles down
to the warehouse where the office is, and when she got there it was
on one of those days when the parking lot was jammed, and the
office was so full of people that there was no way that anyone on
the staff could stop and explain to her the program and help her in
any way. . )

And so the director of the program, who is a very conscientious,
wonderful person, and a very good administrator, told her that
they had someone they would send out the next day to help her
make out an application at home.

So I went the next day to her place, and the first thing she asked
me was “I want to know all the rules and regulations about the
program because I don’t want to do anything wrong.”

, 50, I explained the makeup of the program, and by listening to
her, and asking questions, I knew that she would more than qual-
ify according to all the requirements of the program. _

So I described all of the commodities that she would be getting if
she was accepted, and she kept talking as I told her about this.
And when I said fruit juice, she said, “oh, we haven’t had any for
months”, meaning her son too. And peanut butter? She said,
“that’s way too expensive for us.” o
_ Her son, who was sitting in a chair at the side of the room,
wasn’t able to get around very well, but he sat and he listened, and
when she gaid that about the fruit juice and peanut butter, his eyes
just grew. And then he looked over at me and he said, “my mom’s
a real good cook if she just has something to cook with.” )

Their combined monthly income was below the level for one. So
they both qualified, but because the Program’s quota was frozen,
and everybody that they were serving was over—was willing to be
over the number of the 4,200, I couldn’t tell her that they would be
Igiitttlg’ the commodities. I had to say, “you will be put on a waiting
ist.”

How do you think I felt? And how do you think she felt?

.. In some ways she was—she wasn’t surprised becauvse in one way
it was going to give her a chance to really accept this fact that she
was going to have a welfare, as she caﬁ'ed it, the term that she
used. And I told her she needed them, she deserved them, she
sil;’;if;iuld have them, she had paid taxes, she had done all of these
things. ’
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And so since the program was frozen, and we had 500 eligibles
still on a waiting list, I don’t know when she’ll get on, but I hope
she does. What can I do, and what can you do?

1 can go on, and on, and on, and take you with me into homes
that I'm sure would make your eyes open and your heart ache just
a little bit. But, I am not going to do that. I'll be glad to answer
questions later. But I believe seeing is believing. )

As you can tell, I really am enthusiastic about the program. I've
been in the homes. I've touched these people. And I have listened
to them. And I have seen what the commeodities can do. I have sat
and talked over how they can cook with the cookbook that I take
them. How they can cook and use all of the commodities that they
have. That they can take their dry milk, they can fix it with water,
and they can add a few drops of lemon juice and have a good
whipped topping. I told them about the nutrition of the meals that
they can make with these. )

So I know that if you could go with me you'd probably feel the
same as I do, but you can’t do that. But I do hope that you will
think about how you can do something for this elderly food project.
Des Moines, IA, Detroit, and New Orleans have demonstrated the
value of the program, and inat the volunteer system does work.
Now it's up to Congress. )

I know, or I hope I know. that you will not disappoint me, and
my many friends back in Iowa. Friends that I have made serving
the program, and friends that need a helping hand.

Thank you. I'll be glad to answer any questions.

RespoNsSES TO QUESTIONS FOR ADELAIDE CARPENTER

QUESTIONS SUEMITTED BY HON. LEON FANETTA

Question. Last week, Mr. Leard from the Office of Food and Nutrition Services at
USDA testified that the Commodity Supplemental Food Program for the elderly is
duplicative of other Federal nutrition programs. From your experience in the com-
munity, does CSFP provide food and nutrition assistance to a population that is not
served by other elderly nutrition programs? ) . .

Answer. I firmly believe that CSFP has provided very unique food and nutritional
assistance to the elderly. With the commodities received and the nutri guid-
ance given by the volunteers they can prepare their own meal—and just the way
they like it. Most of the clients are not able to get out and take advantage of the
other programs. ) )

Question. Mr. Leard also indicated the Department is not supportive of expansion
on CSFP for the elderly. We know that they have transferred $3.95 million out of
the account and are working on legislation to bring that money back to CEFF for
program expansion. What is USDA telling your program manager about the avail-

ability of funds to maintain or expand the caseload?

Answer. Wait—wait—until final decisions are made.

Question. Why do you believe that CSFP is a low-cost food assistance program for
the Federal Government? i o

Answer. I know it is because of the assistance of the many volunteers—some 250
in Des Moines.

Question. Over the last 4 years as your program caseload has expanded, did you
receive adequate funds for the administration of that expansion? o

Answer. As a veolunteer I am not aware of all the administration problems but I
do know that several staff people put in many extra hours at work, especially the
program manager and the director of volunteers. Dedicated volunteers see a need

and work hard to fill gaps.
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QUESTIONS SUBMITTED BY HON. MICKEY LELAND
, Question. 1 understand that all of the CSFP's for the elderly have long waiting
lists. How long is your waiting list currently? B o .
Answer. There are approximately 500 applicants on the Des Moines waiting list.
Question. 1 understand that you no longer conduct program outreach. Could you
please explain why you have discontinued this?

Answer. Because it js almost tragic to advise needy people that their name will be
put on a waiting list that long I did not continue going into homes to help make out
the lengthy certification PADErs.

[The prepared statement of Ms. Carpenter appears at the conclu-
sion of the hearing, see p. 7 1]

Mr. PaneTTAa. Thank you, Ms. Carpenter.

The Chair now recognizes Dr. Lipschitz,

STATEMENT OF DAVID LIPSCHITZ, M.D., DIRECTOR, GERIATRIC
RESEARCH EDUCATION AND CLINICAL CENTER, JOHN L.
McCLELLAN MEMORIAL VETERANS HOSPITAL, LITTLE ROCK,
AR
Dr. Lirscurrz. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. Thank you

for allowing me the opportunity to testify. ) , ,
Do we as physicians see the complication of hunger in our hospi-

tals? The sag answer is yes. ) )

_In the Third World protein calorie malnutrition is a disease of
children. In this country it occurs most frequently, if not exclusive-
ly, in the elderly. Even in the elderly, malnutrition usually occurs
in individuals who have coexisting diseases such as cancer or infec-
tion, which suppresses the appetite and alters metabolism so that
malnutrition develops. )

Not uncommonly, however, elderly subjects come to the hospital
with ever-increasing frequency with Primary protein calorie malnu-
trition that directly results from an Inadequate intake of food.

A classic example of such a case is Mr.—whom I .will call Mr. Joe
Smith, a distinguished World War I veteran from a small town in
Arkansas, 84 years of age, lives by himself, who has no relatives
living close by. He ate meat once weekly, and persisted mainly on
cereal. One day he was found, confused, in his room by a neighbor.
He was admitted to our Veterans’ Administration hospital. He was
confused, dehydrated, and he had an infection, and was grossly un-
derweight. 7 , ]

Fortunately, we recognized that this neglected man was pro-
foundly malnourished. He was treated appropriately, and after a
42-day stay in the hospital, was entered into an independent living
program with other individuals of the same age, and he still 3
years later is leading a productive life. ) - ,

Patients don’t come to hospitals saying “Doctor, I'm starving,
please help me.” Rather, the present with complications of malnu-
trition; namely, infection, de ydration, and confusion. ,

Most health care professionals are poorly trained in nutrition,
and it is an unfortunate fact that the diagnosis of malnutrition is
frequently overlooked, and often missed. This often results in disas-
trous consequences. ) ) )

Frequently these subjects require 6 or more weeks of hospitaliza-
tion. They often require feeding through a special tube that is
placed through their nose and into their stomach; and essential to
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their management is a comprehensive economic, social, and medi-
cal evaluation that insures that the problem does not recur.

I would like to specifically focus on the special challenges for the
future. I cannot overemphasize the importance of research in un-
derstanding the complex interaction between nutrition and aging,
and approaches to preventing serious nutritional deficiencies from
developing. o )

This research should include basic biomedical approaches, but
also psychosocial and community studies that address the very core
of the problem.

There is a great need for more emphasis on nutrition education
for physicians and all other health care professionals, and also a
need for the health care community to develop an understanding of
the special problems of older Americans. 7 )

The special additional challenge is the change in the way in
which we are practicing medicine. Providing 6 to 8 weeks of reha-
bilitation in an acuie care facility is no longer an option under the
disease-related group reimbursement guidelines.

The Veterans’ Administration has provided, I believe, a leader-
ship role for the Nation in intermediate and long-term care reha-
bilitation for the geriatric patient. These programs have clearly
been shown to be cost-effective by minimizing the need for institu-
tionalization or nursing home placement, and preventing recurrent
admissions to hospital. o

This model of geriatric rehabilitation has unfortunately not been
extensively developed in the general medical community. There is
clearly, in my opinion, a need to develop intérmediate care hospital
beds where elderly subjects with nutritional and other problems
can be cared for in a cost-effective manner. This concept of short-
term, long-term care is one that cannot be overemphasized.

An additional major need is to assure that compromised older in-
dividuals who are likely to have nutritional and other problems,
have easy access to community support services. )

As you have heard already, and I'm sure you’ll hear more of,
there are certain issues with regard to community support that re-
quire urgent attention. ) .

It is apparent to me, and all the other witnesses, that there are a
large number of neglected elder citizens in communities across
America who either are unaware, or who for various reasons are
unable to become eligible for urgently required nutritional and
other support services. ]

Finally, I must add that I believe that the solution to the medical
predicament of hunger in elderly individuals involves a restructur-
ing of our medical and social priorities. By paying attention to the
health and welfare of older individuals, and by assuring their con-
tinued productivity, we will minimize the opportunities for creating
nutritional deficiencies, and hopefully by a process of disease pre-
vention and health promotion, minimize the need for expensive
medical resources. o o

A preventative approach to disease will also hopefully substan-
tially improve the quality of life of older Americans, and allow
them to remain independent on the community for as long as possi-
ble. Thank you.
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[The prepared statement of Dr, Lipschitz appears at the conclu.
sion of the hearing, see p. 73.]

Mr. Roveal. Thank you, Doctor. B , )

Ms. Carpenter, I'd like to start off by examining a little furthey
some of the points that have arisen. from your testimony.

But before I do that, I would like to compliment you on your
hard work in helping to get essential nutrition assistance to those
that are most in need. ) ) ) .

Are you aware of any homebound and isolated senior citizens in

your area that you cannot serve at this time due to insufficient
funding?
Ms. CARPENTER, That’s right. The number that could be served
was frozen at 4,200, and I believe if you would go through Velma
Flisher’s testimony, Velma is the director of the program. It has al]
of these facts in it. It was frozen at 4,200 when we had assumed it
was going to be 5,000, 7

Mr. RoveaL. So the need then ji——

Ms. CARPENTER. The need is there. ,

, 2%\61; RoveaL. The need is to save 5,000 but you can only serve
4,200?7
Ms. CARPENTER. 4,200. I understand

s just within the last several
weeks that they have been informed that the braject is going to
become a program like the butterand cheese, which would allow it
to go all over the United States, like the butter and cheese, -

But it has to be, and this is me of the restrictions, if they—if
fome organization, or some county decides they would like to take
it on in another State, it has to be & place that already is serving
CSFP. They have to have one in tperation. If they can, then they
will be%allowed to start the commodities for the homebound elderly
over o,

Mr. Rovear. Well, first of all——- ) o

Ms. CARPENTER. If that happened, then Des Moines could go way
over 5,000. o ) o o

_Mr. RoveaL. So, in other words it could be higher but based on
the figure of 5,000 there are at Jesst 800 elderly in your area who
esnnot_?bg served due to insufficient funding and resources? Is that
correct?

Ms. CARPENTER. That's correct. According to the 1980 census fig-
ures, Polk County has approximately 11,000 low-income elderly. Ac-
tually, the figure that they were authorized to serve was 4,102 in-
stead of the 4,200. B

Mr. RoyBAL, Ms=. Carpenter, what I was interested ia was not
necessarily statistics, but your experience. Based on your experi.
ence, how many senior citizens do you believe were not being
served due to insufficient funding and resources? Is the correct
figure in that case still about 2007

Ms. CArPENTER. That's right. Now—— ) )

Mr. RoyBar. Now, in the other pnel we were told that individ.
uals were not participating in the Fvod Stamp Program.

_Is it your experience that older individuals have low participa-
tion rates in the Food Stamp Program? o
. Ms. CARPENTER. It is very small. Paxt of that is because the Food
Stamp Program, the people that Ihave been to who have been on
it have been getting about $10 in food stamps, and it means they
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have to g0 out to a place, make out the applications, and transpor-
tation foy t=&hese homebound people is tough. And they do not like—
the older eople do not like to go out begging for someone to do
this and t0 © do that for them. And so a lot of them will say if I only
get $10 it i=="sn’t worth it. )

Mr. RovisrsaL. Thank you, Ms. Carpenter. o

[The preg=pared statement of Ms. Flisher appears at the conclusion
of the hear—=ing, see p. 78.] B B

Mr. Rove—sar. I'd like to ask the Doctor a question regarding his
statement = that the highest prevalence of protein calorie malnutri-

tion is in hemospitalized elderly patients. -

You go 0zon to say that most evidence suggests that at least 65 per-
cent of eldeferly individuals admitted to hospitals have a serious nu-
tritional pr—eroblem. o , )

‘So they'rrre admitted to the hospital with a problem of malnutri-
tion. How &-do they leave the hospitals? With the same problem?

Dr. LisccecHTrz. Well, I would say that that is variable. If you're a
veteran in  a Veterans' Administration hospital that has a lot of re-
sources, th.me chances are the comprehensive programs to _optimize
nutritional 11 and other help is available, so that they may leave ap-
propriately e . o

In mogt communities, however, those options are not available.

I might mention that in the vast majority of older individuals
who presetmt to hospital with malnutrition, they do have a coexist-
uﬁ serioi==s medical problem that is often not completely correct-
able.

But evene— then if a medical problem is not terminal, paying atten-
tion to theseir nutritional needs can clearly improve the quality of
their remazamining life. ,

“Mr. Rov—=BAL. But their medical problem is compounded by the
fact that tthey are suffering a malnutrition?

Dr. LivscecHrTZ. That's true. )

Mr. Rove—eaL. Doctor, do the hospitals make any attempt to try to
correct the=e= problem so that when the person leaves the hospital he
or stfr;?i ;la beoetter taken care of nutritionally than before he was ad-
mit = & )
~ Dr. LipsomcHrTZ. I would say my answer is it varies from hospital to
hospital. T"What in some places that are attuned to these particular
problemy, - the patient is likely to have those particular issues ad-
dressed. Jnry the vast majority of communities, however, that is not

the case,

Mr. Ror—zBaAL. So that in the vast majority of communities, if the
patient cotz=mes into the hospital with a nutrition problem he or she
leaves the - hospital with the same malady?

Dr. LipsoscHrrz. That’s correct.

Mr. Roy==gaAL. Mr. Lightfoot. o o

Mr. Ly¢e=aTroor. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Before I ask ques-
tions, I'd T like a unanimous-consent request that members be al-
lowed to preut their opening statements in the record.

Mr. Ror—=saL. Without objection, it will be ordered.

Mr. Ligererroor. Thank you. ) , .

Mes. Cargr-penter, you have worked as a volunteer delivering food to
a lot of p==eople who need it. In earlier testimony we were talking
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about some of the factors that keep people from sking who have a
genuine need. ) 7 ] ]

No. 1, do you feel that's a fair perception? Ar there a lot of
people that really do have a genuine need but forvhatever reason
they don’t participate, don’t ask?

Ms. CARPENTER. 1 definitely feel that way. 7

M;- LicaTroor. How can we get to them then, Iguess is the ques-
tion?

Ms. CARPENTER. I stayed long enough to get tht dispelled, that
feeling. Hopefully when I have gone out I havelen able to stay
and visit with those people long enough that they determine I be-
lieve I want them; I will make out the applicatin. But it is true.
Many of them have never had to ask for help. )

. Sometimes they don’t want the people in their neighborhood to
know that they’re getting help. So there are faclms that do keep
many of them from asking. B )

Mr. LicaTrFooT. You've been working basicallyin Des Moines,

which is an urban area. As we get out into the smiller communi-
ties, and out into the rural areas, we have more pblems with dis-
tance, and these types of things. There also seemst) be more of a
reluctance to participate in these types of programs

Ms. CARPENTER. Tﬁat"s true too. )

Mr. Licarroor. How do we reach them? How dowe get the mes-
sage that it’s there, and if they have a need they should ask?

Ms. CArPENTER. I think that it in the small conmunities if you
can find the right people—now, that isn’t going tobe easy because
it has to be someone that can go, I feel, and visit vith these people
personally. o ) .

. Like in the town that I live in of 1,400, if I—and I know the
hungry people—instead of calling them up and saging “Why don’t
you go and do this?” I would go and sit down withthem and visit
with them. I'm very much a person that believes alwk in the face
is better than haj,:;ngng them a piece of paper and saying fill it out.

But that’s a major, major task to get that done. =

Mr. LigHTFOOT. In your opinion, i8 it just the pou elderly people
that are in this situation, or do we find people who Eassi’bly are not
that short on means but due to whatever reason their nutritional
level is not where it should be? 3 ) )

_ Ms. CArPENTER. I find many people who are livingat a level that
I might say is satisfactory, and is serving them inamediocre way,
and they are getting commodities. And hopefully it's making a
better life for them. The aren’t all way down atthe $289 Social
Secun% level, or the $312. Is that what you meant! B

. .Mr. Ligarroor. You also mantioned—if I could bucktrack just a
bit, the idea of finding an individual, someone in a0mmunity, an
entity to be a contact point or volunteer, whatewver, to work with
people. It’s obvious that you have been very activeln doing that.
Do you think we have people like that in communities that are
willing to volunteer? Are there enough volunteers ot there to do
this type of thing if we get the message out to them! ,

Ms. CARPENTER. I think if it's hanfed properly yoican get it out
and get it to them. I think—I feel I could g0 to Con Rapids and
get some people to help me to go out and do thisbut I think a
first-hand contact is really important.

ot
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Mr. LigaTFooTr. Thank you. o .

Doctor, one quick questio: (ne thing that we’re really con-
cerned within, rural Amer-unis something you alluded to a
moment ago, particularly thelRG system, which basically is re-
sulting in sicker people being initted to hospitals, and also being
turned out in poorer conditiomithe end of that stay. ]

How much of this is pret:t{ shstract. You may mot be able to
answer this. But how much offle sickness problem, if we want to
put it that way, amongst the dlrly can be traced pretty much di-
rectly to nutrition? In other wis, if they had a good meal, and
they were eating properly, thesymptoms and diseases and so on
wouldn’t necessarily develop, uthey’'d develop at a lesser rate?

Dr. Lipscrrrz. 1 think there'idesperate need for imore study on
the long-term effects of nutridinl changes on how an older person
presents with diseases. But thats no question that either overnu-
trition or undernutrition can ompromise the older person in terms
of his or her diseases. ) o ,

I might also make a point wh regard to the DRG’s, There's no
question that sicker people @nleing sent home earlier, and that
multiple readmissions to hospiilis a serious concern. As a result,
hospitals are going to becomemrre appropriately focused on the
issue of discharge planning, o o

I think the DRG system hazuspreat merit. I think there are holes
in it which could be plugged ljdeveloping long-terrm care options
that allow people who are toowll to stay in an acute care hospital
but too sick to go home to hua transition environment where
they can be rehabilitated. o ) ,
~ And that’s the cLallenge fwrthe future in terms of the medical
isgues and DRG’s. ) ) o

Mr. Licarroor. I guess to fillw up on that, the purpose of the

DRG’s was to get health costsdwn, but now it appears that we've
got a problem with quality. Wedd get the cost Jown, but the qual-
ity has suffered considerably, pricularly, again, I guess the areas
we're most familiar with, rurdireas. We Lave many of our hospi-
tals where there's a very red ssibility they will close because
censuses have gone down and «on.
- At Mrs. Bentley's hearing yairday, it was suggested as a possi-
bility that the hospital could pwide for certain treatments a fune-
tion almost like a ﬁcpt.esli where strictly for an elderly person they
had an early morning operatin procedure. Rather than putting
them in the hospital with all i attendant costs, they could stay
there something like an overnit tyge charge, and so on. )

Do you view; that as maybe= 1jsible answer, or a portion of the
answer? - o )

Dr. Liescerrz. I think the amver to rural America’s health care
needs is to restructure the pzinties; the priorities for those rural
areas are not to provide sopfiticated care, but to provide long-
term continuity of care. ) , ) ) )

I would suggest that at the wrent time those hospitals are not
attuned to long-term care. Welive not trained any physicians in
this country in the whole compt of providing long-term care to
older people who require a lomypriod of hospitalization. .

That's why the geriatric nueltine initiative is so important. We

need doctors throughout this mntry, particularly in private care
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areas, whounderstand B continuity. We need hospitals in rural areas
that are ot concerned’®1 with doing major sophisticated surgical pro-
cedures, but in provid-Hing a Pplace where a person can be close to
their home vhile theyey could perhaps recover from that intensive
procedure thit might H be required, or might be more appropriately

So I thirkin the nesc=xt 4 or 5 years you'll see a complete restruc-
turing of the way in wH-hich health care resources are funneled, and
I hope that vill be a go«ood thing for the system. i

Mr. Licmoor. I tgaf,ﬁ;nk both of you for your excelient testimony.
Thank you, Mr. Chairirenan. ) - )

Mrs. Bevtey, ThankIk you, Mr. Chairman. I want to thank both

members for meking tHhis very important point here today, as I've
been a longtime advoc—ate of the nutrition of all individuals, par-
ticularly theelderly. ) o ,
. Ms. Carpater, we do.o have in Maryland the giveaway program
for the surrinlus of foud_H. I don’t know that we have anybody who
goes around to those thamat are confined to their homes like you do,
and I'm going to check o on it to see. That’s a very commendable pro-
gram for thegged. It's v~wery helpful and important. -

Dr. Lipsthitz, is thesees anything being done by the AMA to train
QE tot?get doctors intere==sted in this long-term ecare you’re talking
about?

Dr. Lapscinz. Once g gain, the major initiative in long-term care,
and I think that really « equates with geriatric medicine, has really
been pioneered by the Vi*eterang’ Administration. )
_We currenly, the Ver=terans’ Administration, trains about 30 to
40 geriatric physicians a=annually. Each of those physicians is like a
first round dwft choice & in a major league sport. He can—he or she
can go anyvhere they i ke in terms of providing a position for him.
50 there relly is a trem=mendous need, and there is an awareness
that there 54 need. Bwzut programs are slowly developing in the
community t address t=#hem. But, in my opinion, there could be
more.

Mrs. Benngy, Prograrsms in the community, more in the local
areas ratherthan in—— - - o
_ Dr. Lescum, Well, 1+ think any major training program should
focus on training their yo—oung doctors and other health care profes-
sionals becauge the key memspect of providing care to older citizens is
that it is a tem approassch, that it is a combined physician-nurse-
social worker and other  health care professional using their com-
bined expertie to appro-opriately and comprehensively assist an
older individul So there = is a need for training in all areas. -
. One of the major Prosggrams that has been set up in about 15
States is the so-called & geriatric education centers which were
funded by the Health Serervices Resource Administration. Unfortu-
nately, the gol of tha Imerogram was to have a geriatric education-
al center in every Stage, COF course, that is not going to happen.

That kind of program a will be very beneficial in providing a
health care network tha@zt understands the special needs of older
Americans. o ) ) ]

Mrs. BenTiy, Do you k=scnow of any of the old medicines have——

Dr. Lipscum, Well, in - your home State of Maryland one of the

most outstanding aging Sgorograms is at Johns Hopkins School of
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Medicine, and there are numbers of good programs nationwide, in-
cluding Arkansas. )

Mrs. BENTLEY. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. HerTEL. I want to thank the panel very much, and I think
the staff will havz some additional questions for you at another
time.

Thank you very much.

I begin by calling the next panel, the third panel up.

First I'd like to introduce Bill Moyer. He’s the director of the
King County Nutrition Program in Seattle, WA. He’s the past
president of the National Association of Nutrition and Aging Serv-
ice Providers. From a local and national perspective, Mr. Moyer
will discuss ways to more effectively use our Federal dollars and
commodities to serve the elderly in need of prepared meals.

I'd like to ask Congresswoman Bentley, please, to introduce Sena-
tor Abrams from Maryland. )

Mrs. BenTLEY. I'm very pleased to do that. As I said a few mo-
ments ago, Mr. Chairman, State Senator Rosalie Abrams has been
an outstanding person in Maryland in political life for the past
years. She is now the director of the Maryland State Office on
Apging.

As a former Maryland senator, and chairperson of the State Fi-
nance Committee, she was responsible for the passage of legislation
establishing community-based services for elderly in Maryland.
And when she was appointed as director of the Office of Aging, her
constituents were very upset about it, but they likewise recognize
the fact that this was a very important position, and knew that she
. would do an cutstanding job as she has. o

Accompanying her is Janet Martin, who directs the elderly in
nutrition services for Maryland, and served on the Governor’s
recent Task Force on Food and Nutrition.

Senator Abrams will provide the committee with information on -
cost-effectiveness, food programs for the elderly, and will focus her
remarks on the particular food needs for the growing population of
homebound elderly.

Welcome, both of you, from Maryland.

Mr. HerTEL. The third person we have on the panel today is Mr.
Suzuki. He is the Associate Commissioner for the Office of State
and Travel Programs at the Administration on Aging. He will pro-
vide the committee with information on the administration of the
title IT-C nutrition programs. ) R

We had invited a representative from the Office of Management
and Budget who oversees the program management of all food as-
sistance programs for the elderly. They declined our invitation.

So I am hoping Mr. Suzuki can offer the committee information
on both the HHS funding and USDA cash and commodities for title
III elderly nutrition programs. )

We've got a vote underway, but let's take a few minutes. Mr.
Moyer, if you could submit your statement for the record, and
begin your testimony at this time. :

o 40
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STATEMENT OF BILL MOYER, DIRECTOR, KING COUNTY
NUTRITION PROJECT, SEATTLE, WA

Mr. Mover. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I have submitted my tes-
timony for the record, and in the interest of brevity, I will only
highlight here. ,

Hunger in America is increasing. All who have examined the
problem in the last 4 years have come 4p with the same inescap-
able conclusion. Hunger is on the rise, and that fact is a direct
result of public social policy that has seen pPrograms cut, appropria-
tions shifted elsewhere, and policies seemingly designed to fail in
combating hunger., , )

Those of us who work in programs to serve the elderly, the con-
gregate and home delivered meals programs, can't keep up with
the need. ) -

Requests to open new congregate sites cannot be honored. And
the impact of DRG’s on the home delivered program has pushed
service requests beyond 30 percent nationally. o )

To help meet this increased need nutrition programs for the el-
derly have increased the number of meals served, despite no in-
crease in Federal dollars in terms of real or constant dollars,

Between 1981 and 1985 meals increased from 188 million nation-
ally, to 225 million nationally. How? The low-income elderly paid
for them. ) ) ) , )

Participant donations have increased in the same 4-year period
of time from $71 to $121 million. There is a limit to how much
longer we can expect low income elderly to shoulder the financial
burden of this program without cutting services.

Hungry older people obviously need your help. There is much
that oversight and legislative committees can do to help alleviate
this problem. . .

You can continue your strong historical support of the USDA
Cash/Commodity Program.

You can continue the National Commodity Processing Contracts
Program. This, as you may know, is a program that allows manu-
facturers of various food products to utilize the surplus commod-
ities, and then to pass the savings onto projects either in the form
of a discounted price, or a rebate, That program was slated for clo-
sure under the current administration last July. It has been ex-
tended, I believe, 1 year, possibly 2, but it needs your protection.

It would be wise for the committee to do what it can to remove
the requirement that only those States that have elected to receive
at least 51 percent commodities versus cash, are eligible to receive
nondairy bonus commodities, such as ground beef, poultry, fruit,
and vegetables that are available. ) ) ,

This is particularly important in view of the fact that there is
going to be an anticipated large surplus of beef made available this
year, and it would be good if we could utilize that product in serv-
ing older people. : o

Related to the first few points, insure that as much flexibility as
possible exists for nutrition projects to benefit from surplus com-
modity foods. To have surplus commodity foods rotting in a ware-
house when we have older people going hungry is senseless.
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You can also simplify the application process for food stamps.
We've heard from other witnesses that few of the elderly partici-
pate in the Food Stamp Program. Another of the reasons that has
not been cited is the very application process itself.

Although much can be done legislatively, if the problem of
hunger is to be seriously addressed, additional funds are necessary.

Congregate and home delivered nutrition programs are good pro-
grams. They are well managed; they effect the nutritional well-
being of those who participate, and they're very well accepted by
the elderly themselves.

We do not need beiter programs. We need better funding for the
programs we have. Over half of the support for the congregate and
home delivered nutrition programs currently come from either the
participants, or from community support in the form of iacilities,
the donation of utilities, equipment, and places to hold the congre-
gate programs.

It’s an excellent example of a public-private partnership, and it
needs to be reinforced.

Mr. HErTEL. Mr. Moyer, we're enjoying your testimony, unfortu-
nately, everyone left because we—there is a vote on. I'm going to
have to go over and vote. I hope to be back. But in any event, the
hearing will continue, and I want to apologize to this panel for the
fact that it is late in the day and we are voting on the House floor.
I apologize to you. We'll take your testimony up, Mr. Moyer, when
we resurne.

[Recess.]

Mr. PaANETTA. The joint committee is back in session. We will
cantmue these hearmgs 1 apologize The longér hearmgs drag out
and that includes myself.

Mr. Moyer, I think you were testifying at the time we concluded.
Did you complete your statement?

Mr. Mover. Mr, Chairman, in the interest of time, I have con-
cluded. I will consider my testimony concluded and defer to the
next witness.

Mr. Panerra. OK. Thank you.

Responses To QUESTIONS FORE BiLi Mover
QUESTIONS SUBMITTED BY HOHN. LEON PANEITA

Question, Congress passed fiscal year 1986 appropriations legislation making
available funds for a 56.76 cent reimbursement rate for each of the 225 million
meals served in fiscal year 1985. I know that the USDA, however, has not adjusted
the reimbursement rate yet. We have now passed an authﬂnmtian bill, signed into
law earlier this month, raising the authorization ceiling to allow for the 56.76 per
meal reimbursement. Stﬂl USDA has not- increased the reimbursement rate for
fiscal year 1986. How ﬂﬂEﬁ this impact on elderly nutrition services currently and
program planning for the future?

Answer. The failure of USDA to increase the per meal reimbursement rate in-
tended by Congress in a timely manner frustrates nutrition program directors, need-
lessly veduces nutrition services for the elderly, and may risk an undetsbitement of
the need for meals and other nutrition services in this country. Currenily, most
States are quoting very conservative per meal reimbursement rates to nutrition
projects, in some cases as low as 40 to 45 cents per meal. At the same time we are
appropriately required to develop balanced annual budgets, The result is that with

- less money, we currently provide less service. While meals have increased national-
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ly. some projects have had to reduce meals. All projects have reduced some nutri-

tion related services to include Qutreach, transportation, and nutrition education,
Progr AT for the future will most assuredly result in reduced mesls.

Most programs have, by now, made every Program efficiency possible, increased par-

ticipant donations to the maximum, if not dangerous, level without dramatically ef-

fecting the participation of target low-income participants, and have made the nutri-

tion service reductions mentioned above. For meals to be reduced as a result of bu-
: i nargy is eruel and disgraceful and must not be tolerated.

propriation was required to allow the established per meal rate, In the recent past,
the rate per meal was reduced resulting in a $7 million loss. A resent USDA is
doing nothing. This approach serves to penalize programs for being successful. I'm
not sure [ understand. ) )

If I have misunderstood your question and if your question is how does the in-
crease in the per meal rate compare {0 the increases in the total meal cost, then 2
would say it is fine. Meal cost, like the USDA reimbursement rate has been fairly
stable in recent vears. o

Question. What recommendations do you have that will both assure s predictable
reimbursement rate per meal at the beginning of each fiscal year and retsain the
current categorical funding status of the program? ) ]

table reimbursement rate per meal at the beginning of each
rylt

Answer. A predi 1
fiscal year and the retention of current categorical funding status for the program

es and should be deslt with separately as they have been for
the past 12 years, despite recent efforts to apparently tie the two together, This is
due to the fact that two separate departmental appropriations are involved. To
insure a predictable reimbursement rate per meal at the beginning of each fiscal
year, set the per meal rate, tie the expenditure to meals served, and appropriate an
amount of funds 20 percent abave USDA's best estimate. To retain the current cata-
gorical funding status of this program, which we wholeheartedly support, simply
continue the Older Americans Act as it was envisioned and as it has been funded

since 1972. This Nation needs model gocial programs that do what they were de-

signed to do. Now that we have one, let's keep it. ) .
Follow-up: How could we incorporate these into legislation? .
Answer. Other than the recommendations already made, I would recommend that

meet this requirement.
 Question. We know that :
ferred cash over commodity rei rsements for meals. Your testimony and infor-

ation Congressman Leland provided from the Texas State Office on Aging indicate
a reversal of this pref

1 reference, Is thia a national trend among elderly nutrition service
providers and could you please explain the change? ]

. Answer. Perhaps [ Presented confusing testimony. There has been no change in
the preference for cash over commodities by nutrition program administrators,
W]‘LI.IP I cannot address Congressman Leland’s position, the national trend is un-
changed. My testimony addressed the support for the national commodity process-
ing contracts and extending the availability of nondairy bonus commodities to
prajects receiving cash, Both could then be participated in by projects without ef-
fectin allocation. Currently N.C.P. products and gefps dairy commod-
itjes : 11 Yy projects receiving total cash reimbursement, However, far great-
er benefit could be realized from commodities by changing regulations and that was

Follow-up: What are the barriers to using commodities versus cash in the elderly
nutrition programs and how might they be alleviated at the administrative and/or
legislative level? .
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 Answer. While I am optimistic for the future, there continues to be a number of
barriers to using commodities. Historically there has been a problem of the appro-
priateness or suitability of the commodity items for the elderly, that is, high sodium
processed beef and cheese, corn syrup, pinto beans, et cetera that made full iza-
tion and therefore benefit impossible. Other problems in utilizing commodities i
lieu of cash include minimum orders from N.C.P. processors; storage, transportation
and other hidden costs to receiving commodities such as minimum in/out charges
per shipment and per case; the unpredictability of items to be available and the un-
predictable arrival times; bureaucratic foul-ups at the State level; last minute take
it or leave it offers; and the problem of attitude due to historical problems in under-
standing USDA policies and utilizing the commodities. Most of these problems, how-
ever, I think could be solved administratively. N i

Finally, I feel I must say that where commodities are used in lieu of cash, the
commodities are essential to the efficient operation of the program. I urge Congress,
again, to pass legislation that allows much flexibility at the project level to elect
cash or commodities and that greater access to existing commodities be made possi-
ble for program directors. o ,

Question. Mr. Hutton earlier recommended that title III nutrition providers
inform eligible participants sbout the Food Stamp and Supplemental Security
Income Programs and assist them in participating. What resources would be neces-
sary to assure that such information and referral occurs.

Answer. Most title IIT nutrition providers are informing participants at present
about Food Stamp and Sll,pplémé't&!i Security Income Programs and most, if not all,
nutrition providers accept food stamps as a donation to the meal program. The in-
formational proceas may be to inform the participant as to where to go to have eligi-
bility determined, inviting representa into congregate nutrition sites to inform
cipants of the programs and direct assistance on behalf of the participant. Un-

ortunately, aggressive outreach, advocacy, referral, and follow-up services have

been progressively reduced or eliminated as title ITI-C funds have been transferred
to title III-B services to include case management and transportation, and most nu-
trition related service ataff have been terminated to avoid cutting meals. Again,
however, to do the best job will require more staff time and more staff time will
require more financial support. While informational materials are helpfil, adequate
referral, assistance, and follow-up require staff.

QUFSTIONS SUBMITTED BY HON. MICKEY LELAND

Question. From your working relationships with USDA what evidence do you
have to support your statement that this administration wants to discontinue or
weaken the commodity processing option for elderly nutrition services?

Answer. The N.C.F. program became law on March 24, 1983. The first that many
of us heard about the program was sbout 1 year later through aggressive question-
ing and thrsugh private industry, not the efforts of USDA. The first commun ication
of any detail from USDA to my project was March 8, 1985, 2 months before the issu-
ance of the USDA memo dates May 28, 1985 announcing the expiration of the
.C.P. program effective June 30, 193% N )
Despite protests from the field, this action put some N.C.P. processora out of busi-
ness who could not wait out the time for the program to begin again. It was only

‘after a congressional directive that USDA sent another memo to the field, dated No-

vember 25, 1985, announcing the continuation of the program through June 30,
1986. This was despite the fact that the extention of the N.C.P. program was signed
by President Reagan on August 15, 1985. Such administrative delays continue. For
example, despite the fact that the N.C.P. program was again extended through June
80, 1987, back in December 1985, nutrition projects have not been notified nor have
they been given a listing of approved N.V.P. processors, a questions and answers
manual or any information that would allow us to take advantage of this program.
These actions or nonactions by USDA, coupled with the administration attempts
in 1981 and 1984 to eliminate the USDA commodity/cash option in the reauthoriza-
tion of the Older Americans Act indicated less than enthusiastic sugpprt on the part
of this administration for the commodity processing option for Elderly Nutrition
Question. Are you able to provide outreach to serve those low-income elderly who
are most in need of nutrition services to prevent hunger? , R
Answer. In a word—no! Outreach as a mandated service was eliminated in 1978,
Outreach as a service was, in many parts of the country, defin rébdy area agencies
on aging as access not direct services and began being administered by AAA’s, not
nutrition services providers. Then, the outreach services became case management
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services, again administered by area agencies, and now most money goes into case
management not outreach. At this point, we hardly have sufficient staff to put the
meal on the table, let alone perform aggressive outreach services, ) .

Follow-up: What can we do from the Federal level to assure this type of outreach
is implemented nationwide? , . . ) .

Answer. Prioritize it, require nutriijon providers to perform it and fund it ade-
gquately.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Moyer appears at the conclusion
of the hearing, see p. 83.]

Mr. PANETTA. Ms. Abrams,

STATEMENT OF ROSALIE ABRAMS, STATE SENATOR, DIRECTOR,
MARYLAND STATE OFFICE ON AGING

Ms. ABrams. Mr. Chairman, I too have submitted a statement re-
vised as of this date, and I would appreciate it if you'd enter that
in the record. )

I did want to make several points to the committee, and one of
the issues that—having served in the legislature for 18 years on
the budget committee, I wou'd like to respond to the question you
raised earlier: Is nutrition a vost-effective program? The answer is
definitely, yes, ) 7 7

I would like to make a few points ahout that issue. I know you've
heard from Mr. Driggs and Dr. Lipschitz, but I'd like to expand on
some of the testimony that’s been given. , )

We have studied nutrition over a period of time, and more re-
cently we've discovered that nutrition, adequate nutrition, is con-
nected with maintaining good health. Undernutrition is definitely
concerned with weakening the immunological defenses to the point
Where it’s been demonstrated that people may be more susceptible
to many illnesses suckh as cancer. .

Undernutrition is involved with such serious killers as osteoporo-
sis, particularly in older women, the cardiovascular diseases, high
blood pressure, diahetes. Those are the four major illnesses that
we’ve noted have definite implications of diet. o

I've put this chart up because I think you have to look at the
demography, and I know you've seen it before, but Maryland is typ-
ical of what's ha ppening in the rest of the country. The percentage
of increages going up most rapidly is among the old, old.

The old, old are the most susceptible to illness. The older you get
the more apt you are to Ppickup a chronic disease, and the truth is

prescription drugs. They account for one-third of the country’s
whole health care expenditure, ] ) )

Medicare pays for 50 percent of the personal health care in this
country—Medicare, for people over 65, o :

The hospital costs account for 69 percent of Medicare dollars, so
the dollars in Medicare are spent for people in acute situations.

You've heard some testimony from Dr. Lipschitz about what's
going on in the Veterans’ Administration. Let me tell you though,
and I see in his own testimony, often the admitting physician
doesn’t recognize that undernutrition is the underlying cause of a
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The truth of the matter is that even in Maryland, which is one of
the better States as far as programs for the elderly is concernsd,
geriatric education is not required for medical students. We are
just now beginning to develop programs that will be mandated for

medical students, future doctors, who are not required to take
courses in geriatrics at the present time. And I think this is typical
of what’s going on around the country. B

As far as poverty is concerned, people over the age of 75 are
twice as apt to be poverty stricken as those between the age of 65
to 74. The new cohorts coming along in the elderly unfortunately
were young during periods of better economic times and are now
eligible for private pensions and Social Security; whereas in the
over 75 and older group, two-thirds of them are women, most of
themm grew up during the Depression, did not have an opportunity
to earn money, nor to earn credit for Social Security.

As far as hospital costs are concerned, in a study that was fi-
nanced by the Abbott Laboratories just recently, the poorly nour-
ished patients had three times the number of major complications.
They were three times more likely to die. They cost almost twice as
mué for hospital care as people with good nutrition. They stayed
longer. They cost more per patient. And undernutrition makes a
serious contribution to prolonged illness, and prolonged treatment
in hospitals. , ‘ , ~ )

Another study that was done at the University of Illinois found
that among people who were adequately cared for, people who par-
ticipated in meal programs, almost a majority of them did have
adequate vitamin levels, and adequate nutrition levels. Even par-
ticipating in the Congregate Meal Program does that. o

"It isn’t just the poor, incidentally, who are undernourished. It's
the wealthy too. And one of the main reasons to have the Congre-
gate Meal Program is to bm%’ people out of isolation, as well as to
encourage them to eat properly, and to get adequate nutrition. And
" undernutrition is not just in the poor. It's worse in the poor be-
cause they don’t have access to food. And I hear your bell ringing
““But at any rate, I did want to say that it is cost effective. We
have a program in Maryland under which I chair an interagency
committee comprised of myself and secretaries of the ‘department
of health and mental hygiene and the department of human re-
sources. We coordinate community care for disabled people living
at home. And if you don’t have one piece of the system, you can't
keep people at home. If you don’t have an adequate nutrition pro-
gram, you're going to ivstitutionalize people. ,

We demonstrate that the cost of maintaining people at home is
about one-third of what the whole public cost is if they are institu-
tionalized. The program costs about $246 per individual per ‘month,
and if they're under Medicaid, which is part of their eligibility cri-
teria, all public costs together would be about $846. It is a cost-ef-
fective program. o ) ) )

I think it's m:%:ortant to keep that in mind. One other point I did
want to make. We are suffering in Maryland because we did a good
job as far as the commodity food reimbursement is concerned. We
rstasréd within the budget. The States that didn't stay within the
budget are now reaping the benefit of serving the extra meals. And

BN



Q

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

41

we're being penalized for 1985, 1986, and looking forward to 1987.
We don’t even know what to budget yet for 1987, )

. So that’s one of the big problems we have. I think it’s terrible
that Gramm-Rudman didn’t protect the food programs for the el-
derly. Incidentally, we call the Program Eating Together in Mary-

To summarize, it's a cost-effective program. Good nutrition
means a great deal to the elderly. The importance of the preventa-
tive care cannot be over estimated. We can begin educating people
but you have to start when they’re fairly young,

So I again thank you for inviting me to come and share some of
our experience with you. I’ll be happy to answer any questions,

REsponNsEs 1o QuEsTIONs For RosALIE Asrams

ing increases at this time? ) ) ) )
_ Answer. Cost-saving techniques implemented over the last 4 years by the title II1-
~ Program administrators in various localities of Maryland have included the fol-
lowing: )

a. Consortium contracting, we have encouraged our nutrition program administra-

tors to advertise for competitive bids for supplying foods se
result of this, we have four projects using the same caterer w

b. We have increased the number of volunteers in our
4,586; 1983, 5,549; 1984, 6,952; and 198 i
A Y@luntee;ra work as site managers, kitchen crew, janitorial support and Program
1elpers. :
. ¢ We changed some of the menu configurations to use less expensive foods, that
is, we changed whole milk to 2 percent low-fat milk. In view of all of the recent
research, the change was healthy and less expensive. At 3 cents per one-half pint,
approximately $76,000 statewide is saved per year, . )

d. In creating new sites, we have asked that 100 participants have indicated an
interest before establishing a nutrition site. We feel that we should have at least 20
to 25 participants present every day to make the cost of operating the site economi-
cal. We have always located sites to which many of the participants can walk, thus
reducing transportation costs, According to the Eating Together in Maryland study,
2b-percent of participants walk; 40-percent drive or use public transportation. Only
pe 18¢ 8 transportation provided by the Area Agencies on Aging.

e. Expand project income, we have increased the average participant voluntary
contributions by 36-percent.

47
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Mess.. : R — s 3681535 3,088,38
Income : R —— - . SLST0484 1 SL2718

Average participant contribution.......essmsess S . 426¢

i Gress income is less because of fewer meals served, but average participant coatribution is higher. We have always used project income fo
f. To provide expansion without Federal funding increases at this time is indeed
difficult. Many of our sites operate in rent-free space; heating and lighting is fur-
mished by the community and the county governments. The total local support was
$870,000 in 1985, o ) 7 ) ) )

_ For fiscal year 1987, the Governor and legislature have appropriated $400,000 for
the nutrition program. This money will be used to supply at least 40-percent home
delivered meals and 60-percent congregate meals. This will result in 176,452 more
meals being served. o .

Question. What was the impact of the recent sequestration of funds as a result of
Gra_gﬂmeﬂuﬂjnan-ﬁﬂuings Act on your meal programs and related supportive serv-
1ces!
_ Answer. The recent impact of the sequestration of funds as a result of the
Gramm-Rudman-Hollings Act on our meal programs and related support services is
that we have been denied about $125,000 in commodity reimbursement funds. With
this meney we could have served an additional 100,000 meals.

Question. How has the Federal initiative encouraging increased participant contri-

butiang for title IIT meals impacted on the participation of poor elderly in the pro-
grams?

Answer. The Federal initiative encouraging increased participant contributions
for title III meals has discouraged some of our poor elderly to par ticipate in the pro-
grams as often. O oject directors report that some individuals are coming to the
site less often. They are reluctant to press for increased contributions, lest such
undue emphasis result in subverting the basic purpose of the program

Question. If the availability of commodites were increased in the USDA adminis-
tered reimbursement for elderly mesls, would this allow you to expand services?

Answer. If the availability of commodities were increased in th USDA adminis-
tered reimbursement for elderly meals, we would be expanding services according to
the amount of that particular increase,

QUESTIONS SUBMITTED BY HON. MICKEY LELAND
Question. How have the low-income elderly in financially depressed geographic
areas been adversely affected by the cuts this year and in recent years in title III
elderly nutrition and supportive services? . _ o
Answer. The low-income elderly in financially depressed geographical areas have

been adversely affected by Federal funding for the title III elderly nutrition and

supportive services projects. A decrease of 4-percent in the total number of meals
served in the State is expected in fiscal year 1986 based on an increase of 4 percent
in operational costs, 5-percent increase in food costs, and 4.8-percent reduction in
Federal funds. In 1986 the following reductions in meal levels will be required, ac-
cording to plans submitted by the Area Agencies on Aging in Maryland:

Area agency: o Meals
Anne Arundel County ............. srsirsmsneses S, SO - X1 1 1]
Carroll County ......ccoocciniaras ST - T v 3,500

MAGC, INC: ccoonsmssmmmmmmmssssessss s S s 12,975
CAlVETt COUNLY .covrereassimimssssm sy sssss s ssnasasms st st snas sz apsssssssssssasanasas - 2,000
8t. Mary's County............... srressssasinns TP f (1 -
BBIEMOTE Gty erseuessesseseseerssmesssssmsssssssssssssmsssssssmsssssssasssess S 70,000
Upper Shore ARINE ..o s S—— cirvrnnnnes 8,250
Garrett County.............. cesesssmssermesmsrisarsiitisaaSesRERRssannbaanian [ .. 16,258

G VT D erssnsnennns 145,000

On the Lower Shore,
poor, frail, and minorits
The following are estim;
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Dorchester Counly......c... . e $145,538 32,592
Somerset Counly..... . . . - 114,613 21,840
Wicomico County.......... S— S 159,351 34,580
Worcester County e rmoncnsnns . — . 49658 14560
L[ -] S - _— . . e 469,160 103,572

. Garrett County sites serve very frail, elderly people who are further handicapped
by absence of public transportation. Additional costs to resume more adequate serv-
ice are estimated at $140,000 per year, ) . ) . .

Questipn. It is my understanding that the Maryland Governor's Task Force on
Food and Nutrition Interim Report recommended that Maryland request participa-
tion in the CSEP for elderly. Do you believe this Program would be an integral com-
pﬁ,ﬂ]égt of the continuum of long-term care to prevent institutionalization of the el-
derly?
_ Answer. The Maryland Governor's Task Force on Food and Nutrition Interim
Report Eeamméndsze?thst Maryland request participation in the Commodity Special
Food Program for the Elderly. As a result of this recommendation, a resolution was
passed by the legislature and a study group formed to consider the possibilities of
establishing this program in Maryland. i

This program could be an integral part of the continuum of long-term care to pre-
vent institutionalization of the elderly. However, for the frail elderly who lack the
desire to prepare their own food and eat along, the Congregate Nutrition Program
offers strong incentive for improved socialization as well as nutrition.

.[The prepared statement of Ms. Abrams appears at the conclu-
sion of the hearing, see p. 87 J 7 ] )
. Mr. Panerra. Thank you. Your statement will be made part of
the record.
Mr. Suzuki.

STATEMENT OF MICHIO SUZUKI, ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER,
OFFICE OF STATE AND TRIBAL PROGRAMS, ADMINISTRATION
ON AGING
Mr. Suzukl. Yes, Mr. Chairman. I have submitted a statement

for the record. What 1 will do is just highlight a couple of points
then, in terms of the time of the day here.

I am pleased to be here today to discuss the Administration on
Aging’s Nutrition Program as part of the hearing on Hunger and
the Eiderly. ) ) )

Since it was instituted in 1972 the nutrition program for the el-

lerly under the Older Americans Act, has been a favorite program

with the older population, and they have been actively participat-
ing as consumers, as workers, as volunteers, and as advisers. The
pProgram has grown so that in fiscal year 1985 2.9 million older per-
sons were served in the Congregate N utrition Program, and
293,000 elderly persons were served in the Home Delivered Meals
Program. ) o

_In fiscal year 1985 we served 150 million congregate meals, and
75 million home-delivered meals, or a total of 225 million meals in
this last fiscal year. That's a growth that has been steadily growing
over the years. L i )

A mandate that we have worked under has been to target re-
sources to those older persons in greatest social or economic need,
and to those vulnerable elderly most in danger of losing their inde-
pendence. The Older Americans Act requires that we assure the

49
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preference be given to older persons with greatest social or econom-
ic need, but we also are required to avoid the use of a means test
for eligibility for our services, particularly our nutrition programs.

Our preliminary data for fiscal year 1985 indicate that 53 per-
cent of the people served in our Congregate Nutrition Program
were low income at the poverty level or below. Of those participat-
ing in our nutrition program, 17-percent were minorities, that is,
the Congregate Nutrition Programs. 7 )

Home delivered nutrition programs are even more oriented’
toward the needy with 66 percent of the home-delivered meals
going to low income, and 19 percent of our program of home deliv-
ered meals going to minorities. ]

It should be pointed out that with the passage of years more and
more of our resources are being targeted toward the homebound.
An analysis of the title III expenditure data shows that most States
are transferring funds out of the C-1 Congregate Meal Programs
and into the home-delivered meals and supportive services catego-
ry. There’s a typo in our prepared statement. It says that in fiscal
year 1985 home-delivered C-2 expenditures were increased by 3.7.
It shouldn’t be a decimal point. It was increased by 37 percent.

In other words, out of the Congregate Meal Program, States at
their option have transferred over $46 million out of the Congre-
gates Meals Program nationally, half of that going to supportive
services, and half of it going to home-delivered meals. So that’s the
program that is expanding, particularly at the option of the States
in terms of their diverting the resources. N
I think I will just summarize by saying that the studies that we
have undertaken indicate clearly that the meals program, nutri-
tion program, has been supplying the required one-third daily al-
lowances, and it has been an important part in maintaining the
health of the elderly population in the United States. :

The program has been emphasizing nutritional quality, nutrition
education, and health promotion, and we feel that the networlk, the
State agencies, and the area agencies, and the providers, have been
performing an outstanding service to this country, and to the elder-
ly population. ) 7 -

" I'd be pleased to answer any questions you might have, Mr.
REespoNgsEs To QUESTIONS FOR MICHIO SUZUKI
QUESTIONS BUBMITTED BY HON. LEON FANETTA

Question. What percentage of the eligible low-income elderly population receives
congregate or home-delivered meals? o : N

Answer. As you know, there are no income eligibility requirements for older per-
sons to participate in a congregate or home-delivered nutrition services program.
State and area agencies, however, are required to give priority to serving those
older persons in greatest social or economic need and do so by targetting limited
title III resources to those services and geographic areas with high concentrations of
low-income elderly. In fiscal year 1985, State agencies reported that 53-percent of
the persons receiving gﬁng‘fegﬁte nutrition services and E&Fercgnt of persons receiv-
ing home-delivered mesls had incomes at or below poverty level. o
 Question. It is g,%:ecté;l that there will be a vast increase in the elderly, home-
bound population. How does the Department plan to respond to what will certainly
continue to be a growing need for nutrition and support services for this group?

Answer. We will continue to give emphasis to improving the linkage of service
gyatems at the community level to help assure that those systems, especially ones
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that are designed to address the needs of the most vulnerable elderly—those in
reatest risk of ig;sﬁtutianaﬁz%tign, are truly responsive to the needs of this popula

tion. Area agencies have & unique and critieal responsibility in this

these bonus commodities available to all providers who can use them?
Ansgwer. Distribution of honus commodities to eligible recipient agencies is the re-
sponsibility of the USDA through the State distributing agency system. Information
about specific foods and amounts is available from that Department. )
As we understand USDA general memorandum # 387, nutrition programs, includ-
ing those receiving cash in lieu of USDA food are eligible to receive bonus foods to

the extent that they can be used without _wastz. Rice is an exception. Projects re-
ceiving less that 50-percent of entitlement in commodities are not eligible to receive
rice and possibly beef as a bonus. ) )
Question. What kind of planning is the Department conducting to consider the po-
tential cost savings of nutrition services versus institutionalization and medical
Answer. I am unaware of any planning by the Department to consider the cost
savings of nutrition services in comparison to the costs of institutionalization and
Question. Do you have any recommendations for expanding the use of cormmod-
ities for elderly nutrition programs? . ) ,
Answer. We consistently encourage all nutrition service providers to operate in an
efficient manner that maximizes all available resources. This would include the ap-
propriate use of commodities, We also have under consideration a proposal which,
in part, would serve to enhance awareness of U\

L 3 A resources including bonus foods
and national commodity processing. With additional information, we believe that
State agencies mey wish to reevaluate the cost effective use of USDA food rather
han cash reimbursement for meals served and to consider how the food delivery
system can be improved to increase the number of meals served.

[The prepared statement of Mr. Suzuki appears at the conclusion
of the hearing, see p. 97.] )

Mr. PANETTA. Thank you very much for your testimony. As
you've heard, there’s a vote that we have on now. There’s probably
about 6 minutes remaining, so I'm going to have to go to that vote.

Rather than holding you up, I'm going to thank you for the testi-
mony that you presented. All of it will be made part of the record.
I hope we can come back to each of you if we have any additional
questions among the members, I know in terms of my work, and
we will be making another effort at trying to develop a hunger
relief bill this year. Again, that I will be using the resources you
provided here to try to direct some of these programs, particularly
at the elderly, if we can, because that is an area that I think that
we've ignored, and it’s time that we face it because it really does
zféill‘ate to the cost-effectiveness that you've pointed out, Senator
Abrams.

So thank you all for your testimony. The hearing is now ad-

" journed.

[Whereupon, at 5:30 p.m., the committee was adjourned.]
[Material submitted for inclusion in the record follows:]

1
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™.S. Doude of Representatives s e s s

EDHEs‘ﬂE TASK FORCE

Bunims, Asnis Ha 2
B JU518

JOINT HEARING OF BOUSE SELECT COMMITTEEZ OH HURGER AND AGIKG

“HUMGER AND THE ELDERLY™

FOVERTY LINKED TO HUNGER AMONG THE ELDERLY

verty may be ena of the most important environmental
inants of inadeguats nutrition among the elderly. Many
rly live on d incomes, have activity limitationa
have health problems sitatlng spacial diets. As a result,
poar houzasholds headed ﬂy senlor eitisens spsnd 40 percent of
thelr laceme for food compared with about 33 percent for other
houzeholds.

POVERTY 5

ISTICS

Eldarly pasrsonz are mors likely than other adulks o be
poor. In 1984, 12.4 percent of parzons 65 and elder (3.3 millian
persons) had incomesz below poverty, compared ta 11.7 percent of
thasze age 185 to 64.

The slderly ars much @iore likely to be "near poor®™ than the
rest of the population. In 1984, 16.7 percent of persons aged &5
and older were ln Eamllies with in ean

mes betwesn 100 and 150
pereent of the poverty leval compared to only 9.1 percent of
those under age &5 whose family incomes fell within this EaRge.

Minority Elderly: In 1984 the poverty rate among the black
slderly was 31.7 parcent; among the RBispanie slderly it was Z1.5
paEcant.,

The Oldest Eldsrly: Adults age 75 ana oldar make up 40
pE&EEEnt of the eldsrly. 1In 13564
t]: aga B5+ wars poor or within 135 par:gnt af pavgsty. Thess

alas are at groat rilsk of hunger dus to their incereasing

E:ailty. disabilities and serioiuz medical conditlons.

ne=thled of older{75+).
ivsﬂ alans. Poverty rates
WEre higheat for élﬂetly hla:k aﬁ-en 5+ living alone, with
nearly three out of five {56.6 percent) living in poverty.

*1984 Poverty level for aged individual = 54,879
1984 paverty level for couple with aged hgad = 56,510

OTHER FACTORE FLACING ELDERLY AT RISKE OF HUNGER

[:1-13 h:iﬁg them up ta paca:ty {zample penafits

== As of January, 1986 the maximum annual
and food stamp beneflis far al
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Inot provided for
bring elderly indiv
Etates,

. Among the poor e£1d
activity and thus may nee
and/or eating.

NIC MOBILITY LiHITATIﬁNS

e el

= T the elderly ged
per person in 1984-=the cost of zervices and aids not sover
i {Bote that this amount is at least one-fi
he total income of a aingle eldar adult living in poverty.)

d

- 59

by any insurance,
£l £o

EALS

1 teform legislation uires that hospitals be
mbused based upen diagnesis=-related groups G's “This
=spective payment systam ha resulted in earlier h pital disc
the elderly. Area agencies on Aging report that since the
implementation of the DRGs the demand for home deliversd alsz ha
increased significantly because many of those relesaszed earlier fr
hospitals need intensive nutrition aszistance at heme.

=
o
T,
L]
]

3T
LK
T

ITION SURVEYS REVEAL UNDERNUTRITION AMONG THE ELDERLY

& Director of USDA‘s Human Nutrition Research

el d 2l of
€ less than than adequate
£y guality becomes very difficult to
111 {calerie) intake iz low,.."

*Etates not providing supplemental §
Kanzas, Missizsippi, Tenn ss€e, Texa

FEDERAL FOOD AND NUTRITION PROGRAMS TARGETTED TO THE ELDERLY

5_FOR_THE ELDERLY

Hutrition Zervieces for the elderly, ariginally authorized a=
'itle VII of the oldar Amerieans Act in 1972 and changed in 3
& I1I-C, provide funds to States to deliver nutritionally
meals to the elderly, HMeals are provided either in a

i

dining setting (Titls IIT €=1) such as a seni
& t £ h

_ The programs are open to all persens 60 years of age or
older, regardlezs of incen  However, Federal regulations
emphazize that the poor, ethnic minorities, the socially isolated

liment. In fizeal year
projects ar
_persons. Federal

and the handicapped be given priority en
"85 thers were approximately 9,000 nutriti
U.2. providing 225 millien meals to elde
funding is supplemented by voluntary
participants. sStates, previding supplem
more of the elderly in nesd inelude Tex
Maryland, Kansas.

A recent national evaluation of the elderly meal programs
found they meet their legislative intent of fostering secial
interactian, facilitating the delivery of other sacial services
and that they significantiy improve the dist of participants

2w
-
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earlier DHHS study found that the hnme—dellvefeﬂ meals pragfgm
haelps pa:tlsip its continue
aveid nursing homes.

THE COMMODITY SUPPLEMEHTAL ?G@EﬁPEDGRBH FOR

i
o
]
I
i
[
]
M
[
oy

plemental F@ad
Béglﬁnlﬁg in September 1982
gt prnjgctﬁ Expa'ﬂlng upan tha CSFP for women, infantsz and
commoditas, in surplus oF
paration by the elderly. Pilet
pf@géétg were conducted in thrae cities (Detroit, Des Moines and
Hew Orleans). ¢k up food packages if they are
mobile, provide heme daliveries if they are homebound,
transportation assistanee and referral to other social serviees
as needed. These programs rely primarily on velunteers.

The Food Security Aet of 19B5 extends the authority for
these programs for four more years at no less than the FY 85
caseload (approximately 19,500) and authorizes the expansion of
CS5FP to serve elderly in other areas, provided that the increase
in elderly served does not termin or reduse assistance to
eligible women, infants and children.

PUNDING REDDCTIONS IN ELDEELY NUTRITION PROGRAMS

RECENT FEDERAL FUNDING FOR TITLE I

FY "84 FY ‘85 FY ‘86
DHHS APPROPRTIATIORS
{in thousands of dollars)
Congregate Meals $321,574 £336,000 $321,522*
Home Delivsared Meals $67,025 267,900 564,980%
USDA CASH OR COMMODITY
REIMBURSEMENT PER )
MEAL SERVED (in cents) 56.5 53.61%* 53,12%*

The Elderly Rutrition Services are the only major nutrition
programs not exempted from sequestration under Gramm=Rudman-Hollings.

*This figure ceprasents the FY 1986 apprapr1atians minus the %.3
million reduction enacted by Sec. 515 of the Agriculture
Appropriations Act and the 514,448,000 reduction resulting from
Gramm=Rudman-Hollings.

**Thase rates wers used by USDA's Food and Nutrition Servic
determine the 1987 budget EEquESE- pgent legislation increa Eing the
autharizatian levals may result in a slight adjustment in the
I 1 T UEDA does not yet have a new offigcal esti
eimbursement rate for FY "85 or FY '8, Existing appropt
vallable for 1985 and 1986, however, are insufficie £o main
56.76 reimbursement rate intended by Congress in the legislation
providing an increase in the authorizatien.

UNMET HMEED FOR FOOD AND NUTRITIOH SERVICES TO THE ELDERLY

The food stamp participation rate is very iow among households
headed by the elderly poor. 69 percent of elderly poor in families do
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not receive food sgampé and nearly three out of four (73 percent) of
unrelated elderly poor do not receive food stamps.

According to a study conducted far the U5 Department of
Agriculture in 1982, aver two=thirds (69 coent) of the el
eligible but not participating in the Food Stam Program bel
are not eligible orF do not know they are eligible.

thay

HSME-DELIVERED MEALS

i Aging reports an unmet need of 1s,000. By

onal 2,000 elderly will hbe dropped from the
vices covered by Title XX funds,

Maryland State Dffice on Aging reports that 28,000 homebound needy
elderly are unserved by elderly nutrition services and in need,
The Office states that i b
will continue to grow.

Texas and Florida report that funds that would normally be used to
remove more homebound elderl waiting list must be used now
for the inerease in home-delivered m al services to patients released
earlier from hospital care as a result of the DRGs.

ELDERLY CSFP

- 600 on waiting list (program provides no publj
r outreach for their services to limit the waiting list)

Bew Orleans - 3,000 on waiting list

Petroit = 15,000 on waiting list
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H.S. Douge of Representatives
SELECT COMMITTEE ON HUNGER
RoGk H2-807, Houst Drier Butibws, Austs Ho. 2
Wassinaton, DC 20518

Dear Colleague:

Recently a new year-]

by the Advertising Coun

Mr. Driggs eaonvinced the Adv
1 egomprised of U.5. adverti

Ad Council has ﬂevgiapeﬂr )
out of Cfime;“ "Smokey say
& hest Job You

Thiz campaign has the
Agciculture. However,
Federal tax dellars

Have to Be
cee telephone
who sesk
prov iding

each galler
uhezg an
a logal

E
Ey the Flllﬂhusy c
given a toll-free nu
will. answer fdTther

campaig sho
toll-free numb

of your rsferen

m A

Ré"‘klﬁg Hlﬁafltyrﬂémb L8
select Committee on Hunger
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Food Stamp Information

Alabama
Alazska
Arizona
Arkansas
California
Colarado
Connectieut
Delaware
District of Columbia
Florida _

Georgia

Hawaii

Idaho

IMineis :
Indiana

Hissi
Hiszouri 1
Montana 1

ssippi

1
the Socia

Washington = Call the loca

5 15th Street, NW

_Meg Graham, President
ittes for Food and Shelter

51

Kew Hampshire
Hew Jdersey
Hew Mexico
New Yark
North Carglina
Horth Dakota
Dhio

Oklahoma
Oregon *
Pennsylvania
Rhode Island *
South Carolina
South Daketa
Tennessee
Texas

Utah *
Vermaont
Virgin Fslands
Virginia
Washington *
West Virginia ~ .

1 the County Department of Human Services
d = Call the loca) Human Services Office
the Adult and Family Services Office
Services Community Operations Office

1 Community Services Dffice

Program

402-471-3121
1-800-992-0300

1-800-432-6217
1-800-342-3008
1-B00-662-7030
1-B0D-472-2622

1-800-

1-800-342-1784
1-B00-252-9330

1-800-642-5589
1-800~ 78
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Select E@mlﬁittee. on Aging

s, Hﬂuse of Repmgnhﬂvu

[y ]
e

S

CONTACT: Auwstin i:l::gan, Brian Lutz
(202) 226-3375

Room 311 Cannon House ﬁl":e, Building

— Edward R. Roybal {D-CA), Chairman of the
Leland {D-TX) Chairman
A), Chairman of the
a joint hearing 1o examine the

ates Eﬂt h;mg& arpd

will examine fompelling evidence which indi
I ,gth:uldéstandmﬁsl u
health ﬁmlﬁ;mﬂals amd

rates of alder

ly poor in fam
=lderly poor do net r

"Adﬂlhﬁnally, many state: have found that tens of thousands of the i ted and
crvices under the Older

{ice an Aging reports that
azsistance and that the
i;! the implementation af

nd member of
m:vnive [

e directs through the Advgrnslng
Fivaie cooperative eifort to help solve the prubl:m of hunger in Amer

HEARING WITHNESSES

ecutive Director, National Councll of Senier Citizens,

n of thé Board, Western Savings and Laan As
a member of the President's ©

Biteﬂ@r of Geriatric Ressarch Educ
Rock, Arkanzas.
ye Bnrg:mr,ﬁ g Count Washmgmn.
e Marylanﬂ Office on, ggjng. Ealnmure, Maryla
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Paerarep STATEMENT oF Hon, Marce ROUKEMA, 4 REPRESENTATIVE IN CongREsS
From THE STATE oF NEw JERSEY

GOOD AFTERNODN.

1 AM PLEASED TO BE HERE TODAY WITH MY COLLEAGUES FROM BOTH THE
HUNBER AND AGING COMMITTEES. 1T 13 APPROPRIATE THAT WE HOLD A HEARING
ON THIS SUBJECT AT THIS TIME, SINCE CONGRESS HAS DESIGNATED MAY AS
CLDER AMERICANS MONTH. | AM INTERESTED LN LEARNING HOW FAR WE HAVE
COME IN MEETING THE NUTRITIONAL NEEDS OF OUR ELDERLY CITIZENS, AND HOW
MUCH FARTHER WE HAVE TD GO.

AS YOU MAY KNOW, ELDFRLY AMERICANS ARE THE FASTEST GROWING
POPULATION GROUP IH THIS COUNTRY--1N 1980 ABOUT 25.5 MILLION AMERICANS
WERE OVER THE AGE OF 65 AND BY THE YEAR 2000 THIS NUMRER WILL DOUBLE.
THIS INCREASE WILL HAVE A PROFOUND 1MPACT ON THE FUTURE OF OUR COUNTRY
AS WE MEET THESE CITIZENS' NEEDS.

ELDERLY AMERICANS MAY BE PARTICULARLY VULNERABLE TO MALNUTRIT]ON
BECAUSE OF fHEIR ISOLATION AND DECLINING HEALTH STATUS. INADEGUATE
NUTRITION MAY RESULT .FROM THE SIDE EFFECTS OF DRUGS, LOSS OF TASTE,
AND DEPRESSI1ON, AS WELL AS FROM DISEASE AND POVERTY.  RECENT STUDIES
HAVE SHOWN THAT MALNOURISHMENT MAY CAUSE MUCH OF THE PHYSIOLOGICAL
DECLINE IN PISEASE RESISTANCE SEEN IN ELDERLY PATIENTS. THEREFORE, IN
ORDER TO ENSURE LONGER AND HEALTHIER LIVES OF THE EVER INCREASING
ELDERLY POPULATION, WE MUST CONTINUE TO ADDRESS THE PROBLEM OF ELDERLY
MALNUTRITION.

THE OLDER AMERICANS ACT OF 1965, AS AMENDED, 1S THE CENTERPIECE
FOR THE ORGANIZATION AND DELIVERY OF SERVICES TO THIS IMPORTANT GROUP
OF CITIZENS. IN ORDER TO SPECIFICALLY MEET THE NUTRITIONAL NEEDS OF
THE ELDERLY, CONGREGATE AND HOME-DEL IVERED MEAL PROGRAMS ARE
AUTHORIZED UNDER THIS ACT. 1IN FISCAL YEAR 1984, CONGRLCSS APPROPRIATED
$367.3 FOR THESE PROGRAMS WHICH ALLOWED STATE AND LOCAL AGENCIFS ID
SERVE APPROXIMATELY 212 MILLION MEALS TO 3.2 MILL1ON OLDER FESSoP™
TODAY WE WILL HEAR FROM A REPRESENTATIVE OF THE THE ADMINIST %77, oN
AGING ABOUT THESE PROGRAMS.

IN ADDITION, THERE ARE OTHER NUTRITION PROGRAMS TEROUGH WHICH THE
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ELDERLY BENEFIT, INCLUDING THE FOOD STAMP PROGRAM, THE COMMODITY
SUPPLEMENTAL FOOD PROGRAM, AND COMMODITY DISTRIBUTION TO CHAR)TARLE
INSTITUTIONS. TODAY'S WITNESSES WILL PROVIDE US WITH INSIGHT INTO
THESE PROGRAMS.

WE CAN BE PROUD OF OUR ACHIEVEMENTS BECAUSE, AS A GROUP, THE
ELDERLY HAVE COME A LONG WAY. BEING OLD NO LONGER 1S NECESSARILY
EQUATED W1TH BEING POOR OR HUNGRY. BUT, WE CANNOT REST ON OUR
LAURELS. THE PRESYDENT’S TASK FORCE ON FOOD ASSISTANCE FOUND THAT
MANY POTENTIALLY EL1GIBLE ELDERLY PERSONS DO NOT PARTICIPATE IN THE
E0OD STAMP OR ELDERLY FEEDING PROGRAMS. WE ALSO OFTEN HEAR OF WAITING
L1STS FOR THESE PROGRAMS.

IN TH1S TIME OF F1SCAL RESTRAINT WE MUST MAKE SURE THAT THE
EFFECTIVENESS OF THE IMPORTANT ELDERLY NUTRITION PROGRAMS 1S NOT
DIMINISHED. 1 LOOK FOWARD TO TOPAY'S TESTIMONY AND RECOMMENDATLONS
AND THANK THE WITNESSES FOR THEIR TIME. '



55

PrEPARED STATEMENT or HoN. Jim LiguTFoOOT, A REPREEENTATEFE: 1N Concress From
THE STATE or low

IRMAN ROYBAL, I COMMEND

CHAIRMAN PANETTA, CHAIRMAH LELAND, AND CHA

YOU FOR CALLING THIS HEARING TODAY TO DISCUSE HUNGER AMONG THE
ELDERLY. THIS IS AN ISSUE WHICE DESERVES GREATER CoOH

ATTENTION BECAUSE OF ITS RAMIFICATI IOHE ON THE OVERALL HEALTH AND

SAFETY OF OLDER AMERICANS.

RECENT STUDIEZ INDICATE THAT THE WELL-BEING OF SENIOR CITIZEKS
DEPENDS LARGELY ON AN ADEQUATE AND NUTRITIONALLY-BA LANCED DIET.
MANY GERONTOLOGISTS AND RUTRITION EXPERTS HAVE FOUND THAT

MALNOURISHMENT MAY CAUSE A DRAMATIC DECLINE IN RESISTANCE TO

DISEASEE WHICH AFFLICT THE ELDERLY. IT HAS BEEN SUGGESTED THAT

MANY ILLNESSES AMONG THE ELD DERLY CAN BE PREVENTED
N,

THEM WITH BETTER NOUTRITION

IN MY OWN DISTRICT IR IOWA, WHICH IS THE SECOND MOST RURAL

DISTRICT AND THE 27TH MOST ELDERLY DISTRICT IN THE NATION, THE

1

UTRITIONAL PROBLEMS OF THE RURAL ELDERLY ARE COMFOUNDED BY

ISOLATION, LACK OF PUBLI

TRANSPORTATION, AND THE INABILITY TO
TAKE ADVANTAGE OF FEDERAL PRUGRAMS, SUCH AS THE COMMODITY

SUFPLEMENTAL FOOD PROGRAM.

LAET YEAR WHEN I SPONZORED A WEEE-

Ry
=i

VISITORS TO THE FOOD PANTRIES. THEY RELIED UPON ASSISTANCE FROM

THESE PANTRIEZ TO HELP MAKE ENDS MEET.

MANY OF THESE OLDER IOWANS WOULD ﬂﬁﬁLIFY FOR Fi

oD
NAWARE THAT THE PROGRAMS EXIST OR RE RELUCTANT

&2
by
]
o]
e}
]
=
B
]
o
ﬁ
g

K ASSISTAHCE. THE FOOD PROGRAMS WHICH MIG
o

SE.
BENEFIT THEM ARE FOOD STAMPS, CONGREGATE MEALS, OR MEALS
u

RTUNAT
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ELDERLY AE THEY SHOULD, ESPECIALLY THOSE LOCATED IN THE MORE
RURAL AREAS WHERE THERE MIGHT NOT BE A CONGREGATE MEAL SITE OR A

MEALS ON WHEELS PROGRAM.

ONE AREA THAT NEEDS GREATER ATTENTION IN CONGRESS IS5 INCREASING

THE AWARENESS OF THESE PROGRAMS AMONG THE ELDERLY AND ENCOURAGING

IS ALSO

THOSE ELIGIBLE FOR THEM TO PFARTICI

Ly
L
]
-]
]
i

IN THEM. I

T
O EDUCATE ALL OLDER

IMPORTANT THAT GREATER EFFORTS BE MADE Ti I
AMERICANS ON THE BENEFITS OF PROPER NUTRITION AND DIET. 1IN THE
LONG RUN, IT WILL IMPROVE THE HEALTH ARy WELL-BEING OF ALL OLDER
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PrePARED STATEMENT OF HoN. Birl EMERSON, A REPRESENTATIVE IN CoNGRrESs FrRoM

THE STATE oF Missourt

hat program aimed at helping the elderly

- Feod stamp heouseheldsz sontaining elderly participants have

ha

avajlable all deductienz allewed under the program. In

addition, these households are provided a medical deduction
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opposed to a $2000 limit for all other households.

4: The elderly food stamp participants esan use food stamps to
pay for meals in autherized restaurants. Fourtesn states
participated in this facet of the Efosd stamp program in

an also be used in communal diwing
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PREPARED STATEMENT oF Hon. MaTTHEW J. RINALDO, A REPRESENTATIVE IN CONGRESS
FroMm THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I applaud

your leadershlp on this pressing isaue

hearing today.

Eﬂngar among our nation's elderly
ias an important issue. Becauae of the
elose linka between putrition and
1llneas, nutritional problems among the
elderly have many conzequences.
However, diet iz an easily centrolabls
factor and -- in sorz instances --= can

aignificantly improve the wellneas of

For being auch an easily
eorrectadable problem, the atatiatica on
this condition are appalling. It has
been sald that up to B50F of older
Americans conaume too few caiories or
other nutrienta for geood health.

I have been told that the numbér may run

up to B0% in skilled nuraing faellities.

Thia is eclearly asomething that i=
avoidable and prevéentable. For thaae
who present épgcisl health risks,
nutritional problema can be inaidious,
being miataken for other medical
IPrabigzs and npever  being treated

properly.

Hr. Chairman, aoue of the

o
o
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nutritional problems of our elderly lie
in their pride of not asking for help;
some of the problems 1lie with the
inaccessibility of the program or the
complexity of the application process;
and some of the problem= can be laid on
our doorstep -~ the Federal government
and the Congresa -- for design and

inadequate funding levels.

No matter what the problem is, one
thing is clear -- Gazgﬁess muat address
this problem. This hearing is juat, one
step in the continuing process of
ensuring an adequate and nutritious diet
for our elderly. -

A proposal being EE?elaped by
Representative Emerson and ay Republican
colleagues on the Hunger Committee is a
step in the right direction. It would
create a "one-stop shopping™ concept
where the elderly could apply and
correspond with only one office for all
assistance programs rather than having
to viait numerous offices for

complementary benéfits:

Mr. Chairman, .I am pleased to be
here today and 1look farﬁard to the

testimony of our witnesses. Thank you.

61-275 0 - 86 - 3
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PrerareDp StaTEMENT oF How. Jonw PauL |

CoNGRESS FiOM THE STATE OF  _ARKANBAS
BASED ON EARLIER WORK OF THE SELECT OOMwwwXITTEE ON AGING, IT
IS CLEAR THAT FROPER NUTRITION IS ONE OF THE  ™MOST EPFECTIVE MEANS
OF MAINTAINING GOOD HEALTH AP MINIMIZING DEC—SENERATIVE CONDITIONS
LATER IN LIFE. A NUTRITIOUS DIET 15 ALSD HECC—ESSABY FOR OLUER
PERSONS 50 THAT THEY CAN REMAIN THEIR CAPACIE=="Y FOR ACTIVE AND
PRODUCTIVE LIVES. IT IS5 PAINFUL TO ACKNOWLEL=GE THAT AS

PEOPLE WHO ARE HUNCRY IN THIS COUNTRY.

THERE IS ANOTHER GROUP O PEOPLE WHOSE P~=ROBLEMS ARE LESS
VIS{BLE BUT WHO ARE ALSO AT RISK ~-- THOSE wilmss SUFFER FROM
MALNUTRITION BECAUSE THEY CANOT AFFORD THE FP—~ROPER DIET. THE
MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM THAT IS AVAILABLE TGO COMSVIBAT THESE PROBLEMS
18 THE FOOD STAMP PROGRAM. T A8 | UNDERSTA2 %D IT, ABOUT SEVENTY
PERCENT OF THE ELDERLY WHO ARE ELIGIBLE DON'T" ~ PARTICIPATE BECAUSE
THEY ARE UNAWARE OF THEIR ELIGIBILITY Of FEEL. IT 13 DEMEANING TO
USE FOOD STAMPS.

THERE I3 A NEW AND VERY EXCITING CAMPAIGE=er3 UNDERWAY WHOSE
OBJECTIVE 18 TO INCREASE PEOMLE'S KNOWLEDGE O&== TIE FOOD STAMP
PROGRAM AND TO DIMINISH ANY $TIGMA ATTACHED T==> IT. THIS NEW IDEA
WAS INITIATED BY JOHN DRICGS, HE FORMER MAYOR__ OF PHOENIX,
ARIZONA, WHO SERVED ON THE PRESIDENT'S COMMISS  IOH ON HUNGER IN
1983, AFTER THE COMMISSION FILED 1TS REPORT, SE=#1E CONTACTED TIE
ADVERTIBING COUNCIL AND ASKED THEM TO UNDERTAKS32 A CAMPAIGH WHICH
WOULD HELP IDENTIFY PEOPLE Wi0 WERE ELIGIBLE Fec=R FOOD STAMPS BUT
DIDN'T HNOW IT. HE AL3O WANTED TO ELIMINATE TE=SE STIGMA WHICH
PREVENTS MANY OLDER PEOPLE FIM USING FOOD 3TAMwewIPS. THE EOARD OF
DIRECTORS OF THE ADVERTISING CONCIL ACCEPTED E==115 FROFOSAL.
WORKING WITH A VOLUNTEER ADVIRTISING AGENCY ANE—> THE DEFARTMENT OF

AGRICULTURE, THEY CREATED THE IXCELLENT PUBLIC SERVICE
ANNOUNCEMENTS NOW SEEN ON TELEVISION, EACH ANS=JIQUNCEMENRT INCLUDES
AN B00 PHONE NUMBER THAT ENAALIS PEOPLE TO APFI-—.¥ FOR ABSISTAECE
AT THEIR LOCAL FOOD STAMP OFFICE. WIEN THE CA==IPAIGN IS COMPLETED
IT WILL MAVE HAD $20 MILLION WOATH OF FREE AXR TIME AND SPACE IN

PUBLICATIONS. WHEN MR. DRIGI§ ANNOUNCED THE OF==ENING OF THE

—
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CAMPAIGN ON THE TODAY SHOW-LAST MONTII, 10,000 PHONE CALLS WERE
RECEIVED ON THE 800 NUMBER.

BECAUSE I ALSO HAVE THE PRIVILEGE OF SERVING ON THE

LIPSCHITZ, M.D., Ph.D., WHO HAS SERVED FOR THREE YEARS AS THE

DIRECTOR OF THE GERIATRIC RESEARCH EDUCATION AND CLINICAL CENTER

STATE OF ARKANSAS. HE IS ALSO HEAD OF THE DIVISION ON AGING AT
THE UNIVERSITY OF ARKANSAS FOR MEDICAL SCIENCES. HE STILL -WORKS
ON A DAY TO DAY BASIS WITH ELDERLY PATIENTS WHO HAVE NUTRITION
RELATED DISORDERS. HE IS A NATIONALLY ACCLAIMED AUTHOR ON
NUTRITIONAL PROBLEMS AND AGING. HE ALSO SERVES ON A VARIETY OF
STATE AND NATIONAL MEDICAL COMMITTEES. DR. LIPSCHITZ, WE ARE SO
PLEASED THAT YOU COULD TAKE TIME FROM YOUR VERY DEMANDING

SCHEDULE TO BE WITH U3 TODAY.

67
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PrerArep StatemenTt oF Hon. Hxmenw Deruices BENTLEY, A REPRESENTATIVE IN
ConGrEss FroM THE STATE oF MARYLAND

Mr. Chairman:
I would like to complement you on having thia hearing on "Hunger and

the Elderly.®

Hunger 1z a real problem, — Moreover, vwhen wWe speak of hunger in the
world, ve don't have to losk to underdeveloped third world countriea, we can
lock in our own back yards, Thousands of elderly are suffering from

inadequate rniutrition here in the United States.

The testimonles we are hearing today will give us many facts and

figures that need serious consideration by this committee,

I look forward to the testimony we will be recelving through cut this

knowledge to our inveatigation.

ERIC
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PrEPARED StaTEMENT or Hon. Ton TAUEE, A REPRESENTATIVE IV Conceess From
TRE BraTE oF Iowa

MEND THE CO-CHAIRMEN FOR CONVENIRG THIZ HEARING TO BISCUzs
G CONCERNS FOR THE HUTRITIONAL WELL-DRING OF THE ELDERLY, |

AM ALEQ FLEASED TO J0IH MY COLLEAGUE, JiM LIGHTFOOT IN WELCOMING -
ADELAIDE CARFEHTER OF COOH RAFIDS, TO WASHIHGTON. JIM AND 1 RECOGNEE
THE TREMENDOUS CONTRIBUTIONS MRS, CARFENTER HAX MADE TG THE ELDERLY
COURTY BY DETRIBUTING FOOD TO THE RURAL ELDERLY THROUGH THE
HOWLEDGE AND EXPRTUENCE

IH FOL
COMMODITY SUPFLEMENTAL FOOD PROGRAM. HER
WILL UNDOUBTEDLY PRGVIDE BOTH SELECT COMMITTEES VALUABLE INSIGHT oF

THE NUTRITIOHAL NEEDE OF THE RURAL éLDEZLY. IN PARTICULAR.
THE PROGRAM WHICH MRS. CARFENTER CURRENTLY VOLUNTEERS FOR, THE

COMMODITY BUPPLEMENTAL EOOD PROGRAM, WAS IHNITIALLY BESIGNED To 5y UFFLY
ICOME YOUNQO CHILDREN AND FREGHANT WOMEN WITH NUTRITIOH AL

BUFPLEMENTS TO THEIR DIETS. THREE ELDERLY FEEDING FILOT FROJECTS WE

M‘

: LAUNCHED IN 1882 TO EXFAND THIS PROGRAM To THE ELDERLY INCLUDI

DES MOINEE, IOWA. GUR EXPERIENCE IN THE STATE OF IOWA HAS BEEN QUITE

FAVORABLE, PROVIDING NUTRITIONAL FOOD POR 4,100 ELDERLY IOWANS (OVER 300
ARE ON A WAITING LIFT), AHD | WOULD EHCOURAGE BROADENIFG THE

PLUZ POODE TO SENIOR CITIZERS.

AYAILABILITY OF OUR 80
JUST AS THIZ FROGRAM FOCUSES ON THE NUTRITIONAL NEEDS OF THE VERY
YOUNG AND THR ELDERLY, 1HOFE OUR DISCUSEION TODAY CAH LODK TOWARD
RAISING BUBLIC AWARENEES OF THE EXISTING MEAL PROGRAMS AVAILABLE TO
BENIOR CITIZENS FROM OLDER AMERICANS AST MEAL PROGRAME, THE FOOD ETAMF
FROGRAM, AND THE COMMODITY SUFFLEMEHTAL FOOD PROGRAM. WE MUusT ALED
ENCOURAGE HEALTH GCARE PROVIDERS TO EDUCATE RECOOPERATIHG SEHIGAS OF
THE VITAL IMFORTANCE OF MAINTAINING AND SUPFLEMENTING THEIR DIETARY
HABITS IH ORDER TO RECOVER MORE QUICKLY AND MORE FULLY. THE GRGWTH oF

WELLNEZZ PROGRAMS AND HOLISTIC CARE CAN ALZG ESE‘I‘ OUR ELDERLY
FOPULATION TO MAINTAIN THEIR HEALTH THROUGH EHQFER EATIHG HAEITE

WE MUST NOT ONLY EDUCATE THE PUBLIC OF EXISTIHG FROGRAME BUT
TARGET OUR CAMPAIGN TG THOSE WHO ARE iN THE MOST NEED, CONSIDERING
T STRETCI EACH LOLLAR

THAT MANY SENIORS LIVE ON PIXED IHCOMES AND &

TQ BE ABLE TG FAY FOR HOUSING, MEDICAL CARE, FRESCRIFTION DRUGS,

2]

FDUCGATION GN METHODS OF ENSURING A HEALTHY DIET ON LIMITED MEANS 15
NEGESSARY. )

OUR ELDERL—Y. PARTICULARLY THOSE NEAR aANL N POVEATY, ARE MOST

SUSCEPTIBLE TO SUFFER FROM MALRUTRITION AKD HUNGER. WE CAH WIN THE s
1ORS BY EXFAHDING

BATTLE AGAINST HUNGER AND IMPROVE THE HEALTH OF g
THEIR KNOWLEDGE OF AVAILABLE GOVERNME.'T ASSISTANCE FROGRAME AND
THEIR KNOWLEDGE OF HUTHITIOHAL NECESSITIES.

1L FORWARD TO LEARKING THE VIEWS OF OUR DISTINGUISHED WITH EB5ES

TODAY AND HOFE WE FIHD VIABLE SOLUTIONS TO THE FROBLEM OF HUNGE

kol

AMONG THE ELDERLY,
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PREPARED STATEMENT oF WiLLiAM R. HurtoN, EXECUTIVE hrECTOR, NATIONAL

CourciL oF SeEnior CITIZENS

Chairmen Leland and Roybal, I am William R. Hutton, Executive
pirscter of the Hational Council ef Sﬁ\ﬂiﬂf citizens. The HNational
council represents 4.5 m@millien @ldar persons, DADY of whom
participate in Faderal nutrition programs. We are glad the Select
committess on Hunger and Aging have joined forces to examine the
problem r’;f. hunger a;i:mé‘ ‘t,he alderly. There has been very 1little
attenticn devoted to this issue, slthough hunger and malnutrition
affliet many oldar persons and poor nutrition can advaraely affect
health maintenance.

We walcome the opportunity to address this important subjeet.
It is a disgrace for any parsoch to go hungry in a country with thea
abundant rascurces of tha United States. It is alse short-sighted
and inaffactive social policy to fail to ansure adequate nutrition ;
for our eitizens and latsr pay higher eosts for health care. \

In -ggcant montha, thers ha.ﬂ*e bgan numarcous media portrayals of
tha sldarly as baing uniformly wealthy. Soms have sven implied that
ths *"wealthy elderly” ars the source of many of our nation's economlc
woes. ‘Today's hearing provides a much-neaded opportunity to refute '
uch distorticons.

An unacoeptably large numbar of older parsons racain in poverty

today. Their nesds must not ba ignered saimply because some of tha -

aldarly are affluent. Furtharmors, medical studiss raported last .
yaar indicate that malnutrition may ba far more parvasive among the
aged than praviously realized,

Aceording to "Tha Hew York Z;ﬁaa,i as many as half the patien's .
alderly may ba consuming too feaw caloriss, proteins of i!l;ﬂtiﬂiA
vitamina and mninerals for good hgg;\f;h. The rasultant poor

nourishment may be contribting to the ‘weakened di registan

asn among the aldsrly, sclentists report. Thess problems afflict
sven the afflusnt alderly, although they ars mors sarious among ’Eﬁi;
paor.

Az & nation, we face the challange of an aging mociety. It is
imparative that policy dacisions affecting the ;légssly ba made with &

recognition of the divarsity of the =aging population and a’

pansitivity to the needs of the valnerabls.

Most Americans who sxperisnce hunger or malnutrition 4o =e for

20



O

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

‘pém;-ely economie reasona. The caysea are fé;’ more complex among the
elderly population. Ameng the factors which may contribute to peor
nutrition ameng the aged are: chronic illness, diminished ability to
abgsorb nutrients from foed, loneliness, and difficulty in shopping
for food and preparing meals. Lack of income will exacerbate any of
these problems and, thersfore, must be given special attentien.
Although the aged are no longer the poorest group of Americans,

there are still aubstantial - +bers of older parasons in or éerilaualy

[

less to poverty. The lin. ; :tween poverty and risk of inadeguata
nutritien is clear.

The development of the moverty line waz based upon a diet plan
dasignad only for short-term use. Then, a lower poverty atandard was
eatablished for the elderly, based on the assumption that older
people need less food than do younger pErscns. This threshold is
ovar $400 a year lower for elderly individuals, £700 lower for aged
couples, than for the non-elderly. But while the elderly raguire

fewer calories, thair

nutritional negds do pot diminish. The
leading specialist on nputrition and aging, Dr. BHobert Butlesr,
recommended an income 25 percent above the official poverty line teo
provide a nutritionally adegquate diet for the elderly.

Using that standard, nearly 5.7 million personz aged 65 and over
may be at nutritional risk. This conatitutes 21 pareent of the
nation's elderly. Certain subgroups of the elderly are far more
likely to be poor and conseguently risk hunger: women, minorities,
persons living alone and the very sld. As the following chart

indieates, poverty rates among subgroups vary widely.

1984 Poverty Rates (Percent)

Total White Hiapanic
Men 65+ 8.7 7.2 20.6
Women &5+ 15.¢ 13.1 22.1
Total 65+ 12.4 la.7 21l.5
65+ Below 125%
of Povarty 21.2 19.0 45.86 34.7

Eilderly living alone are twice as likely to ba poor as those whe

live with others and an astonishing 65 percent of black female

living =lone are poor. Peraona B85 and older are nearly twice as

[

likely to ba poor as thoss agad 65=74 and 71 parcent of tha very ol
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nutritienal needs of the elderly, seriocus gaps exist in the se-&alled
social safety net.” !

By far, the moat sueeessful anti-povarty program for thea elderly
is Bocial Security. Improved adeguacy and regular indaxation of
benefits instituted during the 19708 are almost ai,,gieshgﬁﬂealij
Just 25 years Bgo, more than one—=third of the elderly population waa
poor. Fifteen yeara ago, poverty was twice as high among the elderly

as for other age groups.

Today, poverty ameng ths elderly iz comparable to that of the
general populatisn. But lowsr incoms elders are anormously dspandent
upon Social Sacurity. Aged heouseholds with incomeszs under £5,000
receive 80 parcent of their income from Social Security. Such
households receive only 11 percent of their income from publie

agasistance programs. Social Security income prevents 9.4 millisn

older persons from falling into poverty and reduces the povarty rate

L]

for the aged from 47.6 parcent to 12.4 parcent.

Those older persons who do not escape poverty through Soecial
Security p;ymantg may be aided by the Supplemsantal Security Income
{28I) program. But in most Zases, 55T does not pravent poverty, as
Fedaral paymenta are =gat at 75 parcent of- the poverty line for
individuales, 90 parcsnt for couples. Furthermora, only about ona=
third of the elderly poor recelve S3I.

The maximum Pederal S5I benefit iz Jjust %336 a month for an

ipndividual, 5504 for a coupls. While many

taten gupplamant the

Federal payment, almoat none bring recipients ovar the poverty line.
Evan when maximum 551 benefitsz are added to food stamp benaflts, only
four states bring aged individualas out of poverty. Nationally, the
Federal 551 benefit for individonla combined with Social Bscurlty and
food atamps ameunts to just B4 parcent of the povarty line.

sturbing as thess figures ars, they may presant an overly

pleturs, for, in addition to low participation im 85I,

Sn& ivd of poor families containing an elderly member

receive food atamp banafits. Participation lavels are aven lowsc for
agad individuals living alons. Only 15 percent of eldarly families
in poverty receivs Soclal Security, 55I and food satamps.

Low participation by the alderly in the SS8I and food stamp

programs has been noted often, but little has baen done to address
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this problem. Studies to date have found lack of infermation to be
£

the predominant reasen for non-participation.

Eevaral othar factors contribute to ine inadequacy among the
elderly which ean lead o poor putrition, According to the Labor

Departmeant's Consomer Expanditure Survey, oldsr persons apend a

higher proportion of their income on food, housing and health care
than any other age group. Federal programs designed to address thess

eeds alwo have gaps in coverage.

v?‘;’l
.

Tha Low=Income Heanés Enargy Asaistance ({LIHEAT) and

Wantherization programs give priority assistance to the eldsrly
poor. Unfortnnataly, funding levels are too low to serva mora than

ona=third of those eligible. Parsons recaiving heating assistancs

gat, or average, just .5208 for an entire winter. To date,
13 millien aligible housing units Temaln unweatheclzed. Rasidents of
thoss homas continue to face unnscessarily high fusl billa.

Whila most slderly perions are coverad by Medieare, oanly onea-

third of the elderly poor alse raceive Hedicaid.

moet of +tha aldarly poor mmst pay HMedic
deductibles .and pay ocut-of-pocket for uncoversd:.sarvices such ‘as
ayesglazssas and prescription Arugs. Even thosa coverad by both
Hedieare and Medicald oftsn have substantial gaps in coveraga.

The two programs specifically designed to meet ths nuntritional
neads of the welderly ars Congregate and Homa-Deliversd Meals. The
craators of thess programe rscognized . the divecsity of ressons ihg
mandatad

older parsons may lack adsquate putrition and, therafors,
that sanicr meals programs be available to all oldsr . parsons,

regardless of income. .Howeygar, Congrass wisaly acknowledged the
spacial nesds of the poor and reguired that asrvicea bs targetsd to
parsons with the "graatsst social and sconcmic nesd.” )

Onfortunately, funding levels for thassa programs bavse =always

baan woafully inadeguate. In 1984, mors thon saven million psrscons

60 ymars and older lived besiow 125 parcent of the poverty lins. Yat

only two million seniors of “greatast s ie nead® wers sarved by

sither Congregats or Home-Deliversd Maals Programs in FY 15985, In
other words, fewer than ona-third of thé highest-risk/highest=-

priority group of slders iz being. served. Even thoss whe ara served

. genarally recaive just one gi;i a day, five days z weak.

Daspits the Congrassional mandste to target servicss to . the
poor, tha ability of ssrvice providers to accosplish this goal has
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diminished ovar ths past giva years. Whereas, in 1982, &1 Apg;:ant af

cohgregate meal participants were economically needy, that praportisn
had droppad to 53 percent in 1985, after having fallen to 56 pazeent
in 1983 and 1984.

Thera has been coraiderable concern among service providers that
tha ﬂ:ﬁp in low=income participatien is linksed to atrenuous efforts
by the Administration to eellect more ®voluntary contributiens® from
program participanta. The Older Amercicans Act allows service
provideras to aclieit voluntary cnntfibuﬁi;af:g for meals but no one may

ba turned away for failure to contribute.

The purposs of such contributions is to expand the number of
meals served, but the Administration has advocated tha use af
voluntary contributions to replace Fedsral responsibility. In 1ts F¥
1987 budget document, the Department of Health and Human Services
gtated that contributions have increased frem $69.1 million in 1981
to a projacted 5156.9 million in 1987.

If this inerease is ralated to declining participation by tha
poor, its utility may be guestionsble, It is important that meal
pregrama reach the highest=risk s=eniors. If requesta for
contributicons are overzsalous, the pride of those too poor to pay may
be agaaulted and they will be driven away from this important
program. It appears that thia is already happening.

Thers is another area in which the Administration has weakenad
its commitment to helping the aged poor recsive nutritienal
asgistancae. When the requlations to the Oldar Americans Act ware
overhauled last year, the raquirement that all smervice providers
aszlist participants in _(;;J:i,f;g advantage of benefits available to them
under the Food Stamp ?;agzaﬁ wag deleted. Under the new ragqulatiocns,
only homa-delivered mesal providers would ba required to provides any
asmistance and the specific refesrsnce to food stampa was eliminated.

‘Although more than half the participants in

Programs are poor, only 13 percent of congregats meala
and 19 percant of home-deliversd meals participants receive food
SEADDE.

Not only is participation in tha Food Stamp ?f;Dgrfj,, low for
elderly parsons, but benefit lavels for reciplents ars meager.
and this

Average food stamp benafits are just 245 a parson per mo
amount is usually sven lower for slderly beneficiarien,

_Eﬂhiiﬂafiﬂg’x the large numbar of clder pacrsonas with low incoman

LS
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and the inadeguacy of covara of nutritional assistances and income

15i.]

-g;ntanam:g Programs; it is not surprising that hungear among the

elderly is problematic,
has bees compiled which ravesls

A considerable body of eviden
that increasing numbers of older parscaos are razorting to emargsncy
food centars in an attempt to mest thelr nutritiocnal naeda. Ijéi; anly
do many find it demeaning to turn to such services, but soup kitchens

and food pantries are not alwaye able to provide nutritionally

balanced meala. This is a particular prolFlem for older pearssnm who

often have medical conditions which require aspecial diets.

Thare clearly nesds to ba mors publie edacation dirscted to the
low=income slderly informing them of Federal programs for which thay
may ba eligible. An  important first atep was taken during
reanthorization of the Pood Stamp Program last year, when Congress
directod ZSocial Secarity offices to provide benaficiariss with
information about food atamps and to asaist 581 participants in
applying for banafits, ’

Such efforts should be sxpanded. Bocial Security offices are
familiar to and utilized by wvirtually all older perscns. As such,
thay should awpand efforts o notify parsons with small Social
Sscurity béﬁg:’i;ﬁ of the evallability of SSI and food stamp
benafits. They should alse be far mors active in assisting =uch
porackea in applying for benefita.

A’i‘hé other currently existing structure with which many oldar
persone are comfortable and familiar is that of the Older Americans

Act programs. These programs wars designed to provide comprehensive

asslstance to older persons. Congregate and home-delivered meal
providers are in an ideal position to make available information

about the Pood Stamp Program.
Unfortunatsly, funding reductions and freezes in theze programa

make it difficult for service providera tao expand thelr range of

activities. This im espscially true as the amize of the aging
population continues to grow. The National Couneil of Senlor

Citizens strongly recommands that new funding be allocated
specifieally to help OAR servics providers inform and aasasist
participants with food stamp information.

We alss believe additional funds are needed to expand meal
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services §§ ﬁﬁ;:égt;y unzerved low-income elderly persons. In our
view, it is not cost-effective to cut corners on nutrition programs
which ean help pressrve the health of cur nation's older citizens.

!;ngiiy.‘thg nutritional neads of the alderly wounld be addressed
by raising Pederal SSI benefits at least to thas povarty line. It is
very difficult toc ensure nutritional adeguacy for persocns whose
incomes are inaufficient.

If we ara to make A sericus attempt to end hunger among our
natien's elders, it iam essential that program benaefits and fuonding
for services be made adequate. In addition, eligible persons must ba
informed of tha é:iiténgg of thess programe and assisted in

participating.
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF ADELAIDE CARPENTER, VOLUNTEER, ELDERLY FrEDING Piror
Prosecr, Porg Counry, lowa

Chairman Panetta, Chalrman HRoybal, members of the Committes:

Thank you for allowing me this opportunity to share with you ssme of my personal
experiences while s rving 23 a volunteer with the Elderly Feeding Pilot Project as thess
experlences relate to hunger and aging in Folk County, lowa.

1 am Adelaide €. Carpenter and I was born In Guttenburg, a small town in Northeastern
swa. 1 graduated from lwa State Teacher's College in Cedar Falls, Iowa, and taught =choal
ten years before my marrlage, I lived most of my married life in Coon Rapids, owa. 1
vorked s a legal secretary and bookkeeper In & : r f f
alinost twenty-five years. For two yenrs f
business. Ihavs since sold this business an

it of the heme, I took a VISTA assignment in 1966 and
nally disturbed at Coney Bland Hoszpital,

With my three children grown and
served in a Day Treatment Center for the emot
Erooklyn, New York.

My interest In volunteer work continued over the next eleven years and I sarved In the
follawlng projecta: '

1. . Served aa g nelghborhood visiter for Grace United Methodist Chureh in

lowa.

2. 18979 = 1980. Werked as a VISTA Vo
lows, Senior Citizen's Projeet, Des Molnes

eer with the Legal Services Corporation of
Iowa.

3. 1980 = 1986. I volunteered at thess Des Molfies, REVE projects: The Botanleal Center,
Shepherd Center for Senior Citizens, Secretary of State Uniform Commercial Code
offiee, 83 & Small Claims Medistor &t the Polk County Court House, and at the Elderly .
Feeding Froject.

1 becams Involved In the Elderly Faeding Project becauss I heard Velma Flisher, Director of
the Elderly Pesding Project, spedk about the Projeet at a Legisiative Advocasy Group of
which 1am a member. 1deeided it would be & challenging way for me to become invelyed In
8 worthwhile profect. I have found the hands on experlence to be very satisfying and
gratifying and have been with the Fraject sinee {ts beginning {n 1982,

1 belisve the Hderly Feeding Pflot Projest Is the most useful and rewarding of any of the
government programs 1 have worked with, both to the clisnts as well as the voluntears
Involved. This Is due In large meamirs to the able edministration of Project Director Velma

Flisher and Direstor of Voluntaars, Mary Ann Juhl, both of the Des Moines office, :

its begl

and made { : 1 =

Involved pei eommunieation in the cllents home, sitting at a table with the
lopking into their eyes and sometimes seelng the pain of those having to accept "wel
Indeed, many eould not keep tears from thelr ayes as they descrlbed hardships they had
overcame without government help. .

T kmow that some of the part ts ara getting food other 1
often trying to save portions of food so thay'd have aol that night er on the weekends.
Some of thoss that were not homebound (who were ace spted after the = i
project) also participated in the Congregate Mesl Frogram which provides a noon meal.
Many of the siderly I served, even though eligibla for thess programs, wanted no part of
these other programs. [ would new like to tell you of asms of my _expériences while
delivering commodities to the elderly 2o that you might have a better pleture of what this
program meant to the low Incoma alderly. -

of my first trips dalivering sommodities was to a little cottage with peeling paint on an
unsurfaced street with no curb and gutter. It was my first stop of the day with 48 Ibs, of
commedities. After knooking hard and walting saveral minutes, Besale, age 86, opened the
door v one hand, while hanging on to her walker. Ehe was 8o happy to sea me and amiled
a4z I told her I'd be bringing her In. After getting the two large boxes into her kitchen I
sat down at the table with her to answer her questions first,

"How do you uss thoss dry packaged egga? I‘mn@tmwéah@ut!uiﬁa,hawﬂnymm:ith,.

Ehe asked if 1 would put the things in her cupboards, and I falt like Old Mother Hubbard when
1 opened the doors: they were nearly bare. While stashing things away I listened to her
problema and fears. Her $289.00 Bocial See rity eheck wasi't allowing for anything other

bare necemities, and without energy amlstance and help from the Hoard of
s on her real estate taxes, along with the commuodities, she couldn’t make it.

PO 5 Sldasl

commodities to low e homebound ly
on visita for the program. Each of these Jobs

recelved mobile meals,

One

N
N
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Another vislt tosk to a sscond flosr spartment sbove an empty business. Hannah,
partisily ealled for me to come up when I ¢ bizer In 2 cluttered and flithy
hallway. 1 carvied the commoditias into & xmell apartment that had Httls firniture but much -
stuff and jmk was pilsd on what Litils furnlture there was. The eommodities had 1o be kept
on the fNoor xx the kitchen was only a for t. Hannsh pleased a2 I
helped her fesl the differsnt packages and t was ir could tell by size
erence In the dry milk, potatoss and eggs. Can you imaghne what the
ecoramodities meant to her?

On yot another dallvery to a "homebound:” 'Ihgﬂ:ygg:aﬂh@whnmamdmykﬁmma
2o, mowy and windy momning greeted me;

] was afrajd you'd not make it on & day ke this.®

1 just said the wind had helpsd me along and that I had her two bores of goodies. After they
were all on her kitchen table she was anxious to look them over.

gnirg to aat tonight? That farina I really like for breakfast and if
hand full in too. 1 want to coolc my own meals ‘cause I know what

ke best. 'mm&hdqms! I never thought I'd wse that stuff. But I've laarned they aren’t
86 bad If you doctoe tham up a bit. But 1 do miss sscing and hearing the hens.”

1 listened to her a2 I got all the eommeditias I eould on the shelves and she looked up and
said, *t closs the doors, pleass, I want te see averything.”

Bertha's total monthly Income was $312.00.

En a egﬂméaﬂnn viait 1 me. Lizgie. Lizzle knew for some time that others in her buﬂdirg
were recei ditiex use they had suggested she apply too. Lizzie was much too
pﬁtﬁmmlt wm'tuntﬂ;hagut ﬂmmtaamptyeupbnud:thntahahadsnhmge@f

So Lizrle, who ks 87, walked 2 miles through the strests nr Des Molnes to the Project office
to apply for the commoditisz. No ons was sble to ses her that day, but I was sent out the
following day to Interv her. Hwe wanted to know detafls and "not do anything wrong . - .7
Her 83 year sld son, who was not able to meve wround, listened gqulsily. As I dessribsd the
available commodities, Lizzie interjected,

"Oh, fruit ju!eg = we haven't had any for menths . . . poanut butter! Ii% bsen too
axponslve. . .7

Ard her son'% eyes would beighten when he told me,

"Mem's A good cosk If ahe just hax somsthing to cosk with.”

Thelr eonibined monthly incomes was below the le
the program's quota was flilsd &t that paint they

erled as I left bacauss sh r thought she'd have to beg for fo &he went cut with me
mhmmﬂHmammdMnm“mmamawqbefml & goodbye.

Durﬁ'n: a recertification I visited a couple, one 88 and one B4, living In & very tiny house on

olfn @ 1 . They crisd when I got th amwmtm;ﬁiywhennam Why?

d becausa they wera asking ‘oed. Boclal Becurity was thelr only

e and thalr luﬂmﬂw&fﬂe@tﬂﬁmﬂgmm They showed me the nearly

amptgr freezer and refrigerator, the mup ds afid their medical bills and talked of a garden

they hopad thay could have. They did qualify and were certified for four years. Without
eammaﬂltla; they would not ba able to adequetaly feed 1 I

'Elrlarr one =0 they qualified but bacaiiss

CONCLUSION

Am-you ocan tell, I am really enthusisstie about this program. I know from first han
axperjence what a great need it iz filllng, A nesd that food stamps, moblle mes 8
cofigragAte meals cmnnt mest.

i i

I know that if any of you could secompany me oh my rounds dellvering these food packages
and talking to those being Mef when I give
b, Gﬂn;halr food, you would have o problem wilh voting to kaep thig program alive and

Des Moines, Detroit, and Hew Orleans have demonstrated the value of the program, and that
the voluntser sysiem does work. Now it is up to Congress.

I know that you will not disappoint me and my many friends back in lowa; friends that I have
made serving in this pregram; frisnds that just need & helping hand.
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PREPARED STATEMFENT oF Dr. Davip A, Lirscarrz, DirEcTOR, GERIATRIC RESEAR
EDUCATION AND CLINICAL CENTER, JOHN L. Mccnmm MenmoriaL VETERANS HDS]
TAL AND ProFessor or MEpicINE, DirecTOR, DIvisSION oN ActNG, UNIVERSITY

AREANSAS FOR MEDICAL ScreNces

Bunger can manifest in various ways. Gemerally we think of the suffering
enctional sand otherwise, which cocuns when ecoromdeally deprived individusls
present with symptore related to an insdequate access to food. The physician
community in the United States iz likely to ses huﬁg&' Present primarily in
tha elderly population reni festing with hunger's t seriois medical
corplication, namely malputrition. Malnutrition may present in a mumber of

ways. The most w:laési::aily described disorder which we will expand an later
is protein calorie milnutrition. This dissass cccurs in individuals who have
taken in too Eéw calories and \‘::-a little protein for & Eroloxged pericd of
time. More rarely other symptoms result from inadeguate food intake. Of most
importance is deficiencies of vitamin A afd zine, which occur in elderly
subjects who have consumed insdermate mmounts of food. These individuals lose
their ability to taste food, lcse their appetite ard lose their ability te
ight infections. It is not surprising that these individusls who are now
anarsctic and frail are likely to continue a zelentless progreszsien of a
problem which manifests with the serious complicatiing of malnutrition; namely
anfusion, dehydration and sericus, often fatal bacterial infection.

There is some evidence that nutriticnal reserve capscity is compromsied
with aging. fThus subtle inadequacies of Food intake caused by a change in
social c‘_zrcufgtam:é, or the presence of a coexisting diseasc may well result

Ihe Trevalener of Protein Coleris Mol rition.

Fpidendolegic studies Lave shown that nuiritional deficiencies are rare in
affluent healthy elderly Amoricans. Tn elderly from low seciccconomic grotfs,
however, nutritional deficiencies of same severity are much wore comon. The
highest prevalenes of protein calerie malnutrition is in hospitalized elderly
patiente. mse evidence suggests that at lsast €51 of elderly individuals
admitied to hospdtsl have & serious nutriticnal problem. It is our experience
in the Geriatric Evaluaticn Dnit at the John L. McClellan Memorisl Veterans
Hospital, that as many as half our elderly subjects have seve:

calorie malmutrition which warrants scme form of nutritional interventien
progran.

e Clinical Features of Protein-Calorie Mslnutritien in the Elderl:

In the vast majority of cases protein-ealorie malnutrition in the elderly,
like in other age groupe, is associated with the presence of & primary dissase
which is the main cause for hospitalization for that individual,. Cissazes
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peseciated with malnutritien include cancer, chronie heart and lung disease,

digsases by themselves are associated with decveased appetite which results. in

insdequate intake af food. In an older individual this ancrexis ean rapidly

the fact that we alss frequently see elderly individuals who present to
Foepital with starvation as thelr primary disgnosis. These sibjects are
usually indigent, mmgﬂy@:mﬂﬁmﬁmmim

incomes. ' A recent change in envi

frequently depressed and may have had a recent medical illpess which has
subjects have grossly insdequate fool intake and oventunlly prescnt to
i@tal with the complications of protein-calorie malnutrition.

rotivnts rarcly come to hospital saying, Dector, T oam starving.  Futher

" thoy van: with the eoplications of protoin-colorie molrutrition. Theso

include weight loss, detydration, and infection. Invarisbly these patients
semiconscious in thedr hemes by & relative or a friend and are disorientsd for
tims ard place. An unfortunate fact is that the admitting physiclan will

the patient’s clinicel presentation. The delydration and infectich will be

coqnized and treated and  the confusion will be ascribed to senile dementia.

froquently be discharged back to his or her own envirorment only to =]
readmitted a ghort tims later with & worsening problem that wmy poove fatal.

How do wa Diagm Protein Calorie Malmitrition?
serum albumdn (& test that is invarishly cbtained cn aﬂiﬂsﬂm to hoapdtal),
is serkedly reduced in subjects with protein-ealorie malmrtrition.

Furthermore other laboratory parameters that are reutinely cbtained can

extrenaly 111. The initisl focus of menagement should be to correct their
1ife threatening medical discrdsrs. It is popaible to correct delppdration and
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their nutriticnal pml;iafg sh:uld ke bazed an ﬁ_liﬁ-i!f;al Judgment and the
presonce of absenco of coexisting dizeaze that may indicate the patient's
chance fer lang term survival. For exarple, if the pstient has an ireurable
disease, such as a eancer which is anticipated to resvlt in inminent death,
aggressive nutriticnal intervention may not be appropriate, e magrity of
@Zﬁéﬂ;‘ malnourisled patients, hewever, have réver=ible disesze and clviovus
rehabilitation potential, These patients roquire an intensive rehakilitatien
program that mt only corrects their nutritional deficiencies hut also poys
attention to their social ciroum=tance, mmt, ability to fimetian
indeferdently and their family interactions. 'rhig egprehensive approach is
required to assure that the problem resulting in hospitalizatien does not
malnourished older individusls lose their ippetite it is freqently not

- pasgible for them to cmsume sufficient food volntarily. These subdects may

resuire a special form of feeding that utilizes a flexible small bore
polyethylene tube, that is passsd threoush the nose and stomach into the

patient's ducden Kazogastrie feeding, also referred te as enteral

hyperalimentatien, allews the correcticn of nutritional deficiencies. In an
enclosed report we present elinical evidence that this ag::ﬁa«:h can result in
the correction of protein calerie malmtritien in the elderly. 12 1t can
result in irprovement in mental function, weight gain and incresse the ability
of thess individusls to fight infecticn, Correction of nutritienal deficiency
and apprepriate rehabilitation ean irmove the quality of Z.i_fe of these
patients and prevent nursing hare replacoment. We have mny exarples of older
irdividuals who have recelved mix weeks of rehahilitation at our Veterans
Aministration Hospital who have gone hack to the commnity and have led
Major changes are occurring in the way in which we practice medicine,
Providing six to eight wecks of retubilitation for nutritional deficiencies in
an scute care hospital {2 po longer an eption under now DEG {Bizeaze related

[rewvidod, 1

believe, a lesdership role for the nation in intermediste and Jeng-toerm
rchabilitation for the geriatrie patient. Thise prograss have €lrarly hoon
shewn to bo cost effective by minimizing the nesd for institutionalization and
preventing recurrent admissions to lspital. Thie model of geriatrie
rehabilitation has unfortunately not been extenaively developed in the general
medical commnity. It is clesr, therefore, that the crestion of a greater
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opportunity for geriatric rehabilitation is a eritical need. At the current
time there are few hglt‘h care providers who recognize the potentisl of
rehabilitating elderly individuals with nutriticnal and other medical )
problems. This can be achieved by appropriate hospitalization in a leng-term
caré rehabilitation facility. I am enclesing a copy of the results of a mdel

n of geriatric rehsbilitation that was developed and pionseved by the

Little Rock Geriatric Research Bdueatieon and Clindeal Center (GRECC) which is

now becoming a standard for care of elderly veterans throughout the Veterans

Administration Hospital system.a

There are minimal if any opportynities
available for these non-veteran Ke,lderly citigens whe are frail and require
support services. There is a need to develop intermediate care hospital beds
where elderly subjects with nutritienal and other problems can be eared for in
a cost effective manner. These zites should be available for elderly
individuals who have utilized their maximun acute care medicine stay under
current law but are still not well encugh to return to their homes. This &

coneept of short-term-long-term care is one that cannot bé over emphasized.

[l

& also & critical need for a greater cwphasis on nutritien in.the

1 of physicianz and all other health care professiensls. This has to
be the responsihility of medical schools and other colleges that train nurses,
soial workers, ete.

) m aklitional rejor nosd is to assure !Jxét conprond notd oldiy Jndividunls
who are likely to have nutritional prolidens have casy acecss to community
support services. As T am sure you have heard, or will hear, there are
certain issues with regard to cwmunity support that roeguire urgent

attention. It is apparent to me that there are large mumders of neglected

itizens in communities acress America who are either unaware or who are
for varicus reasons unable to become eligible for urgently required
nutritional and other support services.

Finally, I must add that I believe that the solution to the medical
predictament of hunger in elderly individuals involves a restructuring of our
current medical priorities, By paving attention to the health and welfare of
older individuals and by assuring their continved prodectivity we will
minimize the opportunities for creating nutriticnal deficiencies and hopefully

expensive medical resources. A preventative approach to disease will snlso
hepefully substantially improve the quality of life of older Americans ard
allew them to remain independent in the commmity for as lopg as possible.
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF VELMA FLioHER, PROGRAM MANAGE
SUPPLEMENTAL Foon Procrams, Pork County, Towa T

Chairman Panstta, Chairman Hoybal, membars of the Committsa;

- affective way to relleva chronls uernutritlon among the pﬁ-cir alderly. avi .
estimats, at leagt 25% of our nation's alderly are poor and without sdequats fond :m
thelr health and well being.

‘Tha thres Pllot Projeets ware leeated In Detroit; Michigan, New Orlsans, L
Moines, lowa. All throe citiss were already involved in the ﬂhkhﬁaﬂ [}
to women, Infants end children through the Commodity Suppl

gram (CHFF)

When the program began in 1982 we were authorized to serve 1,600 low income, homebound
peraons 60 or olde:. h-!anuir_v, 1884, wo were allowsd to start se low income elderly
in additlon to the homs y. At the presant time we are lﬁE-ﬂl,lD! PErsGE pe
month of which 56% are homebomnd. We sarva ;ya-r!y ot arIB,HI l'ﬁﬁdpnﬂkagﬂ. Cur
food package cost as of January, 1986 was $12.87 per package.

In Jamusry, 1986, we took a stenderd food packege (see Atiachment #I) and did some
mwmmmm;ta&mtmﬁxgammmnm,m Y
nahhhuhnndxtwe. mamtﬂl‘mfeﬁdgm t 8t i $40.2

; t 314 E.W. 9th ca the north side of the Ea&k
Thi hibgd operation as our

mdmyg:iBES we
Wa Budl ! ' prOgram
I@dﬂhmdlnthhwmhau kmma@?mmuﬁ'ﬁpmmtﬂm

Nutrition eduestion and Information I handled ihrough lowa Btate Uﬂlvarllty Extansion
Bervies. It fa provided at the local distribution site oq a one-to-one basls, In the humg,
in group semons at the 15 7?&: allxitaiﬂ?alkcwmy. mhpnrtnfthe
has made the eiderly balng & - 1y aware of the value of good nutrition
they m lge the commedities to m‘.hlava good nutrition.

l:! Pilot Project e@n;m of:
1 - Social Warkgr Alde

i= m—hnE time E'rugrnm Managsr

In the case of tha hnmnbﬁgmd elients, the food packages are either plekad up by proxles or
delivered by approzima £ Thase vo 3 contribute on an average of
teer | ] 1 time employees,

We have a linkage with State, County and local agencies, peaviding services to the low
ineome elderly, in our gaographical area of Folk County, thus ereating & rofarral syatem of
services available to our elients.

The EFFPa strengihs are the quality and
to deliver food, to work in the wnrahﬁuna, to
partisipants, ) which resiults in & mibstantial »

untese Bystam has halpeﬂ

[}
of food available and the use of volunteers
da services, and to work with the
5 of dollara through lowered administrative
ake the program very cost sffeetive. It has
xIpants of new friends, anslatance with problems,
and just having someans to talk to. hil glven tia particlpant a new fesource in thalr lifa
snd has put new meaning and [irpose into tha life of the voluntears.

The food package containa foods from the four major food groups (see Attachment #2).
Belng able to buy high quality, nutritious food iz one of the probl that %0
iiving on & low monthly fixed income has to facs. Thiz food provided througl &
invaluable to the participant- *n terms of providing Lhem thelr only scures of gﬁﬂﬂ
nutriticus, wholesome food.

i.  The food package uupr!ng to mest specific nuiritional and medical needs of individual
_partielpants (L.e., diabetic, low salt, right to refuse foods not mesting dietary needs,
. ate)
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2. Referral system to other agencies to assist participants with special and other needs.

3. Provide service to homebound elients specifically by delivering food packages to their
homes. In addition to delivering the food packages, the volunteers are trained to spot
and to deal with other problems that may be confronting the typieal homebound
participant.

4. Nutrition educatien required to be provided as part of the program.

I would now like to address some of the problems with the EFPP.

Funding poses a problem. We need to know in advance what our yearly allocation is, in order
to plan our budget accordingly.

Restrieting EFPP's to only areas where a CSFP exists presents another problem area. For
futura programming purposes I would certainly hope that EFPPs could be started in
communities across our nation without having to be affiliated with a Co ity

Supplemental Food Program, since there are only 27 CSFP programs in operation at this
time. To do otherwise would seem to me to diseriminate against low Ingome elderly eitizens
living In areas net having a Commodity Supplemental Program for women, infants, and
children. .

According to 1980 census figures, Folk County has approximately 11,000 low income elderly.
We have been authorized to serve 4,102 persons per month, of which 56% are homebound
(sze Attachment #3). This means there are approximately 7,000 potential clients that are
not being served, It is true Polk County has other feeding programs for the elderly, i.e.,
food stamps, mobile meals, congregate meals, and even the food bank. But none of these
programs ensure proper nutrition and good health for our senjors. The above mentioned
programs leave a gap in the the 1eal a day concept as well a8 no assistance whatever on
holidays and weekends. It is important to eat three meals a day. The commeodity program
does allow these persons to have three meals a day. It allows those parti nts who are
living on & small fixed ineome to live with a small amount of dignity. It Is important for the
1derly emain in their own homes and out of health care facilities. Good nuteition is
instrumental in allowing this to happen. The average Income of a low Income househ i
between $450.00 and $500.00 per month - with the high medieal cost and the high utility
bills, there i3 no doubt these people need help to assist in making ends meet.

There are still thousands of elderly poor waiting to ba served. We are not at
recruit any new applicants for the program. We have approximately 500 app!
waiting list. We add from the waiting list whenever we have a participant drop 1
program for whatever reason. It is tragie that we have to tell the poor elderly - we will put
you on a waiting list, but it may take eight to ten months before you hear from us.

CONCLUSION

The distribution of surplus commedities to provide wholesome and nutritious food to the low
income elderly has proven its worth. It is my observation frem first hand experience that
the EFPF has enhanced the quality of life of the 4,100 persons being served In Polk Cotinty
and at the same time has enhanced the quality of life for those volunteers working in the

program. -
I would encourage Congress to stick t
woild ask you what other governme

heir guns and keep this program alive and funded. I
rogram serves the basic food needs of the low income




ATTACHMENT #1
ELDERLY FEEDING PILOT PROJECT

PACKAGES SERVED: 4100

WALUEOF  COSTFOR ~EATINGS
. PACKAGE _ TOTAL PACKAGES THRU USDA

uiD4 .0 SR (-

DISCOUNT STORE H9.2 $201, 761,00 $148,584.00 .

CHAIN $10RE ] $40,881.0 161, 680,0

 NEGHBORHOOD $TORE 850,86 $161,826,00 4208, 64800

* Comminity Stote Prices are based on an average of packages for & women, an Infant and a ehild,

Cost of U:3.DiA: Package was ebta__ined from Naney Palmer, U.8.D.A, Reglonal Offioe, Denver, Colorade, on January 3, 1986,
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ATTACHMENT #2
STANDARD PACKAGE

A Standard Package (one month supply) consists of the following:

Evaporated Milk 3-12 0z Cans
Instant Non-Fat Dry Milk 1-41b. Box
Farina Cereal 2 = 14 oz. Pkgs.
Egg Mix 2 - 6 oz. Pkgs.

Peanut Butter 1-11b.Cgn ) .
-or = . ) every other month

Dry Beans Ct 1-11b. Pkg. )

Canned Beef, Pork, Turkey, Chicken 1-29 0z. Can
Meat Ball Stew . N 2 = #303 Cans

Vegetables and/or Fruit 4 - #303 Cans
Dehydrated Potatoes and/or While Milled Rice 1=11b. Pkg.
Juice 3 -~ 46 oz, Cans
Cheeza 1 -5 1b. Loaf

. Butter 1 =1 Ib. Brick
Honéy 1= 3 1b. Jar = Quarterly
Raisins 2 -1 1b, Boxes

If a client is on a doctor's prescribad diet, the- food package iz tailored to the extent
possible, No participant has to aecept any item they cannot use or do not want.
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oF NUTRITION AND AGING SERVICEE PROGRAMS, SEATTLE, WA

Pr. CHAIRMAN AND DISTINGUISHED MEMBERS OF THE HousE SELECT
ComMITTEES ON HUNGER AND AGING.

I am WiLLiam Hover, A MutriTioN ProJecT MIRECTOR FROM SEATTLE/KING
CouNTY AND IMMEDIATE PAST PRESIDENT OF THE MATIOHAL ASS0CIATION OF
HuTRI110N AND AGING SERVICES PrOGRAMS, | THANK YOU ON BEHALF OF

HANASP FOR YOUR INVITATION TO TESTIFY BEFORE THIS JOINT COMMITTEE
T of HungEr AND THE ELDERLY.

OH THE SUBJE

THE NUMBERS OF ELDERLY AND HUNGRY ARE INCREASING. HUNGER IN AMERICA.

EN ‘VIRTUALLY ELIMINATED IN THE SEVENTIES THROUGH SER=

i

WHICH HAD BE
VICES PROVIDED BY THE Foop STAMP PROGRAM, WOMEN, INFANTS AND
CHILDREN ProGrAM (WIC), SehooL LuncH ProcraM, THE HUTRITION PROGRAM
For THE ELDERLY AND THE USDA SumrPLus CoMmoDiTY PROGRAM HAS BEEN
DRASTICALLY REVERSED IN THE EIGHTIES. THI%S TRAGIC REVERSAL IS5 THE
DIRECT RESULT OF PuBLic SociAL PoLicy wHICH HAS SEEN THE FEDERAL
GOVERNMENT BEGIN TO DISMANTLE EFFECTIVE PROGRAMS TO COMBAT HUNGER

AND TO REDUCE AFPROPRIATIONS FOR SUCH FROGRAMS,

RoNALD REAGAN AND CONGRESS SLASHED ANTI-HUNGER EXPENDITURES BETWEEN
1981 anp 1984, BY MORE THAN $12 BILLION, ESTIMATES OF THOSE GOING
HUNGRY EACH MONTH IN AMERICA ARE NOW AT 20 MILLION CITIZENS AND
THE NUMBERS ARE GROWING, THE HARVARD-BASED PHySIcIANS Task Force
oN HUNGER DECLARED HUNGER TO BE A NATIONAL HEALTH EPIDEMIC®. THE
U.5, ConFERENCE oF MAYORS DESCRIBED HUNGER TO BE "PROBABLY THE MOST
PREVALENT AND THE MOST INSIDIOUS PROBLEM™ FACING AMERICAN CITIES:
SenaTor EOwARD KENNEDY, FnLgauxNG HIS FIELD INVESTIGATION ON THE

PROBLEM OF HUNGER IN FIVE DIFFERENT AMERICAN CITIES, CONCLUDED THAT
"EOR THE FIRST TIME SINCE THE 1960°s, AND PERHAPS SINCE THE GREAT
DEPRESSION, HUNGER 15 ON THE RISE IN AMERICA™,

STUDY AFTER 5TUDY HAS REACHED THE SAME INESCAPABLE CONCLUSIOR. WE
AS A NATION ARE LOSING THE BATTLE AGAINST HUNGER, INDEED, WE MAY
EVEN BE RETREATING FROM IT. CONGRESS HUST NO LONGER CRITIC
CURRENT ADMINISTRATION FOR 1TS REFRESSIVE FOLICIES AND THE

BILLS INTO Law!

DURING THE PAST FIVE YEARS DESFITE A DECLINE IN REAL (OR CONSTANT)

FEDERAL DOLLARS, IN TERMS OF DLEER AMERICANS ACT APPROPRIATIONS FOR
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NUTRITION SERVICES, THE ACTUAL NUMBER OF MEALS PROVIDED HAS INCREASED
THENTY PERCENT, FROM 138 MILLION MeALs IN 1931 To 225 MILLION MEALS
IN 1935, SEVERAL FACTORS ACCOUNT FOR THIS INCREASE. COMPETITIVE
BIDDING BY NUTRITION PROJECTS FOR MEALS AND EQUIPMENT, CONSORTIUN
BUYING OF SUPPLIES WHENEVER POSSIBLE, PURCHASING FOODS FROM 'JATIONAL
CoMMoDITY PROCESSING CONTRACTORS, MAXIMUM UTILIZATION OF BONUS

DAIRY COMMODITIES, INCREASING THE NUMBER OF SERVICE DAYS AT NUTRITION
SITES, STAFF REDUCTIONS WHEREVER POSSIBLE AND OTHER MANAGEMENT
DECISIONS. HOWEVER, THE GREATEST SINGLE FACTGOR ACCOUNTING FOR THE

INCREASE IN MEALS IS RELATED TO THE INCREASE IN PARTICIPANT DONATIONS.
PARTICIPANT DONATIONS INCREASED FRoM $71 MiLLion 1N 1981 7o $121
MILLION IN 1985, SURELY., THIS 1S NOT THE "PRIVATE SECTOR INITIATIVE"
THAT THE ADMINISTRATION BOASTS WILL FUND NEEDED HUMAN SERVICE PROGRAMS
ACROS5 THE COUNTRY.

IN ADDRESSING THE PROBLEM OF HUNGER AMONG THE ELDERLY, THE CONTINUED
ROLE ‘OF THE USDA CASH/COMMODITY PROGRAM 1S ESSENTIAL. AT PRESENT,
#osT NUTRITION PROJECTS HAVE ELECTED TO RECEIVE CASH IN LIEU OF
COMMODITIES, A CHOICE MADE YEARS AGO AND NOT UNRELATED TO THE ITEMS
MADE AVAILABLE TO NUTREITION PROJECTS BY |ISNA WHICH WERE NOT APPRO-
PRIATE FOR THE ELDERLY. [lOWEVER, DURING THE PAST YEAR THE HATIONAL
Assoc1ATiON oF NUTRITION AND NGING SERVICES PROGRAMS HAS WORKED
DIRECTLY WITH USDA OFFICIALS TO MAXIMIZE THE COMMODITY UTILIZATION

IN OUR PROJECTS DY INCREASING THE UNDERSTANDING OF USDA ProGRAM5 BY
our NutriTioN PROJECTS AND VICE VERSA,

CoNGRESS COULD DO MUCH TO HELP OUR NUTRITION PROGRAMS BETTER ALLEVIATE
HUNGER. THREE THINGS STAND OUT. FIRST, CONTINUE THE NATIONAL Com-
MODITY PROCESSING CONTRACTS. THESE ALLOW PRODUCT MANUFACTURERS TO

PRODUCT PRICE TO NUTRITION PROJECTS BY THE VALUE OF THE COMMODITIES
USED, THERE 1S A CONSIDERABLE LACK OF REAGAN ADMINISTRATION :SUPPORT
TO CONTINUE THIS PROGRAM.

SECOND, REMOVE THE REQUIREMENT THAT ONLY THOSE STATES THAT HAVE
ELECTED TO REGEIVE AT LEAST 517 COMMODITIES VERSUS CASH ARE ELIGIBLE
TO RECEIVE NON-DAIRY BONUS COMMODITIES SUCH AS GROUND BEEF AND FOULTRY.
THIS 15 PARTICULARLY IMPORTANT SINCE A MAJOR SURPLUS OF BEEF IS
ANTICIPATED THIS YEAR AND, AT PRESENT, OUR PROJECTS CANNGT RECEIVE

AND UTILIZE THIS PRODUCT,
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FIEALLV; AND THIS RELATES TO THE TWO PREVIOUS POINTS, CONGRESS MUST

'PROJECTS TO BENEFIT FROM SURFLUS COMMODITY FOOD5S. T0 HAVE FOOD

ROTTING IN WAREHOUSES WHILE AMERICAN CITIZENS GO HUNGRY 15 SENSELESS,
WASTEFUL AND CRUEL., ALL OF THESE CAN BE ACCOMPLISHED THROUGH FOLICY
CHANGES WITHOUT THE NEED FOR ADDITIONAL AFPROPRIATIOKS.

ALTHOUGH MUCH CAN BE ACCOMPLISHED THROUGH WISE POLICY CHANGES, THERE
IS ND QUESTION THAT IF THE PROBLEM OF HUNGER IS TO BE SERIOUSLY
ADDRESSED, ADDITIONAL FUNDS ARE HECESSARY. IF THE INDISCRIMINATE
MEAT=AX AFFROACH TO A BALANCED BUDGET UNDER GRAMM-RUDMAN 1S ALLOWED
To FALL, HUTRITION PROGRAMS AND OTHER PROGRAMS THAT FIGHT HUNGER WILL

BE DEVASTATED AND HUNGER WILL BE CATAPULTED To A NATioNAL Crises,

CoNGREGATE AND HoME DELIVERED NUTRITION PROGRAMS FOR THE ELDERLY ARE
A FROVEN SUCCESS AND HAVE DEMONSTRATED THIS SINCE 1973, THEsE

BUT RATHER WE NEED BETTER FINANCIAL SUPPORT FOR THE PROGRAMS WE HAVE,

AT PRESENT OVER HALF OF THE SUPPORT FOR THESE PROGRAMS COMES' FROM
NON-FEDERAL AUSPICES. THIS INCLUDES, IN ADDITION TO PARTICIPANT ~
DOMATIONS: IN-KIND COMMUNITY SUPPORT IN THE FORM OF FACILITIES;
UTILITIES; EQUIPMENT; AND VOLUNTEER SUPPORT, MUCH OF WHICH 15 FROM
THE ELDERLY THEMSELVES. THE NATIONAL HUTRITION PROGRAM FOR TH
ELDERLY STANDS AS AN EXCELLENT EXAMPLE OF A PUBLIC-PRIVATE PARTNER-
SHIP IN HUMAN SERVICE DELIVERY. THE PARTNERSHIP NEEDS TO BE

m

CAN FROVIDE,

BrowN, LARRY J., CHAIRMAN, Puystcian Task Force ON HUNGER IN AMERIcCA,

| AMERICA THE GROWING EPIDEMIC, HARVARD UNIVERSITY ScHooL oF

PusLic Hea

TH. BogTton, MAssacHusevrts, 1985.

r

Kennepy, EpwarD M., SENATOR, REPORT To THE COMMITTEE ON LABOR AND
Human Reszources, UNiTep STATEs SENATE. Goids Hunery IN AMERICA,

WasHinsToN, D.C.. DecemBer 22, 1983,
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MarGoLIs, RIcHARD J., "How HuNGER STAGED A CoMEBACK”, FOUNDATION
News, VoLume 29, Numer 6, NovemBer/Mecemper 1985, pp. 20-29,

U.S. House oF REPRESENTATIVES, SUBCOMMITTEE ON HuMAN SErVICES oF
THE SELECT COMMITTEE ON AGING, OLpER AMERICANS Act: A STAFF Sum-
MARY, WAsHInGTON, D.C., U.S, GOVERNMENT PR:NTING OrFice, 1985,
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PREFARED STATEMENT O¥ ROSALIE S. AsrAaMS, STATE SENATOR, DIRECTOR, MARYLAND
SraTeE OFFICE ON AGING
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eonditions of the elderly--cardiovascular diseases,

&

cancer,; hyperténsion, and dizbetes mellitus--th

The older population is at majer risk of chronie
dissass problems. The elderly are the hesaviest users of

health services. In 1983, the elderly compoasg 12% of
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the population. More than 4 out of S persons 65 and over
have at least one ehronic condition., and multiple
conditions are commeonplace among the elderly with women

having higher rates of leng term chronic disease. With a

-5

leng, vee twiee as many preseription drugs, and ascornt

for one third of the eountry's total personal health cars
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for persons age 65 and over have differed in rFacent years
- the figure for 1984vhs 12.4%. ©Povarty rates for the

85 and older age group was nearly twices that of the &5 to

74 age group. In 1984 nearly one in three women 8% years

. B
digabled and ones at g
A congressional briefing oi: the Cost Effectiveness
of Hutritien Suppart in January of this year included a
naw study conducted by Arthur Anderson and Company -

{international publie accountants) supported by a medieal

research grant from the Ross Laberatories, a divisien of
Abbott Laboratorie, which reparted the economic effect of

malnutrition on direct warisble ceats en ths
1

studied ware likely

5% received

complications. and they were 3 times mors liksly to

Even without a complication; malnourishsd patisnts

34
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hospitals more per patient than wall-

patients. However, if a complicatic

a

charges for hogpitalization more than

case of malngurished patientz. These

or inflammatory bowel dissase staysd 2 days lLongs

east the hoepital 51,160

charges that were $2,480 per patient more than well-

mare than 70 percent of the

Recommended Dietary Allowance (RDA) for protein and
g

participantz in congrega ivared meals
programa had improved A and C
and pnone wers Vitamin A deficient after three years in

the program. However, in the non-partieipant control

level

h
group, 40 parcent had low vi
Another major impact of

program iz to kesp the slderly in

Fa

people, Kehrs reports, noting that

important for many whe live silene

£r

com their families. Koh

eluding retired lawyera, judges and

chers the program gave them 3 chancs to atay in

toueh with their £ othera, the nrogram

i3

the elderly person who lives alene and is on a Limited
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Those living in poor arsas may not have food atores in
their neighborhoed or they might be afraid to go osut
alons because of crimae.”®

Matisnal Instituts on Aglng statistics shew

g
L]
i

one-third of congregate meal program participants and

two-thir

da of meal reciplenta Were age
75 ar mlder. Over half had low incomes, with 532
percant earning below 56,000 s year.

"Thoae benafitting the most from the mesl

programd ATE Parsans o older wi

peracna fromthe lowest eocis-sconomie group.” Hohrs

raports. Her studies consluded that the nutritisn

programs should foocus on reaching persons 65 years of

: 3

ar glder and who have

Providing nutritisa
ntative,

the elderiy.

In my present position as

(==

for the more than

L)

00,000 senior sitizens in Maryland and in my 1B years of

legizlative expsrience in the General Assembly, I have

,,,,, nomenal growth in the number of elderly in
my home state, especially these 85 years of age and over,
many¥ of whom are frail and for whom a continuum of
community based services are needed. I think membera of

thiz Committee are familiar with this extracrdinary

ryland’s demographic data

populatisn age &5 and

i

llustrates 2 tremendous grow

The subject of today's hearing - Hunger Among the

; cannot bs looksd upon gomething in

¥
isslatisn. As the recently published and distinguished
A

utilization iz 0 provide a wide array of altern

sogisl services such as homesmakers, mesl

M

#spits and day cars.” Hutritisnal nseds




part of 5 larger issue affecting ths most vulnerable of
our genior citiszens, = primarily the frail eldarly, &5

and over, living alone and in isclation witheut adeg
t

family or other forms of secial support. An-adequat

program of nutrition is needed to Fill a very important
link in the continuum of sare for these individuals.
We in Maryland have been working very hard te

8 which inelude nutritieon

broaden community based servie

services, to meet this need. One program is ealled

Gateway 1I designed te insure interageney

coordination of

Gateaway
II program has demonstrated its cost effectiveness and

. gertainly allows the individual to remain in his or her
E

public %834 per month.

Home delivered meals are a vital part of ths inZhome

we reseive (level fun

ding in spite of increasing numbers
8

esls to 3,600 participanta. We
der Amsriecans Act funds. Last

t 51,200,000 in con=-
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Maryland were offset by the use of 5,600 volunteers (920%

of whom werz aged &0+). In addition to voluntary

wontributions from partieipants, local support comes from

statewide.

Incidentally, the Older Americans Act was the only

- major Federally Funded nutrition program not sheltersd by

Gramm-Rudman. We are facing as much as a
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at 3 or fewer days per weask
delivered meals served from

when the aite is open. Thus

guk in fund# will further affect our programs. Senilor

transportation systems have been aeversly raduced in
recent years, and ingreasingly, it is now incumbent upon
the State governments and lecal communities to support

portation programs for senior gitisgens.
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huhger problems ameong the elderly in M

ram; meals to over a 6.2% population

additional 5% inerease in Elderly

Nutrition Ssrvice in FY 1987.  We have mad

$400,000 was reguested by the Governor and approved by
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the General Assembly. Vﬁfis special sppropriation will
target State General Funds through local Area Agencies dn
Aging to provide nutrition, both in the form of k
congregate meals and home delivered meals, but it will
not: offset projected euts in funds as a reagig of Gramm-
Rudman in Fiscal Year 1987. ’

Even with these additional State resources, with
eash contributions from seniors themselves and local
are not being met: The level funding which has been a
hallmark of G@lder Americans Act appropriations in recent
years has failed to provide for the growing population to
be served and the rise in food and other ecosts of the
nutrition progran.

In summary, one of the most essential needs of the
elderly are programs which aséyfe the maintenanece of good
‘health. An essential part of good health care is a
continuum of serviees ineluding that of nutritien,
Ea:tiégiafly home delivered meals which are needed for
the frail elderly. Efforts at the loecal and state léQEL

as I have described have tried to mest this need even in.

the face of scarce resources, yet one of the n
of the Older Americans Act in my aginién has
thwarted by the failure on the part of the Federal
government to mest itz commitment.

ally; I emphasise that it is important to

consider nutritional services as part of a continuum of

gare of services in the Eammuﬂiﬁy to those at the
greatest risk of institutiocnalization anﬁ'ény new ar
expanded programs that deal with nutritional services
to be incorporated under the umbrella of the
gcontinuum of care. -

‘I appreciate very much the opportunity to offer this
‘ testimény téﬁay and I am ready to answer angyguestiaﬂé ‘ o
© that you may.havgg ' ‘

Thank - you.
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Chart I

DERLY F‘OPULATEON
IN MARYLAND ,

AGES 65 & ABOVE .
XYEAES*_"]Q?OEEODG !é4g!5§7

TOTAL.

3955@9

223 825

155

-'320,552' =33é‘232.

247,209

,ﬁ 192, ’1;3:3

T7e70 s80 1990 2000
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STATE OF MARYLAND
FINAL RECOMMENDATION
GOVERNOR'S TASK FORCE ON FOOD AND HUTRITION

Four hundred thousand ;Ediviéuals in the 'State are aged 65 or

elder. By 1990 the figures is expected toa increase by 25%. The

number  ef peor is estimated at 11%. Forty six thousand
individuals participats in the congregate meal program. Over
31,000 individuals are howaver, believed to ba
institutienalized ebouind elderly frail who cannot

congregate meal . Currently there are },ﬂ
homebound whe are recipients of any nmutritieon zupport service
wi

£

This is a gaping programatic deficiencgy. This  problem
cotninue to grow. It will teuch every community within
Stat New and creative mpproaches must be implemented to mest
the nutritonal needs of this Znvisible papulation.

Achieve the
by taking the fellewing &@tiens:

the maximws usa of Federal elderly nutrition dallars

1. increase the npumber of elderly
organized nutrition pregrams

2. ' improve ;aar&inat;un of existi
or the elderly as well

tatewide special transport
tify the current unmet
istics to better target

The State should take additienal ste eps ta meet the needs af
the elderly by taking the following actions

re fjweek meal service in home delivered meals
all parts of the State. '

2 -ate .support for a 5% increase in Elderly
Ltion Services in FY 87 and each year thereaftar,

In - the Interim Report. the Task Forca reﬁammendeé a 53
inerease in the number of eldear £ly poor participating in organized .
nutrition programs, and a 5% increase is the number .2f home .
deliversd meals to the frail, disabled and homsbound be supported
by State funds. This would permit the programs to reach more
eligibkla participants, keep 2ites open 5§ ¥5 per week, provide
led on weskends, and pro ide special meals Ear
a2l conditions regu;ge medifications.

) 'Eégégsé afbiﬂaéeguatg fadagal funds plua 5% inflatien and
increased meal cost a reductien in the meals served in 1986 is
axpacted to be. approximately 6%. The population increase will be

approximately 6.32%.

The Office en Aging request for State funds for year 1987 is

5% inerease per Task Foree recommendation
‘6:2%:.additianal meals for population increase
-Ioerease meals to 1984 level

*Includes $163,518 home delivered meals.
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,sﬁéliﬁé;ea meals needs %o be increased,

owing need. Basie pr
-backing" home-delivered meals to the elderly onte the WIC
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Leds~wap alternate systems for home delivered meals.

d's]
W

zpartment of Health

the feas;;;l;ty of aﬁp

nd 8t
- In aﬂﬁit;an athér erea
the frail hosshound eld

numm
v

Eﬂﬂ;ﬂﬂﬁa As thg E;derly bacome more fra;l,

has ' thus far prevented services from expanding to meet
oblems will need to be. resolved in

ineluding differences in food needs of the two

gmﬁalatlans and the collection of payment far the senieor meals.

ever,

‘del i\‘;eg}f praject.

similar p-ograms are already in operation in thres athear
The patent;al integration of the two programs should’
isionz made regarding retention of the WIC home

Undar the authority
n

‘Couneil

nd with the guidance of the Governor'

ts
ereate an  a Food _& , Nutrition ©Plan = by

1te

-establishing a jeint cross-agency foed and .nutrition neads—
assessment and planning process among the four 3
-administering food

e
in the Stata. This process “sheuld

]
1M,
o
Wy
H
E
[T

i
take advantsge of a Federal Executive Order on Plan Reform, which
n

'“pfav;des
b

‘andrd’lv;ng the allo
} the State’'s commitmen
all Ha;glaﬂﬁers.

A cﬁazélna

tg  use-

""Maryland's foeod an
1.

- fox- the  "simpli £;;§t;an, consolidation, and .
of federally reguired State plans, on the State's

coordi i nong : vencies, 'combined
absence Y ‘on  food and
ters ééﬂﬁfihutes s;gn;f;santly to gaps in serviee

itles in mustering resources tg meat naw &/Ef

a vehicle to
ways such as:

the progr

developing imple t gube:nétﬁfial and .
legislative initiatives which cut across agegz; es : and
programs; : s

identifying elient peeds and setting prierities among
competing neeés; i

improving the management of Gtate agégéy progr.
building interagency conzensus by jein 1y ‘devels

program plans & strategies;
impreving thg linkage hetv&en pelicdy-making and budget
. decisions; . T

 §1é277,uf,‘, f Q"
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF MIcHI0 SUZUKI, ASSOCIATE COMMIBSIONER, STATE AND TRIBAL
’ PROGRAMS, ADMINISTRATION ON AGING
MR. CHAIRMAN ‘AHQ HEMBERE OF THE HOUSE COMMITTEES ON AGING AND
HUNGER, I AM PLEASED TO ‘BE HERE TODAY TO DISCUSS THE
ADMINISTRATION ON AGING'S NUTRITION PROGRAM AZ PART OF YOUR

HINCE IT WAS INSTITUTED IN 1972, THE NUTRITION PROGRAM FOR THE

ELDERLY HAS BEEN A FAVORITE OLDEZR AME {ICANE ACT FROGRAM AMONG.

OLDER PEOPLE; AND O PARTICIPATE AS

AND AS ADVISORS. THE

2.9 MILLION OLDER PERSONS
WERE SERVED IN THE CONGREGATE NUTRITION PROGRAM, AHD 653,000
ELDERLY PERSONS IN THE HOME-DELIVERED MEALS PROGRAM. THIZ I3 IN
REEPING WITH THE FUNDAMENTAL PHILOSOPHY OF THE OLDER AMERICANS

. ACT: OLDER PEOPLE WHO PARTICIPATE IN ITS PROGRAMS SHOULD TAKE AN

ACTIVE ROLE IY THE OPERATION AND OVERSIGHT OF PROGRH

SERVE THEM.

FING A NUMBER OF

IEPERTAH'I‘SQCEALV. NUTRITION AND HEALTH RELATED HEEDS. IN

PARTICULAR, THERE ARE OLDER PERSONS AT THE BOTTOM OF THE SOCIAL

AND ECONOMIC LADDERS OF SOCIETY WHO CAN BEHEFIT S0BZ
FROM OLDER AMERICANS ACT PROGRAME, . IT -IS TO THEM THAT OUR

S MANDATE I8 AND HAS BEEN

=

FROGRAMS MUST ALWAYS REACH OUT. TH
EMPHASIZED IN OUR COMMITMENT TO TARGET RESOURCES TO THOSE GLDER

T
PERSONS IN THE GREATEST SOCIAL ARD ECONOMIC HEED AND TO THOSE

If INDEPENDENCE.

VULNERABLE ELDERLY MOST IN DANGER OF LOSING Tx

SERVICE3. THROUG!
. HEIGHBORHOODS WHER

COMMITMENT TO TARGET SERVICES TO THOSE VULNERABLE OLDER PERSONS

INDEFENDENCE, THE PROGRAM HAS
JF

. MOST IN D
8 LE THAT CONGRESS INTENDED.

ERIC
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‘kFquﬁ 95" OF THEIR TITLE III~-ClL ALLOTMENTS FOR CONGREGATE

98

THAT 6% OF THE PEOPLE SERVED IN THE CONGREGATE NUTRITIOH
PROGRAM ARE LOW INCOME:; 17% ARE MINORITY. THE HOME-DELIVERED
MEALS COMPGHENT OF THE WUTRITION PROGRAM I5 EVEN MORE ORIENTED

TOWARD THE NEEDY, WITH 63% OF THE HOME-DELIVERED MEALS

'DELIVERED GOING TO LOW-INCOME FERSONS AND 19% OF THE
HOME=DELIVERED MERLS TO MINORITIES.

SITE LOCATION IS ONE HEghS OFTEN USED TO TARGET HUTRITTON

 PROGRAMS TO AREAS OF GREATEST NEED. THOUGH ADA EHCOURAGES

NEIGHBORHOODS, THE DETERMINATION OF THE ACTUAL LOCATION OF

_ CONGREGATE MEAL SITES IS LEFT FOR STATE AND AREA AGERCIES OH

AGING TO DETERMINE. THESE DECISIONS ARE DIFFICULT, BUT WEZ

BELIEVE THAT STATE AND AREA AGENCIES HAVE APPROPRIATELY CARRIED

" @UT THESE RESPONSIBILITIES. ANALYSIS OF NATIONAL SURVEY DATA

Ii 1983 SHOWED THAT ALMOST ALL STATES WEIGHTED THEIR
IHTRA‘STATEkPﬁHBING FORMULAS IN TITLE III ALLOCATIONS TOWARD

OHE OR MORE SPECIAL TARGET GROUPS:

"o ABOUT 90% HAD WEIGHTS HASED ON THE HUMBERS OF ELDERLY POOR

e PLER o e .. - I, e M TAAR A
" o MORE THAN 50% WEIGHTED THE FORMULA TOWARDS MINORITY AGED:?

© OVER ONE THIRD HAD SPECIFIC WEIGHTS TO TARGET FUNDS TOWARD
E

 MEALS, aN) INTO THEIR I1I-C2 ALLOTMENTS FOR HOME DELIVERED
' 198

E III-C2Z EXPENDITUREE INCREASED 3.7%

HIZ MEANS THAT MORE DOLLARS ARE BEING

SFENT EACH YEAR FOR THIS HOMEBQUND GROUP, WHO ARE NOT ONLY

DISABLED, BUT ALSO MORE LIKELY TO BE OLDER AND SOCIALLY

. .ISOLATED.: THIS IS 3 GROUP WHICH IS ALWAYS VULNERAEBLE TO HUNGER

'AND MALNUTRLTION.

WE HAVE DONE A GREAT DEAL TO IMPROVE THE NUTRITION FROGRAM FOR

OLDER EEQEtEiV THE BEHINISTE}?IGH ON AGING'S PROGRAM ARD
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FINANCIAL INITIATIVES IHCLUDE S HUHEER OF ROAD MAPE TO ASSIST

| THE AGING NETWORK IN ITS EFFORTS TQ iHPRDVE THE CONGPFEGATE AND
HOME DELIVERED MEALS PROGRAMS .,

é THE PROGRAM INCOME INITIATIVE, FOR EXAMPLE, HAS INCREASED
CONTRIBUTIONS STEADILY SINCE THE INITIATIVE BEGAN: FISCAL
YEAR 1981, %69 MILLION: FISCAL YEAR 1982, $90.7 MILLION;
1983, $102.7: AND FIscalL YEAR 1984, %$113.7 MILLION; AND
VFfSQEL YEAR 1985, %121 MILLION. THIS MONEY IS5 USED TO
FROVIDE MORE MEALZ AND THUS HELPS US.TO SERVE MORE OLDER
EE@PL& OR TO PROVIDE ABEf!IGN&; MEALS TO THOSE WHO HEED

THEM.

O GUR PE 7;RHANEE-EAEED CONTRACTING INITIATIVE IS BEING
CONSIDERED AND IMPLEMENTED BY MANY NETWORK PROVIDERS AS A
MEANS TO "GET MORE FOR SCARCE DOLLARS® AND TO SERVE MORE

OF THE "AT RIBK" POFULATION.
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LQQKING AT BUCH APPROACHES AS: EFFEQTIVE USE OF VOLUNTEERS
IH LQHERIHG LABOR COSTS5; IMPRGVED FOOD SERVIEE HARAGEMEN!
PARTNEESHIPE WITH THE=PRIVATE EECTOR; AND USE OF UNTAPPED
RESOQURCES TO AUGMENT FEDERAL FUNDS AND INCREASE THE NUHEER

GF HEALSVSERVEB AND PEOPLE REACHED
ALL QF THESE INITIATIVES HAVE BEEN SUCC SS8FUL THROUGH THE
EQQPERATIQH THE COMMITMENT, AND THE DE ICATION OF THE ENTIRE

ARGING NETWORKE.

i TEIﬂK THAT IT IS IHFDRTANT TO MAXE A DISTINETIDN BETWEEN

NUTEITIGN SERV EE FDGUSED OH PROVIDING MEALS RELATED TO

ERDHETING HEALTH AMONG OLDER PBETIEIFANTE AND IN FEEDING HUNGRY

FEGPLE WHERE THE FOOD SERVED MAY OR MAY NQT RELATE TQ HEALTH

NEEDS. BNE GF THE IHEGETAHT CDALE oF THENHTEITIQN SERVICES

'PRDVIDED UNDEE THE OLDER AH£R:§ANE ACT IS TO SERVE BALAHCED

HEALE HEICH ARE RELATED TD HEALTE N

THE FOOD SER BELIYERY YSTEM ANALYEIS, AN AQA EUFFQRTED
¥

EIRSCHNER ASS0CIATES AND CQLQR&DG STATE UHIVBRSIT! IH
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1981, IKDiCATED THAT, IN GENERAL, THE MEALS SERVED DO MEET THE
UTRITIONAL GOAL OF SUPPLYING AT LEAST 1/3 OF THE RECCMMENDED

THERE ARE SOME IMPORTANT NUTRITIONAL CONCERN
-

c
OPPORTUNITY TO SHARE INFORMATION ABO

Ei
IZING THE IMPORTANCE

5
' NUTRITIONAL QUALITY, NUTRITION EDUCATION, AND HEALT
c

;ViH.THE COMMITMENT OF ALL PERSONS ENGAGED IN THE'® ETWORE ,
'AND MEMBERS OF THE VOLUNTARY AND PRIVATE SECTORS. THAT

. COMMITMENT, PREBENT IN ALL THESE GROUPFS, WILL HELP US BETTER
SEhVE THOSE OLDER PERSONS WHO NEED AND WHO RELY ON OUR SERVICES.
MR. CHAIRMAN THIS CONCLUDES MY PREPARED REMARKS: THIS



Texas Department On Aging

F.0. BSH {3780 EARTOL STATION, AURTIN, TEXAS FE711, PHENE 31374 44

A1 D85
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Desr Congressamsn Leland;

e ars urltm; GO NEET]

3 urasment far meals provided under the Older
Bent af Agﬂaultura Ea-gnd £ h= L]

ke of 58,75 centa,
thlt thu Fates \muld be 53 618 sents for FYBS.

"; rFesulted in.- & loss of $692,152. Zerpvi
Frﬁs without -nrgnlng the number of meals
programa through 1nﬂr§la§d

& falt thia yesr in s iaa f approzis
of th- auta HY 3 deral funding this year; ipaludi tha plann

& A for FIB6, hos alroady reaultsd in deor
& nuﬁh-r of meals served at nutr

ﬁhit & reductien in @meala ssrved new resulte in
ks in the fute The laas frem this rippls effsct -
5 Thasa guts
governments
8 tims whaon the noad

i nalﬂ alac to be Awars

va &n -dﬂll:innll FaAsan 1n Texas for wanting to keap th [=T]
isu Frogr within Hg are nm-rantly wark
& s *

eommeodity foods that s uld an
part of ita entitlament in cemmodity fooda Fa
this n‘fﬁrt 85 g benafita far programs
g ths feders

< Wa want to dasl with & =
" reimburasmsnt GAder thia entitlemsnt 1d that sganey should eentinte to h-
USDA, sines it will ProsuEably centinue to mEnage aoomodity food cﬂﬂrl cr

Finally, related to ths rele af usm in aur programg, if I.Sm wnuld provide the
anme beshala -uistnn“ t& nutrition Progr for the sidarly aa it doss to
the publia 58 to develep affisisnt systema for uss of a: Eodity foada, tha
states weuld be iblu to seeept & aignificant imcumt af entitl E F
food, . Wa hava, through = ﬂlmrltieni?y grant to improve purg
had ssesss te exoellent sasistance from USDA. Ve i ]
had no knowledge that sugh 5

aipartine mers idely svailsbli
the meast éeanaﬁiag fuad A

proparsd te suggest wa
assiatanas

0. P.. {Bab) Bobbitt
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TESTIMDNY ON HUNGER AND THE ELDERLY IN TEXAS

The Texas Department on Aging is the state's principal

advocate for the elderly. The problem of hunger, especially for

.the homebound elderly, is a major concern. This year marks the

first year in which state funds have been appropriated for
nutrition seryices in the form of the Omnibus Hunger Act and
allocates to the Texas Department on Aging %2.5 millien for homes
delivered meals for the 85=86 biennium. This testimony Begins
with presentation of data, trends and conditions and is follawed
by ecomments from a home-delivered meal provider in Harris County

which reflect those of service providers across the state.

) The data in Table I shows the number of people served in
1985 and projections based on those funding cuts which we are
told to- expect, in both the state budget and in the faderal
budget if Gramm-Rudman goes into effeet for FY 1987. The Texas
Department on Aging does not cellect data on many of the meals
prﬁviﬂeﬂ and some of the data are gross estimates. Table I1I is
an attempt to describe unmet needs. The data 15 drawn largely
from surveys done in 1984 and 1985,

- The impetus for the Omnibus legislation was the 1984 report
?aées éf Hunger in the Shadow of Pienéj by the Texzaz 5enate
inéerim Committes on Hunger and Nutrition. Part of the evidence
eited in that report was taken from a 1984 key informant survey
reported in Hunger and Nutrition Research Preject by the Texas
Department on Aging. A 1985 survey conducted by Or. Karen Harlow |
at the Southwest’ Texas Long-Term Care (SWLTC) Gerontology Center
in Dallas statistiéa11y yalidated the earlier report. The

results of the Texas Special Census by the Texas Department of

" Human Services will soon be released at which time the Department

én gging will determine the most effective approach far a follow=
up key=informant survey this year.

The currently available data highlights the fﬁT‘awing majar
conditions and trends:
1. There are currently 2.12 million Texans 60 years and older.

There will be 31.48 million by the year 2000. The elderly

‘population in Texas is growing dramatically. Those 60 and aover

will fncrease 213, and those 75 yedrs and aver will increase 55%

during the second five years of this decade.

‘2. -There are over 100,000 elderly who de not have enough to eat,
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according to a statistically valid telephone survey conducted by
the SWLTC Gerontology Center.

3. HWe estimate 15,000 homebound elderly need and wauid qualify
for home-delivered meals., Of the estimated 16,000 total, an
esiimated 4,000 are on waiting lists. It is impossibie te
estimate how many of the remaining 12,000 could be reachead
through outreach by »:isting programs and served, if funds were
available.

4. We estimate 100,000 mobile elderly have problems with food
access that unuld!he alleviated hy paftiéiﬁatiﬂn in some type of
foaod assistance program, Lack of money is the primary factar. .
It 15 impossible to estimate haw many would attend a congregate
meals program.

5. According to the Texas Department of Human Services, those
Texans aged 65 and over with incomes st or below 125% of poverty
number 23% of the total nopulation. There iz an inordinately
high proportion of Black women aver 75 years among Texas' poor.
Peaple &0 and older partiﬁip;tiﬁg in the food stamp program
number 5§.7% of the total population,

6. We estimate conservatively that 10% of all eldarly wha are in
need of nutrition services have a very critical need for those
services on weekends and holidays and do not receive them; 5%
have a very critical need for two meals per day. There are
increasing numbers’' of service provider: serving morning smacks or
breakfait at nutrition sites 1in resgpanse to this need.

6. One-third of Texas elderly need special diets, according to
the survey by SWLTC Gerontology CLenter. Over one=fifth have
hééfﬁ disease. Almest 70% have one or more chronic diseases.
Very few nutritien providers have the resources or kﬁgwiedgé to
plan and provide meals that meet the United States Dietary
Guidelines. ' "

7. Almost 5% of Texas elderly do not have transportatiem te the
grocery store, according to the survey by SWLTC Gerontology
Center. Over 407 have ohe arF more physical impairments. 1In a
key informant survey done this year, transportation was rated as

the highest prierity among services for the elderly. Long-tern

care services, such as in=home services, was rated second. Home-

delivered meals was rated third. As great a need as there is far
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autrition serviﬁési the need for these suppartive services i3
perceived as even greater by those working in the field.
information was requested this week from HMs. Antoinette
samuel, Director, Harris County Area Agency on Aging, It was
reported that recent funding cuks have resylted in caps on meals
resulting in a daily average of 140 mabile elderly being denied
services at nutrition sites and 275 homebound elderly being
denied requests for meals as repaorted to the ares agency.

Ms. Thelma Piarre, Director, Houston HEEFEﬁD‘itEn-H1ﬂi§§F1ES
nutritien services, providing 1,200 home-delivered meals in
Houstan, reported that the waiting 11st of eligible hoamebound
glderly is growing daily and 15 around 320, she explained that
ather zervice providers in Houston g?nbab‘yihave lang 1ists. Hsz.
pierre believes that the waiting list figures are the.tip of the
iceberg. 5he explained that many additional calls and
applications are received by peaple who do not qualify for the
program becauss they are not homebound, but they da not have
money to buy feod. The food pantries in Houstén have continuous
problems keeping inventaries.

As is typical thraughaout Tezas, Ms. Pierre believes that
there are gg-léast as many elderly in the community who are
eligible for nutrition services and do not apply as there are
currently receiving services, fne major reason is social
iselation. They do not know who to call. Dutreach iz an
essential part of reaching all of these in greatest need.
Another factor that is very prevalent in the age group over 75
years, particularly in Texas, is pride. There i3 a cultural
pre ference to maintain a self=image of self-raliance and dignity.
Asking fﬁf help, particularly from gavernment agencies, is a very
Jast resort that a large number of Texas elderly find impossible
to do. Another phenomenon that has been observed in West Texas
has been the aiignatiaﬁ af people to government programs when
they experience funding cuts. in one community where many
elderiy were decertified from §51 and no longer eligible tao
receive the meals they had been receiving, the loeal caommunity
rallied and replaced the federally=funded meals. By the time
meals were available again, some had died and others werse s
suspicious that they echese not to become involved.

Up until sixz months ago, Houston Metropolitan Ministries

never had to refuse a referral from a hospital discharge planner,

1i0
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The number of referrals have increased and there are currently no
slots available. Eligible refarrals are placed on a waiting Vist
that iz prioritized through individual needs dassessment.
Dceasionally workers finally have a slot available and find that
the applicant has died. HMz. Pierre has found a need for in-
service counselling with her employees to help them avercome the
depression and the thought that the failure of their agency to
provide a meal might have made a difference,

In just the Eastiweekg 3 new trend has emerged for the
agency in respense to the downward spiral of the local ecanomy.
Because BOX of the agenﬁ;‘s_
provided with g@vernmeng funds, the agency developed a

lients rely selely on the one meal

supplemental program called the “Weekend Connection” using
volunteers to fake home-prepared meals to elderly clients,

Supplemental food packs were also being purchased privately for

distribution to the agency's clients. Because so many of the

volunteers were in middle-management positions and have Tast

their jobs, they can no langer afford to volunteer., Thesze

Fesources appear ta ha drying up.

Reports from agencies throughout Texas indicate a worsening
of the economic and health condition of ciferts, Elderly are
being released from hospitals in Yery weak conditions and are
reported te be entering nursing homes in much weaker conditionsz
than before implementation of the Medicaid prospective payment
system and diagnesfs-related groups. It is the definite
impression of those working in the field that the weak condition
of elderly with health problems combined with inadequate
nutrition iz resulting in vastly more subsequent preventable
medical problems and hospitalizatians., 1t is very 1ikely that
Preventable deaths are occuring as a protracted result of
inadequate preventive health care, particularly eszsential
nutritional care.

Nutritional eare s a major part of treatment for mast
medical praoblems of the elderly. Nutritional care in health care
facilities is zometimes tos Tittle too late, ESDEE‘Eily-fUF
Medicaid patientz, The patient is discharged befaore a dist plan
can be taught. Few, but inereasing, numbers of insurers are
covering nutrition services by a dietitian 1in the heme.

However, extremely few in=home health care agencfes in Texas
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employ dietitians to do in-home nutrition services. Many eiderly

cannot even afford basie physician services and medications.

There are reports of homebound clients who will either cut a
tablet in half or take one every other day that should be taken
daily. The choice is between buying medicine, buying food aor
paying the rent.

When one considers the high prevale;Ee of chronic disease
and need for special diets, the high prevalence of paverty among
the elderly, the lack @% coordinated Jong-term care, the

increasing numbers of elderly, the prospect of major slashe

I

across the board in both state and federal programs along with
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lacal esconomic conditiens that will net permit @
community support, the situation of hunger among the elderly 15 2
timebomb that can be expected .to explode silently for the

duration of the century without significant federal 1nterven£1@n,

Prepared by:
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Table 1: Numbers of Texas Elderly
Reeziving Nut=ition Servic &s

(ungupliza;ed Afnusl Gount)

1 ed by Téxgg Depart=
Eng undupliégteﬂ annual epunt

uta in federal funds and
Blx provided under 55I.

Table 2: HNumbera of Texas Elderly with Unmst

Need for Nutritien Servicea

per week (é gxt;é meala) 735;aﬂﬁ 3n an 7737!666
ke iui T@Eil)

Hesla 2 per day, 7 days per wae
a E=§1=} (Esﬁimiﬁg 5% Total)

Food Asaiz :gnau for mobile gldiFly!!. 118,000

(Roundsd satimatea)

Extrapslated from key informant 2urvey in 1984 by Te
Department on Aging. Thés& are not ;Eatl;ti:ally valid da t
but Féapresaent the beat gueaa rrnn copparissn af multip

infermation acura

\w L
L

8% Asauming no euta in funds and &8 21% projected increaae in
total elderly 50+ bstween 1985 and 1%94q,

#8% Thia need requirss & varlety of food BaAlAtanes programs,
ineluding foed pantrie 8, improvessnta and higher alloctmenta
for food atampa, @z we B8 inareaaed numbera of nutritisn
=itesn,
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF Louis SULLIVAN, M.D., PrESIDENT AND DEAN.

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committes, thank you

for the opportunity to address the problem of hunger among

the elderly in our soesiety.

I
I°]

f am Dr. Louis W. Sullivan, President af the Moreho
school of Medicine in Atlanta, Georgia, Viee President of
the Asmogiatisn of Minority Health P

coordinater of the Hational Health Coalition for Minorities
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and the Poor. This nationa

the *Asssciation of Hinority Healeh Froefe
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a number of other national srganizations having Eirst-hand

knowladge of the dsvastaszting p

and minority citizens. Hunger among the elderly is an iZsue

that many AmMEricans Ars® unaware af the vast dimenzions @

"y

i+

thiz problem. To us, there seems ita be no ather sxplanation

y citizens whe have gantributed =0 much to

for why B0 many
sur mociety, should be left to iive the remainder of
their lives in hunger.

At a recent national senference en Health Care for the
Pesor held in Hashville, Tennssses at the Meharry Medieal
College, 1t was noted that there is a widening gap in
health status among the natien’s poor and minorities and
the nation's majority population. Further,
a Task Foroce appointed by the Sescretary

of Health and Human Services reported a s

health status among the nation's blacks
when compared to the nation’s white population. The
Secretary's task forse reported that annually i

community almeost 60,000 excess deaths

health dispacity in the health status.
by both of these efforts alss indicates that the prablem
is growing, not getting better. Unfortunately, in the fase

of

to sliminate eor seversly cut a broad range af the federal
programs that provids smasistance to the poor and minority
populations of the sountry.

The Hational Health Coalitien for Minorities and the

. MOREHOUSE

oF MINORITY

jan Administration proposes
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Poor strongly believes that something =an and must be done
to rectify this growing disparity. 1In fact, sensitizing
national, state, and lacai pelicy-makers and the public
to the extent of this desperate siéﬁatiaﬁ is a major
objective of the National Health Coalition for Minoritias
and the Poor.

Az health profesgsionals, we are particularly concerned
about the number of elderly patients with nutritional
deficiencies, For example, it has been estimated that

at least 65% of the ler persons admitted to hoszpitals

have serious nutritional deficiencies. Weight lass,
dehydration, and malnutrition are only a few of the many
problems resulting f;@mvinadéquaté food in-take. For
instance, hépétic failuré, chronie infections and a number

of other diseaszez are associated with an insufficient food
supply. Mediecal care and treatment becomes extremely costly
in that nutritional deficiencies, and the diseases aszociated

iencies, require weeks and szometimes months

with these defi
te remedy. Consequently, the Natienal Health Coalition for
Minorities and the Poor urges that funding for Medicare

and Medicaid programs be inereased, or at the very least,
funded at their current FY1$86 levels. Furthermore, the
Coalition urges increased funding and suppeart for nutritien
assistance programs, such as those contained in the Food
Seeﬁr;ty Agt. In additien to improving the quality of

life for many Americansz, these programs are cost-effective
because they minimize the need for recurrent treatment -

and dicease associated

and hospitalization due to illnes
with nutritienal deficiencies.

Only by inereasing access to medieal treatment and
nutrition asszistance programs for our nation's elderly
can we hope to rectify the tragic problem of malnutrition
and hunger among ocur elderly citizens.

Thank you Mr. Chairman, for this opportunity teo
present our views, and weﬂagglaua you for your efforts

to address this critical national problem.
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